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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements that arc included pursuant to the safe 
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such information involves risks and uncertainties that 
could cause the Company's actual results to differ from those projected in the forward-looking information. Important factors that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in such forward-looking statements include, but arc not limited 
to those set forth in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K under "Risk Factors" and the following: (1) the Company may 
incur additional loan loss provision due to negative credit quality trends in the future that may lead to a deterioration of asset 
quality; (2) the Company may incur increased charge-offs in the future; (3) the Company could have adverse legal actions of a 
material nature; ( 4) the Company may face competitive loss of customers; (5) the Company may be unable to manage its expense 
levels; (6) the Company may have difficulty retai11ing key employees; (7) changes in the interest rate environment may have results 
on the Company's operations materially different from those anticipated by the Company's market risk manage1nent functions; 
(8) changes in general economic conditions and increased co1npetition could adversely affect the Company's operating results; 
(9) changes in regulations and governn1ent policies affecting bank holding companies and their subsidiaries, including changes 
in monetary policies, could negatively impact the Co1npany's operating results; (10) the Company may experience difficulties 
growing loan and deposit balances; ( 11) the current econon1ic environment poses significant challenges for us and could adversely 
affect our financial condition and results of operations; ( 12) uncertainty in the financial condition of the U.S. banking system may 
impact the valuations of investments the Company has made in the securities of other financial institutions resulting in either 
actual losses or other than temporary impairments on such securities; (13) the effects of the Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act") and the regulations promulgated and to be promulgated thereunder, which may subject the 
Co1npany and its subsidiaries to a variety of new and more stringent legal and regulatory requirements which adversely affect 
their respective businesses; (14) the impact of new 1nini1num capital thresholds established as a part of the implementation of 
Basel Ill capital reforms; and (15) other risk factors relating to the banking industry. Fonvard-looking statements made herein 
reflect 1nanagcmcnt's expectations as of the date such statements arc made. Such information is provided to assist stockholders 
and potential investors in understanding current and anticipated financial operations of the Company and is included pursuant to 
the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company undertakes no obligation to 
update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date such statements are made. 



PARTI 

Item I. Business 

City Holding Company (the "Con1pany" or "City Holding") is a financial holding company headquartered in Charleston, 
West Virginia. The Company conducts its principal activities through its wholly·owned subsidiary, City National Bank of West 
Virginia ("City National"). City National provides banking, trust and investment manage1nent and other financial solutions through 
its network of 85 bank branches and 847 full·time equivalent associates located in West Virginia, Virginia, Kentucky and 
southeastern Ohio. The Company's business activities are currently limited to one reportable business segment, which is community 
banking. 

The principal products produced and services rendered by City National include: 

Commercial Banking" City National offers a full range of commercial banking services to corporations and other business 
custo1ners. Loans arc provided for a vttriety of business purposes, including financing for commercial and industrial 
projects, inco1ne producing commercial real estate, owner·occupicd real estate and construction and land development. 
City National also provides deposit services for commercial customers, including treasury management, lockbox and 
other cash 1nanagcmcnt services. City National provides merchant credit card services through an agreement \Vith a third 
party vendor. 

Consumer Banking· City National provides banking services to consumers, including checking, savings and money 
market accounts as \Veil as certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts. In addition, City National provides 
consumers with instalhnent and real estate loans and lines of credit. City National also offers credit cards through an 
agrcc1ncnt with a third party vendor. 

Mortgage Banking· City National provides mortgage banking services, including fixed and adjustablc·ratc mortgages, 
construction financing, production of conventional and government insured mortgages, secondary marketing and 
mortgage servicing. 

Wealth Management and Trust Services· City National offers specialized services and expertise in the areas of wealth 
1nanage1nent, trust, investment and custodial services for commercial and individual customers. These services include 
the administration of personal trusts and estates as \Vcll as the manage1nent of investment accounts for individuals, 
employee benefit plans and charitable foundations. City National also provides corporate trust and institutional custody, 
financial and estate planning and retirement plan services. 

On January 9, 2015, City National sold its insurance operations, Citylnsurance, to The Hilb Group, effective January 1, 
2015. As a result of this sale, the Company recognized a one· time, after tax gain of$5.8 million. 

On November 6, 2015, the Co1npany consummated the acquisition of three branch locations from American Founders 
Bank, Inc. ("AFB") located in Lexington, Kentucky. The Company acquired approxi1nately $119 million in pcrfonning loans and 
assu1ned deposit liabilities of approximately $145 million. The Company paid AFB a deposit premium of 5.5% on non-time 
deposits, and J .Oo/o on pren1ium loan balances acquired. 

City National's customer base is diverse and no single depositor could have a material adverse effect on liquidity, capital, 
or other clements of financial performance. Although no portion of City National's loan portfolio is concentrated within a single 
industry or group of related industries, it historically has held residential 1nortgagc loans as a significant portion of its loan portfolio. 
At December 31, 2016, approximately 52% of the Company's loan portfolio was categorized as residential 1nortgagc and home 
equity loans. Ho\vever, due to the fractionated nature of residential mortgage lending, there is no concentration of credits that 
would be considered materially detrimental to the Company's financial position or operating results. 

The Company's business is not seasonal and has no significant foreign sources or applications of funds. There are no 
anticipated material capita! expenditures, or any expected nlatcrial effects on earnings or the Company's competitive position as 
a result of compliance with federal, state and local provisions enacted or adopted relating to environmental protection. 

City National's loan portfolio is comprised of commercial and industrial, commercial real estate, residential real estate, 
ho1nc equity, consumer loans and demand deposit account ("DDA") overdrafts. 

The commercial and industrial loan portfolio consists of loans to corporate and other legal entity borrowers primarily in 
sn1all to mid-size industrial and commercial companies. Commercial and industrial loans arc considered to contain a higher level 
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of risk than other loan types, although care is taken to mini1nizc these risks. Numerous risk factors i1npact this portfolio including 
industry specific risks such as the economy, ne\V technology, labor rates and cyclicality, as well as customer specific factors, such 
as cash flow, financial structure, operating controls and asset quality. As of December 31, 2016, City National reported $185. 7 
million of loans classified as "Commercial and Industrial." 

Commercial real estate loans consist of commercial mortgages, which genera!ly are secured by nonresidential and multi­
family residential properties. Commercial real estate loans arc to 1nany ofthc same customers and cany similar industry risks as 
the commercial and industrial loans. As of Dece1nber 3 I, 2016, City National reported S 1.23 billion of loans classified as 
"Commercial Real Estate." 

City National diversifies risk within the commercial and industrial and co1n1nercial real estate portfolios by closely 
monitoring industry concentrations and portfolios to ensure that it docs not exceed established lending guidelines. Diversification 
is intended to limit the risk of loss from any stngle unexpected econo1nic event or trend. Underwriting standards require a 
comprehensive credit analysis and independent evaluation of all larger balance commercial loans by the loan com1nittee prior to 
approval. 

City National categorizes co1n1nercial loans by industry according to the North American Industry Classification System 
(NAICS) to monitor the portfolio for possible concentrations in one or more industries. As of December 31, 2016, City National's 
loans to borrowers within the Lessors ofNonresidential Buildings categories exceeded l 0% oftotal loans ( 13%). No other industry 
classification exceeded I Oo/o of total loans at December 31, 2016. 

Residential real estate loans represent loans to consumers that are secured by a first lien on residential property. Residential 
real estate loans provide for the purchase or refinance of a residence and first-lien home equity loans allow consumers to borrow 
against the equity in their home. These loans primarily consist of single fa1nily 3 and 5 year adjustable rate mortgages with terms 
that amortize up to 30 years. City National also offers fixed-rate residential real estate loans that arc sold in the secondary market 
that are not included on the Company's balance sheet and City National does not retain the servicing rights to these loans. Residential 
mortgage loans are generally undcnvrittcn to comply with Fannie Mae guidelines, while the home equity loans are undenvritten 
with typically less documentation, but \Vi th lower loan-to-value ratios and shorter maturities. As of December 31, 2016, City 
National reported $1.45 billion of loans classified as "Residential Real Estate." 

City National's home equity loans represent loans to consun1ers that are secured by a second (or junior) lien on a residential 
property. l-Iomc equity loans allo\v consumers to borrow against the equity in their home without paying off an existing first lien. 
These loans consist of home equity lines of credit ("HELOC") and amortized home equity loans that require monthly installment 
payments. Ho1ne equity loans are underwritten with less documentation, lo\vcr loan-to-value ratios and for shorter terms than 
residential real estate loans. The amount of credit extended is directly related to the value of the real estate at the time the loan is 
made. As of December 31, 2016, City National reported S 142.0 million of loans classified as "Home Equity." 

All mortgage loans, whether fixed rate or adjustable rate, are originated in accordance with acceptable industry standards 
and con1ply with regulatory requirements. Fixed rate loans arc processed and undenvritten in accordance \vith Fannie Mae and 
Freddie Mac guidelines, while adjustable rate loans arc underwritten in accordance with City National's internal loan policy. 

Consumer loans may be secured by automobiles, boats, recreational vehicles, certificates of deposit and other personal 
property or they 1nay be unsecured. The Company monitors the risk associated with these types ofloans by monitoring such factors 
as portfolio growth, lending policies and econo1nic conditions. Underwriting standards are continually evaluated and modified 
based upon these factors. As of December 31, 20 16, City National reported $32.5 million of loans classified as "Consumer." 

ODA overdraft balances reflect demand deposit accounts that have been overdrawn by deposit customers and have been 
reclassified as loans. As of Dece1nber 31, 2016, City National reported $5.1 million of loans classified as "DDA Overdrafts." 

City National 's loan underwriting guidelines and standards arc updated periodically and revisions are presented for 
approval by City l-Iolding Company's Board of Directors. The purpose of the underwriting guidelines and standards is to grant 
loans on a sound and collectible basis; to invest available funds in a safe, profitable manner; to serve the legitimate credit needs 
of the communities in City National's primary market area; and to ensure that all loan applicants receive fair and equal treatment 
in the lending process. It is the intent of the underwriting guidelines and standards to: (i) minimize loan losses by carefully 
investigating the credit history of each applicant; (ii) verify the source of repayment and the ability of the applicant to repay; (iii) 
collateralize those loans in which collateral is deemed to be required; (iv) exercise care in the documentation of the application, 
review, approval, and origination process; and (v) administer a comprehensive loan collection progran1. The above undenvriting 
guidelines are adhered to and subjected to the experience, background and personal judgment of the loan officer assigned to the 
loan application. 
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Market Area 

City National operates a network of85 bank branches primarily along the 1-64 corridor from Lexington, Kentucky through 
Lexington, Virginia and along the 1-81 corridor through the Shenandoah Valley from Lexington, Virginia to Martinsburg, West 
Virginia. City National's branch network includes 57 branches in West Virginia, 14 branches in Virginia, 11 branches in Kentucky 
and 3 branches in Ohio. City National provides credit, deposit and investment advisory products and services to a broad geographical 
area that includes 1nany rural and small com1nunity markets in addition to larger cities including Charleston (WV), Huntington 
(WV), Martinsburg (WV), Winchester (VA), Staunton (VA), Virginia Beach (VA), Ashland (KY) and Lexington (KY). 

City National also provides com1nercial products and services to customers that are outside of its branches' geographical 
footprint, such as the Columbus, Ohio, Charlotte, North Carolina and Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania markets. These loans are diversified 
across a broad base of industry types, such as multi-fan1ily housing, properties leased to govem1nent, nursing homes, grocery and 
retail stores, and other commercial and industrial loans. At December 31, 2016, the outstanding balance of con1mercial loans to 
markets outside of the geographical footprint of the bank's branches \Vas approximately $390 million, or 28% of City National's 
outstanding co1nmercial loan balances. 

City National has approximately 12o/o of the deposit market share in the counties of West Virginia it serves. In Virginia, 
City National has approxilnate!y 10% of the deposit market share along the 1-81 corridor which its thirteen bank branches serve. 
In Kentucky, City National has approximately 4% of the deposit inarket share in the counties where its eleven bank branches serve. 
In Ohio, City National has approximately 15% ofthe deposit market share in the county where its three bank branches serve. 

According to the most recent U.S. Census Bureau estimates (2015), in the counties where City National's bank branches 
are located, West Virginia's population was approxi1nately I .0 million and has increased 1.0% since 20 I 0. The population in the 
counties City National serves in Virginia along the 1-81 corridor have increased 3.2% since 2010, which is more comparable to 
the national average increase of approximately 4.1 %. The population in the counties that City National serves in Kentucky 
increased 3.3% since 2010 and in Lawrence County, Ohio, where City National's three bank branches are located, the population 
has decreased 2.1% since 2010. 

Competition 

As noted previously, the Company's principal markets arc located in West Virginia and contiguous 1narkets in the 
surrounding states of Virginia, Kentucky and Ohio. The majority of the Company's bank branches are located in the areas of 
Charleston (WV), Huntington (WV), Beckley (WV), Lewisburg (WV), Martinsburg (WV), Lexington (KY) and along the l-81 
corridor in Virginia \Vherc there is a significant presence of other financial service providers. In its markets, the Company competes 
with national, regional, and local community banks for deposits, credit and trust and invest1nent 1nanagement customers. In addition 
to traditional banking organizations, the Company competes with credit unions, finance companies, insurance companies and 
other financial service providers who arc able to provide specialty financial services to targeted customer groups. As further 
discussed below, changes in la\vs and regulations enacted in recent years have increased the competitive environment the Company 
and its subsidiaries faces to retain and attract custo1ners. 

Regulation and Supervision 

Overvie\v: The Company, as a registered financial holding company, and City National, as an insured depository 
institution, operate in a highly regulated environ1nent and arc regularly examined by federal and state regulators. The following 
description briefly discusses certain provisions of federal and state laws and regulations to which the Company and City National 
are subject and the potential impact of such provisions. These federal and state laws and regulations are designed to reduce 
potential loss exposure to the depositors of such depository institutions and to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's insurance 
fund and arc not intended to protect the Company's security holders. Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the 
banking industry arc frequently raised in Congress, in state legislatures, and before the various bank regulatory agencies. The 
likelihood and timing of any changes and the impact such changes might have on the Co1npany are impossible to determine with 
any certainty. A change in applicable laws or regulations, or a change in the way such laws or regulations are interpreted by 
regulatory agencies or courts, may have a material impact on the business, operations and earnings of the Company. To the extent 
that the follo\ving information describes statutory or regulatory provisions, it is qualified entirely by reference to the particular 
statute and/or regulation. 

As a financial holding company, the Company is regulated under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended 
(the "BHCA "),and is subject to inspection, exa1nination and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board. 
The BHCA provides generally for"umbrclla" regulation ofbank holding con1panies such as the Company by the Federal Reserve 
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Board, and for functional regulation of banking activities by bank regulators, securities activities by securities regulators, and 
insurance activities by insurance regulators. The Company is also under the jurisdiction of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
("SEC") and is subject to the disclosure and regulatory requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as ad1ninistered by the SEC. The Company is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market 
("NASDAQ") under the trading symbol "CHCO," and is subject to the rules of the NASDAQ for listed companies. 

City National is organized as a national banking association under the National Bank Act. It is subject to regulation 
and examination by the Office of the ComptroHer of the Currency ("OCC") and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
("FDIC"). The OCC's supervision and regulation of banks is primarily intended to protect the interests of depositors. The National 
Bank Act generally requires each national bank to maintain reserves against deposits, restricts the nature and amount of loans that 
may be made and the interest that may be charged, and restricts investments and other activities. 

In general, the BHCA limits the business of bank holding companies to banking, 1nanaging or controlling banks and 
other activities that the Federal Reserve Board has detennined to be so closely related to banking as to be a proper incident thereto. 
Under the BHCA, bank holding companies that qualify and elect to be financial holding companies may engage in any activity, 
or acquire and retain the shares of a company engaged in any activity, that is either (i) financial in nature or incidental to such 
financial activity (as detennined by the Federal Reserve Board in consultation with the OCC) or (ii) complementary to a financial 
activity and does not pose a substantial risk to the safety and soundness of depository institutions or the financial syste1n generally 
(as solely determined by the Federal Reserve Board). Activities that are financial in nature include, among other things, securities 
underwriting and dealing, insurance underwriting and making merchant banking invest1nents. 

The BHCA generally limits acquisitions by bank holding companies that are not qualified as financial holding co1npanies 
to commercial banks and companies engaged in activities that the Federal Reserve Board has detennined to be so closely related 
to banking as to be a proper incident thereto. The Federal Reserve Board has the power to order any bank holding co1npany or its 
subsidiaries to terminate any activity or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when the Federal Reserve Board 
has reasonable grounds to believe that continuation of such activity or such o\vnership or control constitutes a serious risk to the 
financial soundness, safety or stability of any bank subsidiary ofthe bank holding company. 

The International Money Laundering Abatement and Anti-Terrorist Financing Act of200 I ("Patriot Act") was adopted 
in response to the September 11, 200 I terrorist attacks. The Patriot Act provides law enforcement with greater powers to investigate 
terrorism and prevent future terrorist acts. Among the broad-reaching provisions contained in the Patriot Act are several designed 
to deter terrorists' ability to launder money in the United States and provide law enforcement with additional powers to investigate 
how terrorists and terrorist organizations arc financed. The Patriot Act creates additional requirements for banks, which were 
already subject to similar regulations. The Patriot Act authorizes the Secretary ofTreasury to require financial institutions to take 
certain "special measures" when the Secretary suspects that certain transactions or accounts are related to money laundering. These 
special measures may be ordered \Vhen the Secretary suspects that a jurisdiction outside of the United States, a financial institution 
operating outside of the United States, a class of transactions involving a jurisdiction outside of the United States or certain types 
of accounts are of "primary money laundering concern." The special 1neasures include the following: (a) require financial 
institutions to keep records and report on transactions or accounts at issue; (b) require financial institutions to obtain and retain 
infonnation related to the beneficial ownership of any account opened or maintained by foreign persons; (c) require financial 
institutions to identify each customer who is permitted to use a payable-through or correspondent account and obtain certain 
information from each customer permitted to use the account; and (d) prohibit or impose conditions on the opening or maintaining 
of correspondent or payable-through accounts. Failure of a financial institution to maintain and implement adequate programs to 
combat money laundering and terrorist financing, or to comply with all of the relevant laws or regulations, could have serious 
legal and rcputational consequences for the institution. 

The Company and its subsidiary bank and subsidiaries arc affiliates within the meaning of the Federal Reserve Act. The 
Federal Reserve Act imposes limitations on a bank with respect to extensions of credit to, investments in, and certain other 
transactions with, its parent bank holding company and the holding company's other subsidiaries. Furthennore, bank loans and 
extensions of credit to affiliates arc also subject to various collateral requirements. Further, the authority of City National to extend 
credit to the Company's directors, executive officers and principal shareholders, including their immediate family members, 
corporations and other entities that they control, is subject to substantial restrictions and requirements of the Federal Reserve Act 
and Regulation 0 promulgated thereafter. These statutes and regulations impose specific limits on the amount of loans City 
National 1nay make to directors and other insiders, and specify approval procedures that must be followed in making loans that 
exceed certain a1nounts. 

The Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 ("CRA") requires depository institutions to assist in meeting the credit 
needs ofthcir market areas consistent with safe and sound banking practice. Under the CRA, each depository institution is required 
to help 1neet the credit needs of its market areas by, among other things, providing credit to low- and moderate-income individuals 
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and co1n1nunitics. Depository institutions arc periodically examined for compliance with the CRA and are assigned ratings. In 
order for a financial holding company to commence any new activity pem1itted by the BHCA, or to acquire any company engaged 
in any new activity pennitted by the BHCA, each insured depository institution subsidiary of the financial holding company 1nust 
have received a rating of at least "satisfactory" in its 1nost recent examination under the CRA. Furthermore, banking regulators 
take into account CRA ratings \Vhcn considering approval of a proposed transaction. City National received a "satisfactory" rating 
on its most recent CRA exa1nination in 2015. 

On July 21, 2010, sweeping financial regulatory refonn legislation entitled the "Dodd-Frank Wall Street Rcfom1 and 
Consu1ner Protection Act" (the "Dodd-Frank Act") was signed into law. The Dodd-Frank Act hnplcmcnts far-reaching changes 
across the financial regulatory landscape, including provisions that accomplish the following: 

Centralize responsibility for consu1ner financial protection by creating a new agency, the Consumer Financial 
Protection Bureau, which has rule 1naking authority for a wide range of consumer protection Jaws that apply to all 
banks and has broad powers to supervise and enforce consutner protection laws; 
Change standards for Federal preemption of state la\VS related to federally chartered institutions and their subsidiaries; 
Require the OCC to seek to make its capital requirements for national banks countercyclical so that capital 
requirements increase in times of economic expansion and decrease in times of economic contraction; 
Require financial holding companies, such as the Co1npany, to be \Vcll-capitalized and well-managed. Bank holding 
co1npanies and banks must also be both well-capitalized and well-managed to maintain their status as financial 
holding companies; 
Provide for an increase in the FDIC assessment for depository institutions with assets of$ I 0 billion or 1nore, increase 
theminimu1n reserve ratio for the deposit insurance fund from 1.15% to 1.35% and changes in the basis fordeter1nining 
FDIC premiums fro1n deposits to assets; 
Provide for new disclosure and other requirements relating to executive compensation and corporate 
governance. These disclosures and requirements apply to all public companies, not just financial institutions; 
Permanently increase the $250,000 limit for federal deposit insurance and increase the cash limit of Securities Investor 
Protection Corporation protection fron1 S 100,000 to $250,000; 
Repeal the federal prohibitions on the payment of interest on demand deposits; 
Amend the Electronic Fund Transfer Act (EFTA) to, a1nong other things, give the Federal Reserve the authority to 
establish rules regarding interchange fees charged for electronic debit transactions by payment card issuers having 
assets over S!O bi!lion and to enforce a ne\v statutory requirement that such fees be reasonable and proportional to 
the actual cost of a transaction to the issuer; 
Enhance the requirements for certain transactions \Vith affiliates under the Federal Reserve Act, including an 
expansion of the "covered transactions" definition and increase the amount of time for which collateral requirements 
regarding covered transactions tnust be 1naintained; 
Strengthen the existing li1nits on a depository institution's credit exposure to one borrower by expanding the scope 
of !imitations to include credit exposure arising from derivative transactions, repurchase agreements, and securities 
lending and borrowing transactions; 
Strengthen loan restrictions to insiders by expanding the types of transactions subject to various limits, including 
derivative transactions, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, and securities lending or borrowing 
transactions. Additionally, restrictions on certain asset sales to and fro1n an insider to an institution, including 
requirements that such sales be on market terms and approved by the institution's board of directors in certain 
situations are to be put in place; and 
Increase the authority of the Federal Reserve to examine the Company and its non-bank subsidiaries. 

On December I 0, 2013 the Federal Reserve adopted the final rules implementing the Volckcr Ruic, which amends the 
BHCA to require the federal financial regulatory agencies to adopt rules that prohibit banks and their affiliates from engaging in 
proprietary trading and investing in and sponsoring certain unregistered investment companies (defined as hedge funds and private 
equity funds). The Volckcr Rule became effective on July 21, 2012 and the final rules became effective April 1, 2014, but the 
Federal Reserve issued an order extending the period during \Vhich institutions have to confonn their activities and investments 
to the requirements of the Volcker Rule to July 21, 2015. The compliance period was extended to July 21, 2016 and on July 7, 
2016, the Federal Reserve Board announced it acted to give banks until July 21, 2017 to confonn investments in and relationships 
with covered funds that were in place prior to December 31, 2013. 

In 2013, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the "CFPB") issued eight final regulations governing mainly 
consumer n1ortgagc lending. The first of these rules was issued on January 10, 2013, and included the ability to repay and qualified 
mortgage rule. This rule imposes additional require1nents on banks, including rules designed to require banks to ensure borrowers' 
ability to repay their mortgage, and took effect January I 0, 2014. The same day, the CFPB also finalized a rule on escrow accounts 
for higher priced mortgage loans and a rule expanding the scope of the high-cost mortgage provision in the Truth In Lending Act. 
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On January 17, 2013, the CFPB issued its final rules itnplementing provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act that relate to mortgage 
servicing, which took effect on January 10, 2014. On January 18, 2013, the CFPB issued a final appraisal rule under the Equal 
Credit Opportunity Act and six federal agencies, including the CFPB, issued an interagency rule on appraisals for higher-priced 
n1ortgage loans. On November 20, 20l3, the CFPB issued its final rule on integrated 1nortgage disclosures under the Truth In 
Lending Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, for which compliance was required by October 3, 2015. 

Banking regulatory agencies have increasingly used a general consumer protection statute to address unethical or 
otherwise bad business practices that may not necessarily fa!! directly under the purview of a specific banking or consumer finance 
law. Prior to the Dodd-Frank Act, there was little formal guidance to provide insight to the parameters for compliance \Vith the 
"unfair or deceptive acts or practices" ("UDAP") law. However, the UDAP provisions have been expanded under the Dodd-Frank 
Act to apply to "unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices'', which has been delegated to the CFPB for supervision. 

Uncertainty remains as to the future impact of the Dodd-Frank Act, which could have a material adverse impact either 
on the financial services industry as a \Vhole, or on the Company's business, results of operations and financial condition. Provisions 
in the legislation that affect deposit insurance asscssmcnts, payment of interest on de1nand deposits and intcrchange fees could 
increase the costs associated with deposits as well as place limitations on certain revenues those deposits may generate. Provisions 
in the legislation that require revisions to the capital requirements of the Company and City National could require the Company 
and City National to seek other sources of capital in the future. 

Capital Adequacy: Federal banking regulations set forth capital adequacy guidelines, which are used by regulatory 
authorities to assess the adequacy of capital in examining and supervising a bank holding company and its insured depository 
institutions. 

Prior to January l, 2015, the risk-based capital standard applicable to City Holding and City National were based on 
Basel l. Those capital adequacy guidelines generally required bank holding co1npanies to maintain total capital equal to at least 
8%oftotal risk-adjusted assets, with at least one-half of total capital consisting of core capital (i.e., Tier 1 capital) and the remaining 
amount consisting of"other" capita!·eligible items (i.e., Tier II capital), such as perpetual preferred stock, certain subordinated 
debt, and, subject to limitations, the allowance for loan losses. Tier 1 capital generally included common stockholders' equity plus, 
\Vi thin certain limitations, perpetual preferred stock and trust preferred securities. For purposes of computing risk-based capital 
ratios, bank holding con1panies must have 1net specific capita! guidelines that involved quantitative measures of assets, liabilities 
and certain off-balance sheet items, calculated under regulatory accounting practices. City Holding's and City National 's capital 
a1nounts and classifications were also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about co1nponents, risk weightings, and 
other factors. In addition to total and Tier l capital requirements, regulatory authorities also required bank holding companies 
and insured depository institutions to 1naintain a 1nini1num leverage capital ratio of3o/o. The leverage ratio was determined as the 
ratio of Tier I capital to total average assets, where average assets exclude goodwill, other intangibles, and other specifically 
excluded assets. The guidelines also provided that banking organizations that were experiencing internal growth or making 
acquisitions 'vould be expected to maintain strong capital positions substantially above the minimum supervisory levels. In those 
instances where these criteria were not evident, regulatory authorities expect, and may have required, bank holding companies 
and insured depository institutions to maintain higher than minimum capital levels. 

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve published the final rules that established a new co1nprehensive capital framework for 
banking organizations, co1n1nonly referred to as Basel Ill. These final rules substantially revised the risk-based capital requirements 
applicable to bank holding companies and depository institutions. The final rule became effective January l, 2015 for smaller, 
non-complex banking organizations \Vi th full implementation by January I, 2019. 

Regulatory guidelines require the Company to maintain a minitnum common equity tier I ("CET 1 ") capital ratio of 
5.125% and a total capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of8.625%, \Vith at least one-half of capital consisting of tangible common 
stockholdcrs'equity and a 1ninimum Tier I leverage ratio of6.625%. Similarly, City National is also required to maintain mini1num 
capital levels as set forth by various regulatory agencies. Under capital adequacy guidelines, City National is required to maintain 
1ninimu1n CET 1, total capital, Tier I capital, and leverage ratios of 5.125%, 8.625%, 6.625%, and 4.0%, respectively. To be 
classified as ''\veil capitalized," City National must maintain CET l, total capital, Tier 1 capital, and leverage ratios of6.5%, 
10.0%, 8.0%, and 5.0%, respectively. 

When fully phased in on January 1, 2019, the Basel Ill Capital Rules will require City Holding and City National to 
maintain (i) a minimum ratio ofCET 1 to risk·weighted assets of at least 4.5%, plus a 2.5% "capital conservation buffer" (which 
is added to the 4.5o/o CET I ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a 1ninimu1n ratio ofCET I to risk-weighted 
assets of at least 7.0% upon full implementation), (ii) a 1ninimu1n ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0%, 
plus the capital conservation buffer(which is added to the 6.0% Tier 1 capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting 
in a mini1num Tier 1 capital ratio of8.5% upon full i1np!ementation), (iii) a minimum ratio of total capital (that is, Tier 1 plus Tier 
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2) to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0o/o, plus the capital conservation buffer (which is added to the 8.0% total capital ratio as 
that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a 1ninimum total capital ratio of 10.5% upon full implementation) and (iv) a 
mini1num leverage ratio of 4.0%, calculated as the ratio of Tier I capital to average assets (as compared to a current minimum 
leverage ratio of3 .0% for banking organizations that either have the highest supervisory rating or have implemented the appropriate 
federal regulatory authority's risk-adjusted measure for market risk). 

The implementation of the capital conservation buffer began on January 1, 2016 at the 0.625% level and will be phased 
in over a four-year period (increasing by that a1nount on each subsequent January 1, until it reaches 2.5% on January 1, 2019). 
The Basel Ill Capital Rules also provide for a "countercyclical capital buffer" that is applicable to only certain covered institutions 
and does not have any current applicability to City Holding Company or City National Bank. 

The afore1nentioned capital conservation buffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress. Banking 
institutions with a ratio ofCET 1 capital to risk-weighted assets above the minimum but below the conservation buffer (or below 
the co1nbined capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer, \Vhen the latter is applied) \Vill face constraints on 
dividends, equity repurchases and compensation based on the amount of the shortfall. 

The Co1npany's regulatory capital ratios for both City Holding and City National are illustrated in the following tables 
(dollars in thousands): 

Minimum Required - Minimum Required - Required to be 
Basel III Phase-In Basel III Fully Phased- Considered Well 

Actual Schedule In(*) Capitalized 

Capital Capital Capital Capital 
December 31, 2016 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

CET I Capital 

City Holding Co1npany S37I,677 13.3o/o SI42,845 5.125% $195,105 7.0"/o $181,169 6.5% 

City National Bank 310,912 11.2% 141,860 5.125% 193,761 7.0% 179,921 6.5°/o 

Tier I Capital 

City Holding Company 387,677 13.9% 184,653 6.625% 236,913 8.5% 222,977 8.0% 

City National Bank 318,872 11.5% 183,381 6.625% 235,281 8.5% 221,441 8.0% 

Total Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 408,406 14.7% 240,397 8.625°/o 292,658 10.5°/o 278,722 10.0% 

City National Bank 338,675 12.2% 238,741 8.625% 290,641 10.5°/o 276,801 10.0% 

Tier I Leverage Ratio 

City Holding Company 387,677 10.1% 153,864 4.000% 153,864 4.0% 192,330 5.0% 

City National Bank 318,872 8.3o/o 153,088 4.000% 153,088 4.0% 191,359 5.0% 

(*) Represents the 1ninimum required capital levels as of January I, 2019 when Basel Ill Capital Rules have been fully phased in. 
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Minimum Required - Minimum Required - Required to be 
Basel III Phase-In Basel III Fully Phased- Considered Well 

Actual Schedule In(*) Capitalized 

Capital Capital Capital Capital 
December 31, 2015 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

CET 1 Capital 

City Holding Co1npany s 345,620 13.7o/o s l 13,919 4.5% s 177,207 7.0% $ 164,549 6.5% 
City National Bank 264,812 I 0.5o/o 113,209 4.5% 176,103 7.0% 163,524 6.5% 

Tier l Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 361,620 14.3% 151,891 6.0% 215,180 8.5% 202,522 8.0% 
City National Bank 288,752 11.5% 150,945 6.0% 213,839 8.5% 201,260 8.0% 

Total Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 382,180 !5.1% 202,522 8.0% 265,8!0 10.5°/o 253,152 10.0% 
City National Bank 308,804 12.3% 201,260 8.0% 264,154 10.5% 251,575 10.0% 

Tier I Leverage Ratio 

City Holding Company 361,620 10.2% 142,521 4.0% 142,521 4.0% 178,151 5.00/o 
City National Bank 288,752 8.1% 141,874 4.0% 141,874 4.0% 177,343 5.0% 

(*) Represents the 1nini1nu1n required capital levels as of January I, 2019 when Basel III Capi1al Rules have been fully phased in. 

Management believes that, as of Deee1nber 31, 2016, City Holding and City National would meet all capital adequacy 
requirements under Basel Ill on a fully phased-in basis as if such require1nents had been in effect. 

Additionally, federal banking la\VS require regulatory authorities to take "prompt corrective action" with respect to 
depository institutions that do not satisfy minimum capital requirements. The extent of these powers depends upon whether the 
institutions in question arc '\ve!l capitalized", "adequately capitalized'', "undercapitalized'', "significantly undercapitalizcd" or 
"critically undcrcapitalizcd", as such tcr1ns are defined under uniform regulations defining such capital levels issued by each of 
the federal banking agencies. As an exa1nple, a depository institution that is not well capitalized is generally prohibited from 
accepting brokered deposits and offering interest rates on deposits higher than the prevailing rate in its market. Additionally, a 
depository institution is generally prohibited from making any capital distribution (including payment of a dividend) or paying 
any 1nanagemcnt fee to its holding company, may be subject to asset growth limitations and may be required to submit capital 
restoration plans ifthe depository institution is considered undercapitalizcd. 

Dividends and Other Payments: The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from City National. Dividends 
from City National are essentially the sole source of cash for the Company. The right of the Co1npany, and shareholders of the 
Co1npany, to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of City National through the payment of such dividends or 
othcnvise is necessarily subject to the prior clai1ns of creditors of City National, except to the extent that claims of the Company 
in its capacity as a creditor 1nay be recognized. Moreover, there are various legal limitations applicable to the payment of dividends 
to the Company as well as the payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. 

City National is subject to various statutory restrictions on its ability to pay dividends to the Company. Specifically, 
the approval of the OCC is required prior to the payment of dividends by City National in excess of its earnings retained in the 
current year plus retained net profits for the preceding !\VO years. The payment of dividends by the Co1npany and City National 
may also be limited by other factors, such as requirements to 1naintain adequate capital above regulatory guidelines. The OCC 
has the authority to prohibit any bank under its jurisdiction from engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its 
business. Depending upon the financial condition of City National, the payment of dividends could be deemed to constitute such 
an unsafe or unsound practice. The Federal Reserve Board and the OCC have indicated their view that it generally would be an 
unsafe and unsound practice to pay dividends except out of current operating earnings. The Federal Reserve Board has stated 
that, as a inaner of prudent banking, a bank or bank holding company should not maintain its existing rate of cash dividends on 
co1nmon stock unless (1) the organization's net income available to com1non shareholders over the past year has been sufficient 
to fund fully the dividends and (2) the prospective rate of earnings retention appears consistent with the organization's capital 
needs, asset quality, and overall financial con di ti on. Moreover, the Federal Reserve Board has indicated that bank holding co1npanies 
should serve as a source of managerial and financial strength to their subsidiary banks. Accordingly, the Federal Reserve Board 

-8-



has stated that a bank holding company should not maintain a level of cash dividends to its shareholders that places undue pressure 
on the capital of bank subsidiaries, or that can be funded only through additional borrowings or other arrangements that may 
undennine the bank holding company's ability to serve as a source of financial strength. 

At December 31, 2016, City National could pay dividends up to $57 .5 million without prior regulatory permission. No 
dividends were paid in 2016 that required regulatory approval. During 2016, the Con1pany used cash obtained from these dividends 
pri1narily to: (I) pay common dividends to shareholders, (2) re1nit interest pay1nents on the Company's junior subordinated 
debentures and (3) fund the repurchases of the Company's common shares. Management believes that the Company's available 
cash balance, together with cash dividends from City National, is adequate to satisfy its funding and cash needs in 2017. 

Under federal law, City National 1nay not, subject to certain limited exceptions, make loans or extensions of credit to, 
or invest in the securities of, or take securities of the Company as col!ateral for loans to any borrower. City National is also subject 
to collateral security requirements for any loans or extensions of credit permitted by such exceptions. 

Governmental Policies 

The Federal Reserve Board regulates money and credit and interest rates in order to influence general economic 
conditions. These policies have a significant influence on overall growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and deposits 
and affect interest rates charged on loans or paid for time and savings deposits. Federal Reserve monetary policies have had a 
significant effect on the operating results of banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. 

In vievv of changing conditions in the national economy and in money markets, as well as the effect of credit policies 
by monetary and fiscal authorities, including the Federal Reserve Board, it is difficult to predict the impact of possible future 
changes in interest rates, deposit levels, and loan den1and, or their effect on the Con1pany's business and earnings or on the the 
financial condition of the Co1npany's various customers. 

Deposit Insurance 

Substantially all of the deposits of City National are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund 
("DIF") of the FDIC and are subject to deposit insurance assessments to 1naintain the DIF. Deposit insurance assessments are 
based on average total assets minus average tangible equity. In October 2010, the FDIC adopted a ne\v DIF restoration plan to 
ensure that the fund reserve ratio reaches 1.35% by September 30, 2020, as required by the Dodd~Frank Act. In August 2016, the 
FDIC announced that the DIF reserve ratio had surpassed l.15o/o as of June 30, 2016. As a result, beginning in the third quarter 
of2016, the range of initial assessment ranges for all institutions were adjusted downward. In March 2016, the FDIC adopted a 
final rule increasing the reserve ratio for the DIF to 1.35% of total insured deposits. 

FDIC insurance expense totaled $1.6 million, $1.8 million and $1.6 million in 20! 6, 2015, and 2014, respectively. 
FDIC insurance expense includes deposit assessments and Financing Corporation ("FICO") assessments related to outstanding 
FICO bonds. 

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as an1cnded ("FDIA "),the FDIC may terminate deposit insurance upon finding 
that an institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has 
violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC. 

Cybersecurity 

In March 2015, federal regulators issued t\vO state1nents regarding cyberseeurity: (i) a statement indicating that financial 
institutions should design multiple layers of security controls to establish lines of defense and to ensure that their risk 1nanagement 
processes also address the risk posed by compro1nised customer credentials, including security 1neasures to reliably authenticate 
customers accessing internet-based services of the financial institutions and (ii) a statement indicating the expectation ofa financial 
institution's nlanagement to 1naintain a sufficient business continuity planning process to ensure rapid recovery, resumption and 
maintenance of the financial institution's operations after a cyber-anack involving destructive malware. A financial institution is 
also expected to develop appropriate processes to: (a) enable recovery of data and business operations, (b) address rebuilding 
network capabilities, and (c) restore data ifthe financial institution or any of its critical service providers fall victim to this type 
ofcyber-attack. 

In October 20 16, the federal banking agencies issued an advance notice of proposed rulemaking on enhanced cybcrsecurity 
risk-management and resilience standards that \Vould apply to large and interconnected banking organizations and to services 
provided by third parties to these finns. These enhanced standards would apply only to banks and bank holding companies \Vith 
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total consolidated assets of $50 billion or more; however, it is unclear as to whether any such standards would be applied, and it 
what for1n, in the future to smaller banks and bank holding companies. 

lfthc Company does not comply with this regulatory guidance, it could be subject to various regulatory sanctions, as 
well as financial penalties. The Company believes that it is in compliance with this guidance. 

Future Legislation 

Various other legislative and regulatory initiatives, including proposals to overhaul the banking regulatory system and 
to limit the investments that a depository institution 1nay make \Vith insured funds, are from time to time introduced in Congress 
and state legislatures, as well as regulatory agencies. Such legislation may change banking statutes and the operating environment 
of the Company and its subsidiaries in substantial 11nd unpredictable \vays, and could increase or decrease the cost of doing business, 
limit or expand permissible activities or affect the competitive balance in the financial services industry generally. The Company 
cannot detennine the ultin1ate effect that such potential legislation, if enacted, would have upon its financial condition or operations. 

Executive Officers of the Registrant 

At Dece1nber 31, 2016, the executive officers of the Company were as follo\vs: 

Name 

Charles R. Hageboeck, Ph.D. 

Craig G. Stilwell 

John A. DeRito 

David L. Bumgarner 

Jeffrey D. Legge 

Employees 

Age 

54 

61 

66 

51 

52 

Business Experience 

President and Chief Executive Officer, City Holding Company and City National 
Bank, Charleston, WV since February I, 2005. Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer, City Holding Company and City National Bank, 
Charleston, WV from June 2001 - January 2005. 

Executive Vice President of Retail Banking, City Holding Company and City 
National Bank, Charleston, WV since February 2005. Executive Vice President 
of Marketing & Human Resources, City Holding Company and City National 
Bank, Charleston, WV from May 2001 - February 2005. 

Executive Vice President ofCommercial Banking, City Holding Company and 
City National Bank, Charleston, WV since June 2004. 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, City Holding Company and 
City National Bank since February 2005. 

Senior Vice President, Chief Administration Officer and Chief Information 
Officer, City Holding Company and City National Bank since December 2005. 

The Company had 847 full-time equivalent employees at December 31, 2016. 

Available Information 

The Co1npany files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy staten1ents and other information with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. You may read and copy any document the Co1npany files at the SEC Public Reference Room at 100 F 
Street, N. E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference 
room. The Co1npany's SEC filings are also available to the public at the SEC's website at W\Vw.see.gov. 

The Co1npany's Internet \vebsite address is www.bankatcity.com. The Company makes available free of charge through 
its website its annual report, quarterly reports, current reports and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to 
Section l 3(a) or l 5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after such documents 
are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information on the Company's website 
is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a part of this report or incorporated into any other filing with the Securities and Exchange 
Com1nission. Copies of the Company's annual report will be made available, free of charge, upon written request. 
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Statistical Information 

The infonnation noted below is provided pursuant to Guide 3 -- Statistical Disclosure by Bank Holding Companies. Page 
references are to the Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended Dece1nber 31, 2016 and such pages have been filed as an 
exhibit to this Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by reference. 

Description of Information 

I. Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Stockholders' 

Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Differential 

a. 

b. 

'· 

Average Balance Sheets 

Analysis of Net Interest Earnings 

Rate Volume Analysis of Changes in Interest lnco1ne and Expense 

2. Investment Portfolio 

b. 

'· 

Book Value oflnvcstn1cnts 

Maturity Schedule of Invcst1nents 

Securities of Issuers Exceeding 10% of Stockholders' Equity 

3. Loan Portfolio 

4. 

a. 

b. 

'· 
d. 

Types of Loans 

Maturities and Sensitivity to Changes in Interest Rates 

Risk Elements 
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Item IA. Risk Factors 

An investment in the Company's comn1on stock is subject to risks inherent to the Company's business. The material 
risks and uncertainties that manage1nent believes affect the Co1npany arc described below. The risks and uncertainties described 
belo\v are not the only ones facing the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties that management is not aware of or focused 
on or that management currently deems ilnmatcrial 1nay also ilnpair the Co1npany's business operations. You should carefully 
consider the risks described belo\v, as \Veil as the other information included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report 
on Fonn 10-K, before 1nakingan investment in the Co1npany's com1non stock. If any of the following risks occur, the Company's 
financial condition and results of operations could be material!y and adversely affected, and you could lose all or part of your 
investment. In this section, the tenn "Co1npany" includes City National unless the circumstances dictate otherwise. 

Economic Conditions in the Company's Market Areas Could Negatively Impact the Company's Business and Financial 
Condition 

The Co1npany's business is concentrated in West Virginia, Virginia, Kentucky and southeastern Ohio. As a result, the 
Company's results of operation, cash flows and financial condition arc affected by local and regional economic conditions. A 
downturn in the economies within the Company's market area, or in any one of them, could negatively impact the Co1npany's 
results of operation and financial condition. So1ne exa1nples of econo1nic deterioration include declines in economic gro\vth, 
declines in consu1ner and business confidence, increases in inflation, increases in the cost of capital and credit, and limitations 
in the availability of credit. The Company's financial performance generally, and the ability of its customers to pay interest on 
and repay principal of outstanding loans to City National, is highly dependent on the strength of the economic and business 
environ1nent in the market areas \Vherc the Co1npany operates and in the United States as a whole. Additionally, the value of 
collateral securing loans made and held by City National is impacted by the strength of the economy. Deteriorating economic 
conditions in the Company's market areas could cause declines in the overal! quality of the loan portfolio requiring charge-off 
ofa greater percentage of loans and/or an increase in the allowance for loan losses, which could negatively impact the Company's 
results of operations and financial condition. 

While the economic and business cnvironn1cnt in West Virginia, Virginia, Kentucky and southeastern Ohio have shown 
improvement since the recession of2007 to 2009, there can be no assurance that such improvement will continue or that the 
economics in the Company's market areas, or the United States as a whole, \Viii not slip into recession. Such a lack of continued 
economic improvc1ncnt or slippage into recession could adversely affect the Company's results of operation and financial 
condition. An econon1ic slowdo\vn could have the follo\ving consequences: 

Loan delinquencies may increase; 
Problem assets and foreclosures 1nay increase; 
Demand for the products and services of City National 1nay decline; and 
Co!lateral (including real estate) for loans made by City National may decline in value, in turn reducing customers' 
borrowing power, and 1naking existing loans less secure. 

The oil, natural gas and coal industries, and businesses ancillary thereto, play an important role in the economies of 
West Virginia, Virginia, Kentucky and southeastern Ohio. The volatility in oil and gas prices since 2014 has negatively impacted 
oil and gas and other businesses in the Company's market areas. Additionally, the coal industry continues to be in decline as a 
result of increased environmental and safety regulatory burden, increased competition from alternative energy sources and a 
decline in de1nand for coal. The Co1npany's exposure to coal industry specific loans as of December 31, 2016 is less than S 10 
million. Prolonged low oil and gas prices, and continued decline in the coal industry, could result in downward pressure on 
businesses in the Co1npany's 1narket area which could negatively affect City National's customers (both individuals and 
businesses). As a result the Co1npany's operating results and financial condition could be negatively impacted. 

The Value of Real Estate Collateral May Fluctuate Significantly Resulting in an Under-Collateralized Loan Portfolio. 

The market value of real estate, particularly real estate held for investment, can fluctuate significantly in a short period 
of time as a result of1narkct conditions in the geographic area in which the real estate is located. If the value of the real estate 
serving as collateral for the Company's loan portfolio were to decline materially, a significant part of the Company's loan portfolio 
could become undcr-co!latcralized. If the loans that arc collateralized by real estate become troubled during a time when market 
conditions arc declining or have declined, then, in the event of foreclosure, \Ve may not be able to realize the amount of collateral 
that \Ve anticipated at the time of originating the loan. This could have a 1natcrial adverse effect on the Company's provision for 
loan losses and the Company's operating results and financial condition. 
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The Value of the Company's Common Stock Fluctuates 

The market for the Co1npany's common stock 1nay experience significant price and volume fluctuations in response to 
a number of factors including actual or anticipated quarterly variations in operating results, changes in expectations of future 
financial perfonnance, changes in estimates by securities analysts, govern1nental regulatory action, banking industry reform 
measures, customer relationship devclop1ncnts and other factors, many of which will be beyond the Company's control. 

Furthermore, the stock market in general, and the market for financial institutions in particular, have experienced extreme 
volatility that often has been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These broad market and industry 
fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of the Co1npany's common stock, regardless of actual operating performance. 

The Trading Volume In The Company's Common Stock Is Less Than That Of Other Larger Financial Services Companies 

Although the Company's com1non stock is listed for trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the trading volume 
in its common stock is less than that of other larger financial services co1npanies. A public trading market having the desired 
characteristics of depth, liquidity and orderliness depends on the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of the 
Company's co1nmon stock at any given time. This presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic 
and market conditions over which the Company has no control. Given the lower trading volume of the Company's common stock, 
significant sales of the Company's common stock, or the expectation of these sales, could cause the Co1npany's stock price to 
fall. 

Future Sales of Shares of the Company's Common Stock Could Negatively Affect its Market Price 

The Company's current at-thc-n1arkct stock offering and future sales of substantial amounts of the Company's common 
stock, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect the 1narket price of the Company's common stock in 
the open market. We make no prediction as to the effect, if any, that future sales of shares, or the availability of shares for future 
sale, will have on the market price ofthc Company's com1non stock. 

Shares of the Company's Common Stock Are Not FDIC Insured 

Neither the FDIC nor any other govern1nenta! agency insures the shares of the Company's com1non stock. Therefore, 
the value of your shares in the Company will be based on their market value and may decline. 

The Company's Ability To Pay Dividends Is Limited 

Although the Board of Directors has declared cash dividends in the past, the current ability to pay dividends is largely 
dependent upon the receipt of dividends from City National. Federal Jaws impose restrictions on the ability of City National to 
pay dividends. Holders of shares of the Company's common stock are entitled to dividends if, and when, they are declared by 
the Company's Board of Directors out of funds legally available for that purpose. Additional restrictions arc placed upon the 
Company by the policies of federal regulators, including the Federal Reserve Board's November 14, 1985 policy statement, which 
provides that bank holding co1npanies should pay dividends only out ofthe past year's net ineo1nc, and then only iftheir prospective 
rate of earnings retention appears consistent \Vi th their capita! needs, asset quality, and overall financial condition. In general, 
future dividend policy is subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon a number of factors, including 
the Company's and City Nationa!'s future earnings, capital requirements, regulatory constraints and financial condition. 

The Company and City National are Extensively Regulated 

The Co1npany operates in a highly regulated environment and are subject to supervision and regulation by a number of 
govern1nental regulatory agencies, including the Federal Reserve Board, the OCC and the FDIC. Regulations adopted by these 
agencies, which arc generally intended to provide protection for depositors and custoiners rather than for the benefit of shareholders, 
govern a comprehensive range of matters including but not limited to (i) ownership and control of the Company's shares, (ii) 
acquisition of other co1npanies and businesses, (iii) permissible activities to engage in, (iv) maintenance of adequate capital levels 
and (v) other operational aspects. The bank regulatory agencies possess broad authority to prevent or remedy unsafe or unsound 
practices or violations of law. 

The Dodd-Frank Act instituted major changes to the bank and financial institutions regulatory regimes in light of the 
past perfonnancc of, and government intervention in, the financial services sector. Other changes to statutes, regulations or 
regulatory policies, including changes in interpretation or i1nplementation of statutes, regulations or policies, could affect the 
Company in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such changes could subject the Company to reduced revenues, additional costs, 
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1 imi t the t ypcs of financial services and products the Company 1nay offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks to offer competing 
financial services and products, among other things. Failure to comply \Vi th laws, regulations or policies could result in sanctions 
by regulatory agencies, civil money penalties and/or reputation damage, which could have a 1natcrial adverse effect on the 
Company's business, financial condition and results of operdtions. 

Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing financial institutions are frequently raised in Congress and 
before bank regulatory authorities. Changes in applicable laws or regulations could materially affect the Company's business, 
and the likelihood of any major changes in the future and their effects are impossible to determine. Moreover, it is impossible to 
predict the ultimate form any proposed legislation might take or how it might affect the Company. 

The Company Is Subject To Lending Risk 

There arc inherent risks associated with the Co1npany's lending activities. These risks include, among other things, the 
iinpact of changes in interest rates and changes in the economic conditions in the 1narkets where the Company operates. Increases 
in interest rates and/or weakening economic conditions could adversely i1npact the ability ofborrowers to repay outstanding loans 
or the value of the collateral securing these loans. The Company is also subject to various laws and regulations that affect its 
!ending activities. Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could subject the Company to regulatory enforcement 
action that could result in the assess1nent of significant civil money penalties against the Company. 

The Company is Subject to Interest Rate Risk 

Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest n1tes, could influence not only the interest the Company 
receives on loans and securities and the amount of interest it pays on deposits and borrowings, but such changes could also affect 
(i) the Company'sability to originate loans and obtain deposits, (ii) the fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, 
and (iii) the average duration of the Co1npany's mortgage-backed securities portfolio. The Company's earnings and cash flows 
arc largely dependent upon its net interest income. Net interest income is the difference bet\veen interest income earned on intercst­
eaming assets, such as loans and securities, and interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borro\ved 
funds. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond the Co1npany's control, including general economic 
conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System. If the interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowings increase at a faster rate than the interest rates received 
on loans and other investments, the Cotnpany's net interest inco1ne, and therefore earnings, could be adversely affected. Earnings 
also could be adversely affected if the interest rates received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than the interest 
rates paid on deposits and other borrowings. 

Although 1nanagement believes it has i1nplemented effective asset and liability management strategies, including the 
use of derivatives as hedging instru1nents, to reduce the potential effects of changes in interest rates on the Company's results of 
operations, any substantial, unexpected, prolonged change in market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's financial condition and results of operations. Sec the section captioned "Risk Management" in Item 7. Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations located elsewhere in this report for further discussion 
related to the Company's managetnent of interest rate risk. 

The Company May Be Adversely Affected By The Soundness Of Other Financial Institutions 

Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, and other relationships. The 
Company has exposure to 1nany different industries and counterparties, and routinely executes transactions with eounterparties 
in the financial services industry, including commercial banks, brokers and dealers, investment banks, and other institutional 
clients. Many of these transactions expose the Company to credit risk in the event of a default by a counterparty or client. In 
addition, the Company's credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral held by the Company cannot be realized upon or is 
liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the credit or derivative exposure due to the Company. Any such 
losses could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations. 

The Company's Allo\vance for Loan Losses May Not Be Sufficient 

The Company maintains an allo\vance for loan losses, which is a reserve established through a provision for !oan losses 
charged to expense that represents management's best estimate of probable losses in the existing portfolio ofloans. The allowance, 
in the judg1nent of management, is necessary to provide for estimated loan losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio. The 
level of the allo\vance reflects management's continuing evaluation of industry concentrations; specific credit risks; loan loss 
experience; current loan portfolio quality; present economic, political and regulatory conditions; and unidentified losses inherent 
in the current loan portfolio. The determination of the appropriate level of the allo\vance for loan losses inherently involves a 
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high degree of subjectivity and requires the Company to make significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends, all 
of which may undergo material changes. Changes in economic conditions affecting borro\vers, new information regarding existing 
loans, identification of additional problem loans and other factors, both within and outside of the Company's control, 1nay require 
an increase in the allowance for loan losses. In addition, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the Con1pany's allowance 
for loan losses and 1nay require an increase in the provision for Joan losses or the recognition of further loan charge-offs, based 
on judgments different than those of manage1ncnt. In addition, if charge-offs in future periods exceed the allo\vance for loan 
losses, the Co1npany will need additional provisions to increase the allowance for loan losses. Any increases in the allowance for 
loan losses \Viii result in a decrease in net inco1ne and capital, and may have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Manage1nent evaluates the adequacy of the allo,vance for loan losses at least quarterly, which includes testing certain 
individual loans as well as collective pools ofloans for impairment. This evaluation includes an assessment of actual loss experience 
within each category of the portfolio, individual com1nercial and commercial real estate loans that exhibit credit weakness; current 
econo1nic events, including en1ployment statistics, trends in bankruptcy filings, and other pertinent factors; industry or geographic 
concentrations; and regulatory guidance. See the section captioned "Al!o\vance and Provision for Loan Losses" in Ite1n 7. 
Managen1ent's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations located elsewhere in this report for 
further discussion related to the Co1npany's process for determining the appropriate level ofthe allowance for loan losses. 

Customers May Default On the Repayment of Loans 

City National's customers may default on the repay1nent of loans, which 1nay negatively impact the Company's earnings 
due to loss of principal and interest income. Increased operating expenses 1nay result from the allocation of management time 
and resources to the collection and \Vork-out of the loan. Collection efforts may or may not be successful causing the Company 
to write offthe loan or repossess the collateral securing the loan, \Vhich may or may not exceed the balance ofthe loan. 

Due To Increased Competition, the Company May Not Be Able To Attract and Retain Banking Customers At Current 
Levels 

The Co1npany faces competition from the fo1lo\ving: 

local, regional and national banks; 
savings and loans associations; 
Internet banks; 
credit unions; 
finance companies; 
fin-tech co1npanies: and 
brokerage finns serving the Co1npany's 1narkct areas. 

In particular, City National's co1npetitors include several major national financial and banking companies \Vhose greater 
resources may afford thcn1 a marketplace advantage by enabling them to 1naintain numerous banking locations and mount extensive 
promotional and advertising campaigns. Additionally, banks and other financial institutions may have products and services not 
offered by the Company, \Vhich may cause current and potential custo1ners to choose those institutions. Areas of competition 
include interest rates for loans and deposits, efforts to obtain deposits and range and quality of services provided. If the Company 
is unable to attract new and retain current custo1ners, loan and deposit growth could decrease causing the Company's results of 
operations and financial condition to be negatively impacted. 

Emergence of Nonbank Alternatives to the Financial System 

Consumers may decide not to use banks to complete their financial transactions. Technology and other changes, including 
the emergence of"fin-tech co1npanies" are allowing parties to co1nplete financial transactions through alternative methods that 
historically have involved banks. For example, consumers can also complete transactions, such as paying bills and/or transferring 
funds directly without the assistance of banks. The process of eliminating banks as intennediaries, known as "disintermediation," 
could result in the loss of fee income, as well as the loss of customer deposits and the related income generated from those 
deposits. The loss of these revenue streams and the lower cost of deposits as a source of funds could have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 
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The Company May Be Required To Write Oo\Vn Good\vill And Other Intangible Assets, Causing Its Financial Condition 
And Results To Be Negatively Affected 

When the Co1npany acquires a business, a portion ofthe purchase price of the acquisition is allocated to goodwill and 
other identifiable intangible assets. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable tangible and 
intangible assets acquired determines the amount ofthe purchase price that is allocated to goodwill acquired. At December 31, 
2016, the Company's good\vill and other identifiable intangible assets were approximately $79 million. Under current accounting 
standards, if the Co1npany determines goodwill or intangible assets arc impaired, it would be required to write down the value 
of these assets. The Co1npany conducts an annual review to determine whether goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets 
arc hnpaircd. The Company recently completed such an i1npairment analysis and concluded that no impairment charge was 
necessary for the year ended Dece1nber 31, 2016. The Con1pany cannot provide assurance whether it \Vill be required to take an 
impairment charge in the future. Any impainnent charge would have a negative effect on its shareholders' equity and financial 
results and may cause a decline in the Company's stock price. 

Acquisition Opportunities May Present Challenges 

Any future acquisitions may result in unforeseen difficulties, \Vhich could require significant time and attention from the 
Company's 1nanage1nent that \vould otherwise be directed at developing its existing business. In addition, the Company could 
discover undisclosed liabilities resulting from any acquisitions for which it 1nay beco1ne responsible. Further, the benefits that the 
Con1pany anticipates from these acquisitions may not develop. 

System Failure or Cybersecurity Breaches of the Company's Net\vork Security Could Subject the Company to Increased 
Operating Costs, as Well as Litigation and Other Potential Losses 

The computer systems and network infrastructure that the Company uses could be vulnerable to unforeseen hard\vare 
and cybersecurity issues, including "hacking" and "identity theft." The Company's operations arc dependent upon its ability to 
protect its co1nputer equip1nent against da1nage from fire, po\ver loss, telecommunications failure or a similar catastrophic event. 
Any damage or failure that causes an interruption in the Company's operations could have an adverse effect on its financial 
condition and results of operations. In addition, the Company's operations are dependent upon its ability to protect the computer 
systems and network infrastructure utilized by the Company, including our Internet banking activities, against damage from 
physical break-ins, cybcrsccurity breaches and other disruptive proble1ns caused by the Internet or other users. Such computer 
break-ins and other disruptions \vould jeopardize the security ofinfonnation stored in and transmitted through the Co1npany's 
computer syste1ns and network infrastructure, \Vhich 1nay result in significant liability to the Company, damage its reputation 
and inhibit current and potential custo1ners from its using Internet banking services. 

Despite efforts to ensure the integrity of our systems, we \Vil\ not be able to anticipate all security breaches of these 
types, nor will \Ve be able to imple1nent guaranteed preventive measures against such security breaches. Persistent attackers 1nay 
succeed in penetrating defenses given enough resources, time and motive. The techniques used by cybcr criminals change 
frequently, 1nay not be recognized until launched and can originate from a wide variety of sources, including outside groups such 
as external service providers, organized crime affiliates, terrorist organizations or hostile foreign governments. These risks may 
increase in the future as we continue to increase our nlobile-payment and other Internet-based product offerings and expand our 
internal usage of web-based products and applications. 

A successful attack to our system security could cause us serious negative consequences, including significant disruption 
of operations, misappropriation of confidential inforn1ation, or damage to our co1nputers or systems or those of our customers 
and counterpartics. A successful security breach could result in violations of applicable privacy and other laws, financial loss to 
us or to our customers, loss of confidences in our security measures, significant litigation exposure, and harm to our reputation, 
all of\vhich could have a material adverse effect on the Co1npany. 

The Company's Risk Management Practices May Prove to be Inadequate or Not Fully Effective 

The Co1npany's risk management framework seeks to mitigate risk and appropriately balance risk and return. The 
Company has established policies and procedures intended to identify, monitor and manage the types of risk which it is subject 
to, including credit risk, 1narket risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputational risk. Although the Company has devoted 
significant resources to develop its risk management policies and procedures and expects to continue to do so in the future, these 
policies and procedures, as well as its risk 1nanage1nent techniques, 1nay not be fully effective. In addition, as regulations and 
markets in which the Company operates continue to evolve, its risk manage1nent framework may not always keep sufficient pace 
with those changes. If the Company's risk nlanagemcnt framework does not effectively identify or mitigate its risks, the Company 
could suffer unexpected losses and could be materially adversely affected. Management of the Company's risks in some cases 
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depends upon the use of analytical and/or forecasting models. lfthc models the Company uses to mitigate these risks are inadequate, 
it may incur increased losses. In addition, there may be risks that exist, or that develop in the future, that the Co1npany has not 
appropriately anticipated, identified or mitigated. 

The Company's Controls and Procedures May Fail or Be Circumvented 

Any failure or circu1nvention ofthc Co1npany's controls and procedures or failure to comply \Vith regulations related 
to controls and procedures could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, results of operations and financial 
condition. Management regularly reviews and updates the Co1npany's internal controls, disclosure controls and procedures, and 
corporate governance policies and procedures. Any system of controls, no 1natter how well designed and operated, is based in 
part on certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurances that the objectives ofthe system arc met. 

Significant Legal Actions Could Result in Substantial Liabilities 

From ti1ne to tiine, the Company is subject to clai1ns related to its operations. These claims and legal actions, including 
supervisory actions by its regulators, could involve large monetary claims and cause the Company to incur significant defense 
expenses. As a result, the Co1npany 1nay be exposed to substantial liabilities, which could negatively affect its shareholders' 
equity and financial results. 

The Company Relies Heavily on Its Management Team, and the Unexpected Loss of Key Management May Adversely 
Affect Its Operations 

The Company's success to date has been strongly influenced by its ability to attract and to retain senior 1nanagement 
experienced in banking in the markets it serves. The Company's ability to retain executive officers and the current management 
teams will continue to be in1portant to the successful imple1nentation of its strategies. The Company has employment agreements 
with these key employees in the event of a change of control, as well as confidential information, non-solicitation and non­
competition agreements related to its stock options. No other employment agreements exist with key employees. The unexpected 
loss of services of any key manage1nent personnel, or the inability to recruit and retain qualified personnel in the future, could 
have an adverse effect on the Company's business and financial results. 

Item 18. Unresolved StaffCon1ments 

None. 

Item 2. Properties 

City National owns the Company's executive offices, located at 25 Gate\vater Road, Charleston, West Virginia. City 
National o\vns sixty-four bank branch locations and leases twenty-one bank branch locations, pursuant to operating leases. All 
of the properties are suitable and adequate for their current operations. 

The Company o\vns a thirty thousand square foot office building in an unincorporated area approximately fifteen miles 
west of Charleston, West Virginia. This facility fonnerly housed loan operations personnel, but has since been vacated by the 
Company. This building is currently being marketed for sale. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

The Co1npany is engaged in various legal actions that it dce1ns to be in the ordinary course of business. As these legal 
actions are resolved, the Co1npany could realize positive and/or negative impact to its financial pcrfonnance in the period in which 
these legal actions are ultimately decided. There can be no assurance that current actions will have immaterial results, either 
positive or negative, or that no 1naterial actions may be presented in the future. 

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures 

None. 
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PART II 

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity 
Securities 

Common Stock Market and Dividends 

The Company's co1n1non stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol "CHCO". This table 
sets forth the cash dividends declared per share and information regarding the closing market prices per share of the Co1npany's 
common stock for the periods indicated. The price ranges are based on transactions as reported on the NASDAQ Global Select 
Market. At February 22, 2017, there were 2,692 shareholders of record. 

Cash Market Value 
Dividends 
Per Share Lo'v High 

2016 

Fourth Quarter $ 0.43 $ 48.49 $ 68.29 
Third Quarter 0.43 44.53 50.60 
Second Quarter 0.43 43.06 50.14 
First Quarter 0.43 40.82 47.78 

2015 

Fourth Quarter s 0.42 s 43.85 $ 51.12 

Third Quarter 0.42 45.56 51.73 

Second Quarter 0.42 45.00 50.22 

First Quarter 0.42 41.76 48.09 

The Company generally pays dividends on a quarterly basis. As noted in the section captioned "Dividends and Other 
Payments" included in Item I. Business, the section captioned "Liquidity" included in lte1n 7. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results ofOpcrations and in Note Eighteen ofNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
the Company's ability to pay dividends to its shareholders is dependent upon the ability of City National to pay dividends to the 
Company. 

At-The-Market Common Stock Offering 

On December l 9, 2016, the Company announced that it had filed a prospectus supplement to its existing shelf registration 
statement on Form S-3 for the sale of its com1non stock having an aggregate value of up to $55 million through an "at-the-market" 
equity offering progra1n. 

Total Number Maximum Number 

of Shares Issued of Shares that May 

Average Price as Part of Publicly Y ct Be Issued 

Total Number of Received per Announced Plans Under the Plans 

Period Shares Issued Share* or Programs or Programs** 

December l -December31,2016 107,662 s 66.21 107,662 702,000 

* The con1n1on share issue price is presented net or commissions and excludes one time oITering costs ofnpproximately $265,000 

** Esti1nnte based on average price per share received to date, before broker recs 
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Stock-Based Compensation Plan 

lnfonnation regarding stock-based compensation a\vards outstanding and a vai!able for future grants as of December 31, 
2016, segregated between stock-based co1npcnsation plans approved by shareholders and stock-based compensation plans not 
approved by shareholders, is presented in the table belo,v. Additional information regarding stock-based compensation plans is 
presented in Note Fifteen, Employee Benefit Plans, ofNotcs to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Plan Category 

Plans approved by shareholders 

Plans not approved by shareholders 

Total 

Stock Performance 

Nu1nbcr of Shares to be 
Issued Upon Exercise of 

Outstanding Awards 
(•) 

Weighted-average exercise 
price of outstanding a'vards 

(b) 

86,613 $ 41.08 

86,613 $ 41.08 

Nu1nbcr of securities 
rc1naining available for 

future issuance under equity 
co1npensation plans 
(excluding securities 

. reflected in colu1nn (a)) (c) 

607,835 

607,835 

The following graph sets forth the cumulative total shareholder return (assu1ning reinvestment of dividends) to the 
Company's shareholders during the five-year period ended December31, 2016, as well as an overall stock market index (The 
Nasdaq Stock Market Index) and the Company's Peer Group ("Peer Group"). The Peer Group consists oftwenty banking institutions 
that (i) arc over $2 billion but less than SS billion in assets, (ii) have a return on average assets and a return on average equity 
performance ratios greater than Oo/o, (iii) derive at least fifteen percent of their total revenues from non-interest income, (iv) have 
a loan portfolio comprised of less than eighty-five percent commercial loans, (v) have more than twenty branches, and (vi) located 
in Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and New York (excluding New York City), 
excluding: con1panies in top 5 metro areas (MSAs), thrifts and thinly traded companies. The trading symbols for such financial 
institutions include: BNCN, CFNL, CTBI, FCBC, FCF, FISI, FRME, MSFG, PEBO, PSTB, SASR, SRCE, STBA, SYBT, THFF, 
TMP, UBSH and UVSP. The stock perfonnancc shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price perfonnance. 
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Cumulative Total Returns 
Assumes Inital Investment of $100 made on December 31, 2011 
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12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13 12/31/14 12/31/15 12/31/16 

Period Ending 

__..._ C'ity Holding (:01npany ----- NASDAQ Con1posite 

--+-- (,'I-JC() Peer Ciroup Index 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

City Holding Co1npany 100.00 107.05 147.63 153.70 156.13 239.90 
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 117.45 164.57 188.84 201.98 219.89 

Peer Group 100.00 117.88 164.34 173.31 187.07 282.74 

This graph shall not be dee1ned to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, unless the Company specifically incorporates this report by 
reference. It will not be otherwise filed under such Acts. 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

Selected Financial Data on pages 1 and 2 of the Annual Report to Shareholders of City Holding Co1npany for the year 
ended December 31, 2016, included in this report as Exhibit 13, is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Manage1nent's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on pages 3 through 25 of the 
Annual Report to Shareholders of City Holding Co1npany for the year ended December 31, 2016, included in this report as Exhibit 
13, is incorporated herein by reference. 
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

lnforn1ation appearing under the caption "Risk Management" appearing on pages 10-11 of the Annual Report to 
Shareholders of City Holding Company for the year ended December 31, 2016, included in this report as Exhibit 13, is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

The consolidated financial statements, notes to consolidated financial statcn1cnts, reports of management and the 
independent registered public accounting firm included on pages 26 through 84 of the Annual Report to Shareholders of City 
Holding Company for the year ended December 3 l, 2016, included in this report as Exhibit 13, arc incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Pursuant to Rule l 3a- l 5(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company carried out an evaluation, with 
the participation of the Company's 1nanagement, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
of the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Company's 
ChiefExccutivc Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective 
in timely alerting them to material information relating to the Company required to be included in the Co1npany's periodic Securities 
and Exchange Commission filings. 

(a) Manage1nent's annual report on internal control over financial reporting appearing on page 26 ofthe Annual Report 
to Shareholders of City Holding Company for the year ended Dece1nber 31, 2016, included in this report as Exhibit 
13, is incorporated herein by reference. 

(b) The Company did not have any changes in internal control over financial reporting during its fourth quarter for the 
year ending December 31, 2016, that 1naterial!y affected, or were reasonably likely to 1natcrially affect, the Co1npany's 
internal control over financial reporting. 

The Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting is included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. 
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Item 98. Other Information 

None 

PART Ill 

Item IO.Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Certain infonnation regarding executive officers is included under the section captioned "Executive Officers of The 
Registrant" in Part I, lten1 l, elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Other information required by this Item appears 
under the captions "ELECTION OF DIRECTORS'', "ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS", "REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE'', and "SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING 
COMPLIANCE" in the Company's 20I 7 Proxy State1nent that will be filed within 120 days of fiscal year end and is hereby 
incorporated by reference. 

In December 2009, the Co1npany adopted a new Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which applies to all employees 
(including its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer). Members of the Board of Directors 
are governed by a separate Code of Business Conduct and Ethics approved in January 2004. Both of the Codes of Business 
Conduct and Ethics have been posted on the Company's website at www.bankatcity.com under the "Corporate Governance" link 
located at the botto1n of the page. A copy of the Co1npany's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics covering all e1nployees and/ 
or a copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics covering the Board of Directors \Vill be mailed without charge upon request 
to Investor Relations, City Holding Company, 25 Gatewater Road, P.O. Box 7520, Charleston, WV 25356-0520. Any amendments 
to or waivers from any provision of the Code of Ethics applicable to the Company's chief executive officer, chief financial officer, 
or principal accounting officer \Vill be disclosed by timely posting such infonnation on the Company's Internet website. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Certain information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is included in the 
section captioned "STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLAN" in Part II, lte1n 5, elsewhere in this Annual Report on Fonn 10-
K. Other information required by Item l l of FORM 10-K appears under the captions "COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS", 
"COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS", "EQUITY HOLDINGS'', "POST-EMPLOYMENT PAYMENTS'', and 
"BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION" in the Company's 2017 Proxy 
Statement that \Vill be filed within 120 days of fiscal year end and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

Item 12.Sccurity O\vnership of Certain Beneficial O\vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

The information required by Item 12 of FORM l 0-K appears under the caption "COMMON STOCK OWNERSHIP 
OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT" in the Company's 2017 Proxy Statement that will be filed within 
120 days of fiscal year end and is hereby incorporated by reference. 

Item 13.Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence 

The information required by ltc1n 13 of FORM 10-K appears under the captions "CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS 
INVOLVING DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS" and "ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS" in the Co1npany's 2017 Proxy Statement that will be filed within 120 days of fiscal year end and is 
hereby incorporated by reference. 

Item 14.Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

The information required by lte1n 14 of FORM IO~K appears under the caption "PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES 
AND SERVICES" in the Company's 2017 Proxy Statement that ,..,iJ\ be filed within 120 days of fiscal year end and is hereby 
incorporated by reference. 
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PART IV 

Item IS.Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

(a) (I) Financial Statements. Reference is made to Part II, Item 8, of this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K. 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules. These schedules arc omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the 
infonnation is presented in the consolidated financial statements or related notes. 

(3) Exhibits. The exhibits listed in the "Exhibit Index" on pages 24-26 of this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K 
included herein arc filed herewith or incorporated by reference fro1n previous filings. 

(b) See (a) (3) above. 

(c) See (a) (1) and (2) above. 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section l 3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalfby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: February 27, 2017 City Holding Company 

(Registrant) 

By: /s/ Charles R. Hagcboeck, Ph.D. 

Charles R. Hagebocck, Ph.D. 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

By: /s/ David L. Bumgarner 

David L. Bumgarner 

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and 
Principal Accounting Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer) 
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Pursuant to the require1nents of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed belo\v by the 
follo\ving persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 22, 2017. Each of the directors and/or 
officers of City Holding Company \Vhose signature appears below hereby appoints C. Dallas Kayser, and/or Charles R. Hageboeck 
Ph.D., as his attorney-in-fact to sign in his name and behalf, in any and all capacities stated bclo\v and to file with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, any and all amendments to this report on Form 10-K, inaking such changes in this report on Form 
10-K as appropriate, and generally to do all such things in their behalf in their capacities as officers and directors to enable City 
Holding Company to co1nply with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and all requirements of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 

Isl C. Dallas Kayser 

C. Dallas Kayser 

Chairman 

Isl John R. Elliot 

John R E!liot 

Director 

Isl Charles W. Fairchilds 

Charles W. Fairchilds 

Director 

Isl William H. File, Ill 

William 1-:1. File, III 

Director 

Isl Robert D. Fisher 

Robert D. Fisher 

Director 

Isl Jay C. Goldman 

Jay C. Gold1nan 

Director 

Isl Patrick C. Graney, III 

Patrick C. Graney, III 

Director 
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Isl Charles R. Hageboeck, Ph.D. 

Charles R. Hagebocck, Ph.D. 

Director, President, and Chief Executive Officer 

Isl David W. Hambrick 

David W. Hambrick 

Director 

Isl Tracy W. Hylton, II 

Tracy W. Hylton, II 

Director 

Isl J. Thomas Jones 

J. Thomas Jones 

Director 

Isl James L. Rossi 

James L. Rossi 

Director 

Isl Sharon H. Rowe 

Sharon I-I. Rowe 

Director 



EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibit 

2(a) 

2(b) 

3(a) 

3(b) 

3(e) 

3(d) 

3(e) 

3(g) 

3(h) 

3(i) 

30) 

3(k) 

4(a) 

4(b) 

IO( a) 

The following exhibits arc filed here\vith or arc incorporated herein by reference. 

Description 

Agreement and Plan ofMerger,datedNovembcr 14, 2011, by and among Virginia Savings Bancorp Inc. Virginia 
Savings Bank, F.S.B., City Holding Company and City National Bank of West Virginia (at~ched to and 
incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Fonn 8-K dated November 14 2011 and filed wifh the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2011). ' ' 

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 2, 2012, by and among Community Financial Corporation, 
Co1n1nunity Bank, City Holding Company and City National Bank of West Virginia (attached to, and incorporated 
by reference from City Holding Company's Fonn 8-K dated August 7, 2012, and filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on August 7, 2012). 

Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company (attached to, and incorporated by reference from, 
Amendment No. I to City Holding Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 2-86250, 
filed November 4, 1983 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated March 6, 1984 
(attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 8-K Report dated March 7, 1984, 
and filed \Vith the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22, 1984). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated March 4, 1986 
(attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 10-KAnnual Report for the year 
ended December 31, 1986, filed March 31, 1987 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated Scptembcr29, 1987 
(attached to and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4, 
Registration No. 33~23295, filed \Vi th the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 3, 1988). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles oflncorporation of City Holding Company, dated May 6, 1991 (attached 
to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 10-K Annual Report for the year ended 
December 31, 1991, filed March 17, 1992 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated May 7, 1991 (attached 
to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form I 0-K Annual Report for the year ended 
December 31, 1991, filed March 17, 1992 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated August 1, 1994 
(attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 10-Q Quarterly Report for the 
quarter ended September 30, 1994, filed November 14, 1994 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated December 9, 1998 
(attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 10-KAnnual Report for the year 
ended December 31, 1998, filed March 31, 1999 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated June 13, 2001 
(attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Registration Statement on Fonn 8-A, 
filed June 22, 200 l with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of City Holding Company, dated May 10, 2006 
(attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's For1n 10-Q, Quarterly Report for the 
quarter ended June 30, 2006, filed August 9, 2006 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Amended and Restated Bylaws of City Holding Company, revised February 24, 2010 (attached to, and 
incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed March l, 2010 with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Rights Agreement dated as of June 22, 2001 (attached to, and incorporated by reference fro1n City Holding 
Company's Form 8-A, filed June 22, 2001 \Vith the Securities and Exchange Commission)." 

Amendment No. 1 to the Rights Agreement dated as ofNovember 30, 2005 (attached to, and incorporated by 
reference from City Holding Company'sAmendment No. 1 on Form 8-A, filed December 21, 2005, with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan for the Directors of the Bank of Raleigh, dated January 1987 
(attached to and incorporated by reference fro1n, City Holding Company's Fonn 10-K Annual Report for the 
year ended Dece1nber 31, 2004, filed March 2, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 
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lO(b) 

1 O(o) 

IO(d) 

lO(o) 

10(!) 

lO(g) 

lO(h) 

lO(i) 

lO(k) 

10(1) 

lO(m) 

lO(n) 

13 

21 

23 
24 
3 l(a) 

3l(b) 

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement for the Directors of the National Bank ofSummers, dated January 
15, 1987 (attached to and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 10-KAnnual Report 
for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 2, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

City Holding Con1pany's 2003 Incentive Plan (attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding 
Company's Definitive Proxy State1nent, filed March 21, 2003 \vith the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

City Holding Company's 2013 Incentive Plan (attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding 
Company's Definitive Proxy Statement, filed March 22, 2013 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Form of EmploymentAgrccment, dated as of July 25, 2007, by and between City Holding Company and Charles 
R. Hageboeck, Ph.D. (attached to, and incorporated by reference fro1n, City Holding Company's Current Report 
on Form 8-K, filed July 31, 2007 with the Securities and Exchange Co1nmission). 

Form of Employment Agreement, dated as of July 25, 2007, by and between City Holding Company and Craig 
G. Stilwell (attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed July 31, 2007 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Form of Change of Control Agreement, dated February l, 2005, by and between City Holding Company and 
David L. Bumgarner (attached to and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 10-K Annual 
Report for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed March 2, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Form of Change in Control and Termination Agreement, dated June 28, 2004, by and between City Holding 
Company and John A. DeRito (attached to, and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 
l 0-KAnnual Report for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed March 7, 2006 with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission). 

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust City Holding Capital Trust Ill, dated as of March 27, 2008 
(attached and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form I OQ, Quarterly Report for the period 
ended March 31, 2008 filed May 12, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of March 27, 2008, between City Holding Company and Wells Fargo, 
National Association, as Trustee (attached and incorporated by reference from, City Holding Company's Form 
l OQ, Quarterly Report for the period ended March 31, 2008 filed May 12, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission). 

City Holding Company Guarantee Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2008 (attached and incorporated by 
reference from, City Holding Co1npany's Fonn I OQ, Quarterly Report for the period ended March 31, 2008 filed 
May 12, 2008 with the Securities and Exchange Co1nmission). 

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 19, 2011, by and among City Holding Company, City 
National Bank of West Virginia and Charles R. Hageboeck (attached to and incorporated by reference from City 
Holding Company's Form 8~K filed on December 21, 2011, with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 19, 2011, by and among City Holding Company, City 
National BankofWcst Virginia and Craig G. Stilwell (attached to and incorporated by reference from City Holding 
Company's Form 8-K filed on December 21, 20 l 1, with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Form of Change of Control Agreement, dated February 6, 2006, by and between City Holding Company and 
Jeffrey D. Legge (attached to and incorporated by reference from City Holding Company's Fonn 1 OK, Annual 
Report for the period ended December 31, 2013 with the Securities and Exchange Commission). 

Portions of City Holding Company Annual Report to Shareholders for Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Subsidiaries of City Holding Company 

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Power of Attorney (included on the signature page hereof) 

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 
302 ofthc Sarbancs-Oxlcy Act of2002 by Charles R. Hageboeck, Ph.D. 

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a- l 4(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 by David L. Bumgarner 
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32(a) 

32(b) 

IOUNS 

IOI.SCH 

IOI.CAL 

IOI.DEF 

IOI.LAB 

JOI.PRE 

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of2002 by Charles R. Hageboeck, Ph.D. 

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002 by David L. Bumgarner 

XBRL Instance Document* 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Sche1na* 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Link.base* 

XBRL Taxono1ny Extension Definition Linkbase* 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase* 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase* 

*Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files arc deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or 
prospectus for purposes of Section I I or 12 of the Securities Act of J 933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
and otherwise arc not subject to liability. 
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Selected Financial Data Exhibit 13 
Table One 
Five-Year Financial Summary 
(in thousands, except per share data) 

2016 2015 131 2014 2013 (2) 20\2 (II 

Summary of Operations 

Total interest inco1nc $ 132,152 $ 127,074 $ 129,566 $ 138,539 $ 112,212 

Total interest expense 13,207 I 1,830 l 1,960 13,301 14,450 

Net interest income 118,945 115,244 117,606 125,238 97,762 

Provision for loan losses 4,395 6,988 4,054 6,848 6,375 

Total non-interest inco1ne 58,825 67,206 58,722 58,006 55,257 

Total non-interest expenses 96,164 92,951 95,041 102,906 87,401 

Income before income taxes 77,211 82,511 77,233 73,490 59,243 

lnco1ne tax expense 25,083 28,414 24,271 25,275 20,298 

Net income available to common shareholders 52,128 54,097 52,962 48,215 38,945 

Per Share Data 

Net inco1ne basic $ 3.46 s 3.54 s 3.40 s 3.07 s 2.63 

Net income diluted 3.45 3.53 3.38 3.04 2.61 

Cash dividends declared 1.72 1.68 1.60 1.48 1.40 

Book value per share 29.25 27.62 25.79 24.61 22.47 

Selected Average Balances 

Total Joans s 2,920,837 $ 2,691,304 $ 2,593,597 s 2,523,755 s 2,041,876 

Securities 495,206 383,685 365,904 360,860 409,431 

lnteres1-ean1ing assets 3,426,158 3,084,722 2,968,706 2,905,783 2,489,072 

Deposits 3,166,817 2,947,543 2,824,985 2,821,573 2,338,891 

Long-tcnn debt 16,495 16,495 16,495 16,495 16,495 

Total shareholders' equity 431,031 415,051 395,940 373,102 325,073 

Total assets 3,835,081 3,564,730 3,404,818 3,378,351 2,837,234 

Selected Year-End Balances 

Net loans $ 3,026,496 $ 2,843,283 $ 2,631,916 s 2,585,622 s 2,127,560 

Securities 539,604 471,318 354,686 370,120 402,039 

Interest-earning assets 3,611,706 3,345,136 3,016,477 2,986,194 2,574,684 

Deposits 3,231,653 3,083,975 2,872,787 2,785,133 2,409,316 

Long-tenn debt 16,495 16,495 16,495 16,495 16,495 

Total shareholders' equity 442,438 419,272 390,853 387,623 333,274 

Total assets 3,984,403 3,714,059 3,461,633 3,368,238 2,917,466 

Performance Ratios 

Return on average assets 1.36°/o 1.52% 1.56% 1.43% 1.37% 

Return on average equity 12.1 13.0 13.4 12.9 12.0 

Return on average tangible co1nmon equity 14.8 15.8 16.5 16.2 14.7 

Net interest margin 3.50 3.76 3.98 4.33 3.96 

Efficiency ratio 54.8 53.7 53.7 55.8 57.2 

Dividend payout ratio 49.7 47.5 47.1 48.2 53.2 



Asset Quality 

Net charge-offs to average loans 

Provision for loan losses to average loans 

AllO\Vancc for loan losses to nonperforming loans 

Allo\vance for loan losses 10 total loans 

Consolidated Capital Ratios 

CET 1 Capital 

Tier 1 Capital 

Total Capital 

Tier I Leverage 

Average cquicy to average assets 

Tangible equity to tangible assets (end of period) 

Full-time equivalent einployees 

0.13% 0.29% 

0.15 0.26 

140.10 110.37 

0.65 0.67 

13.3% 13.7% 

13.9 14.3 

14.7 15.1 

10.1 10.2 

11.2 11.6 

9.3 9.3 

847 853 

0.18% 0.20% 

0.16 0.27 

127.62 90.25 

0.76 0.79 

• • 
13.4 13.0 

14.2 13.8 

9.9 9.8 

11.6 11.0 

9.3 9.5 

889 923 

*Basel III CET I ratio requirctnents were effective beginning January I, 2015 and \Vere nor required for prior periods. 

0.34% 

0.31 

96.59 

0.88 

• 
13.0 

13.9 

9.8 

11.5 

9.4 

843 

( l) • In May 2012, the Cotnpany acquired Virginia Savings Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Virginia Savings Bank. 

(2) - In January 2013, the Company acquired Community Financial Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary, Community Bank. 

(3) - In January 20 l 5, the Coinpany sold its insurance operations, Cityinsuranec. In Novc1nber 2015, the Co1npany acquired three 
branches in Lexington, Kentucky froin A1ncrican Founder's Bank. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

CITY HOLDING COMPANY 

City Holding Company (the "Co1npany"), a West Virginia corporation headquartered in Charleston, West Virginia, is 
a registered financial holding con1pany under the Bank Holding Company Act and conducts its principal activities through its 
\Vholly owned subsidiary, City National Bank of West Virginia ("City National"). City National is a retail and consu1ner-oricntcd 
community bank with 85 bank branches in West Virginia (57), Virginia ( 14), Kentucky ( 11) and Ohio (3). City National provides 
credit, deposit, and trust and invest1nent management services to its customers in a broad geographical area that includes many 
rural and small co1nmunity markets in addition to larger cities including Charleston (WV), Huntington (WV), Martinsburg (WV}, 
Winchester (VA), Staunton (VA), Virginia Beach (VA), Ashland (KY) and Lexington (KY). In the Company's key markets, the 
Company's primary subsidiary, City National, generally ranks in the top three relative to deposit 1narket share and the top two 
relative to branch share (Charleston/Huntington MSA, Beckley/Lewisburg Counties, Staunton MSA and Winchester, VA/WV 
Eastern Panhandle counties). In addition to its branch net\vork, City National's delivery channels include automated-teller-
1nachines ("ATMs"), mobile banking, debit cards, interactive voice response syste1ns, and Internet technology. The Company's 
business activities arc currently limited to one reportable business segment, which is community banking. 

In January 2015 the Company sold its insurance operations, Citylnsurance, to The Hilb Group effective January I, 
2015. As a result of this sale, the Company recognized a one-time after tax gain of$5.8 in ill ion in the first quarter of2015. 

On Noven1ber 6, 2015, the Co1npany purchased three branch locations from A1nerican Founders Bank, Inc. ("AFB") 
located in Lexington, Kentucky. The Company acquired approximately $119 million in performing loans and assu1ned deposit 
liabilities of approximately $145 million. The Company paid AFB a deposit premiu1n of 5.5% on non-tilnc deposits and l .Oo/o 
on prcmiun1 loan balances acquired. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the Company confonn to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and require 
management to n1akc estimates and develop assu1nptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and related 
footnotes. These estimates and assu1nptions are based on information available to 1nanagement as of the date of the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ significantly fro1n 1nanagcment's estimates. As this infonnation changes, management's 
esti1nates and assu1nptions used to prepare the Company's financial statements and related disclosures may also change. The 
1nost significant accounting policies follo\ved by the Company are presented in Note One of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements included herein. Based on the valuation techniques used and the sensitivity of financial statement amounts to the 
methods, assuinptions, and esti1nates underlying those atnonnts, management has identified: (i) the determination of the allowance 
for loan losses, (ii) income taxes and (iii) purchased crcdit-ilnpaired loans to be the accounting areas that require the most 
subjective or complex judgments and, as such, could be most subject to revision as new information becomes available. 

The Al/01va11ce and Provision for Loan Losses section of this Annual Report to Shareholders provides management's 
analysis of the Company's a!lowance for loan losses and related provision. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level 
that represents management's best estimate of probable losses in the loan portfolio. Management's determination of the 
appropriateness of the allo\vance for loan losses is based upon an evaluation of individual credits in the loan portfolio, historical 
loan loss experience, current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This detennination is inherently subjective, as it 
requires 1naterial estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans 
that may be susceptible to significant change. The allowance for loan losses related to loans considered to be impaired is generally 
evaluated based on the discounted cash flows using the impaired loan's initial effective interest rate or the fair value of the 
collateral for certain collateral dependent loans. 

The lnco111e Taxes section of this Annual Report to Shareholders provides management's analysis of the Company's 
inco1ne taxes. The Co1npany is subject to federal and state income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it conducts business. In 
computing the provision for income taxes, management 1nust make judgments regarding interpretation of laws in those 
jurisdictions. Because the application of tax laws and regulations for many types of transactions is susceptible to varying 
interpretations, an1ounts reported in the financial staten1ents could be changed at a later date upon final detenninations by taxing 
authorities. On a quarterly basis, the Company estimates its annual effective tax rate for the year and uses that rate to provide 
for income taxes on a year-to-date basis. The Company's unrecognized tax benefits could change over the next twelve months 
as a result of various factors. The Company is currently open to audit under the statute ofli1nitations by the Internal Revenue 
Service and various state taxing authorities for lhe years ended December 31, 2013 through 2015. 
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The Company values purchased credit-impaired loans at fair value in accordance \Vith Accounting Standards 
Codification ("ASC") Topic 310-30. In determining the estimated fair value, management considers several factors, such as 
estimated future credit losses, esti1nated prepayments, remaining Jives of the acquired loans and the estimated value of the 
underlying collateral in determining the present value ofthe cash flows expected to be received. For these loans, the expected 
cash flows that exceed the fair value of the loan represent the accretable yield, which is recognized as interest income on a levcl­
yicld basis over the expected cash flow periods of the loans. The non-accretable difference represents the difference between 
the contractually required principal and interest pay1nents and the cash flows expected to be collected based upon 1nanagement's 
estimation. Subsequent decreases in the expected cash flows will require the Company to evaluate the need for additions to the 
Company's allowance for loan losses. Subsequent increases in the expected cash flows \Viii result in a reversal ofthe provision 
for loan losses to the extent of prior charges with a corresponding adjustment to the accretable yield, which will result in the 
recognition of additional interest income over the remaining lives of the loans. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

The Company's financial perfonnance over the previous three years is summarized in the follo\ving table: 

2016 2015 2014 

Net income available to common shareholders (in thousands) $ 52,128 $ 54,097 $ 52,962 

Earnings per common share, basic $ 3.46 5 3.54 $ 3.40 

Earnings per common share, diluted $ 3.45 $ 3.53 $ 3.38 

ROA* l.36o/o 1.52% 1.56% 

ROE* 12.1% 13.0% 13.4% 

ROATCE* 14.8°/o 15.8% 16.5% 

*ROA (Return on Average Assets) is a measure of the effectiveness of asset utilization. ROE (Return on Average Equity) is a 
1neasure of the return on shareholders' investment. ROATCE (Return on Average Tangible Common Equity) is a 1neasure of the 
return on shareholders' equity less intangible assets. 

The Co1npany's tax equivalent net interest income increased $4.0 1nillion, or 3.4%, from S 115.9 million in 2015toS119.8 
million in 2016 (sec Net Interest Jnco111e). The Co1npany's provision for loan losses decreased $2.6 million from $7.0 million 
in 2015 to $4.4 million in 2016 (see Al/01vance and Provision for Loan Losses). Offsetting the aforementioned increase in tax­
equivalcnt net interest inco1ne and decrease in provision for loan losses \vere a decrease in non-interest inco1ne ofS8.4 million 
and an increase in non-interest expense of$3.2 1nillion (see Non-Interest l11co111e and Expense). As a result, the Company's net 
inco1ne decreased $2.0 million from $54.1 million in 2015 to $52.1 million in 2016 and the Company achieved a return on 
assets of l .36%, a return on tangible equity of I 4.8o/o and an efficiency ratio of 54.8%. 

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS 

Selected balance sheet fluctuations are su1nmarized in the following table (in millions): 

December 31, 

2016 2015 $Change % Change 

Gross loans $ 3,046.2 $ 2,862.5 $ 183.7 6.4o/o 

Investment securities 539.6 471.3 68.3 14.5 

Premises and equipment, net 75.2 77.3 (2.1) (2.7) 

Good\vill and other intangible assets, net 79.1 79.8 (0.7) (0.9) 

Total deposits 3,231.7 3,084.0 147.7 4.8 

Short-term borrowings 248.3 154.9 93.4 60.3 

Long-tenn debt 16.5 16.5 

Shareholders' equity 442.4 419.3 23.l 5.5 
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Gross loans increased $184 million, or 6.4o/o, from $2.86 billion at December 31, 2015 to $3.05 billion at December 31, 
2016. Com1ncrcial loans increased SJ22.3 mi!lion (9.4%) and residential real estate loans increased $68.3 1nillion (4.9%) from 
December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016. A significant portion of the increase in commercial loans during 2016 were in the 
Columbus, Ohio and Charlotte, North Carolina markets and were diversified across a broad base of industry types, such as 
multi-family housing, properties leased to the govem1nent, nursing homes, grocery and retail stores, and other com1nercial and 
industrial loans. 

lnvcst1nent securities increased $68 million, or 14.5o/o, from $471 million at December 31, 2015, to $540 1nillion at 
December 31, 2016. During 2016, in conjunction with its interest rate risk 1nanagemcnt strategy, the Company elected to grow 
investment balances and reduce cash balances to enhance net interest income. As part of this strategy, the Company purchased 
tax-exempt nlunicipal securities to improve its earnings by Jo,vering its effective income tax rate. Additionally, the Company 
intends to use the net proceeds from its current at-the-market co1nmon stock offering to support loan growth, bolster regulatory 
capital, and provide cash for possible future acquisitions. Pending this use, the proceeds have been invested by the Company in 
various invcstn1cnt securities. 

Premises and equipment, net decreased $2 million, or 2.7%, from $77 million at December 31, 2015 to $75 million at 
December 31, 201 6. Goodwill and other intangible assets, net decreased $1 million. 

Total deposits increased $148 million, or4.8%, from $3.08 billionatDccc1nber 31, 2015 to $3.23 billion at December 31, 
2016, partially due to a new customer relationship, which had a total deposit balance ofS80 1nillion as ofDecember 31, 2016. 
This custo1ner relationship docs not represent a significant risk to the Company's liquidity, as withdrawals by this customer may 
be offset by short-tcnn borrowings. Exclusive of this new customer relationship in the 2016, the remainder of the increase is 
due to growth in non-interest bearing deposits of $26 1nil!ion, growth in time deposits of$241nillion, growth in interest bearing 
demand deposits of$16 million and growth in savings deposit accounts ofSl million. 

Short-term borro\vings increased $93 million, or 60.3%, from Dcce1nber 31, 2015 to Dece1nber 31, 2016, primarily 
due to an increase in short-tenn FHLB advances. This increase was to help fund loan and investment growth in 2016. Long­
term debt balances remained flat at $16.5 mi!lion. 

Shareholders' equity increased $23.J 1nillion from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016 (see Capital Resources). 
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TABLE TWO 

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS AND NET INTEREST INCOME 

(Jn thousands) 

2016 2015 2014 

Avenii:e Vleldl Avcrngc Yield/ Avcrngc Yield/ 
Balance Inter<"! Rate Balance I merest Rate Balance lmcn:st Rate 

A.sets 

Loanponfolio"': 

Residential n,.•.il cstate"u1
1 ' 1.565,079 ' 60,736 3.88o/o ' 1.474,631 ' 57,692 3.91% ' 1,384,677 ' 55,627 4.02% 

Commcn:ial, financial, nnd agriculture!lM•I 1,318,094 52,812 4.01 1,175,707 52,177 ..... 1,163,449 54,799 4.71 

lnstollment loans to individuals'"'" 37,66-1 2,917 7.75 40,966 3.442 8.40 45.471 4.045 8.90 

Pl"C'liously sccuritizcd loans1' 1 1,673 l,796 2,187 

Total loons 2,920,837 118,138 4.04 2,691.304 115,107 4.28 2,593,597 116,658 4.50 

Securities: 

Taxable 444,llO 12,392 2.79 352,296 10.830 3.07 337,440 l 1.766 3.49 

Tax-exempil7! 51,096 2,494 4.88 31,389 1,749 5.57 28,464 1.757 6.17 

Total securities 495.206 l~.886 3.01 383,685 12,579 3.28 365,904 !3,523 3.70 

Deposits in depository institutions 10,115 9,733 9,205 

Total inten,.'St-caming asscL' 3,426,158 133,024 3.88 3,034.722 127,686 4.14 2,968,706 130,181 4.39 

C:ish and due from banks 95,295 180,965 130,183 

Hank premises and •"!Uipmem 76,056 76,136 80,459 

Other assets 257,525 243,902 246,618 

Less: allowance for loan losses (19,953) (20,995) (2l,l48) 

Total assels ' 3,835,081 ' 3,564,730 ' 3,404,818 

L!abllitle• 

lntcres!·bc'3ring demand deposits ' 685,399 "' 0.09% ' 644.961 '"' 0.08% ' 614,489 '" 0.10% 

Savings dcposils 772,296 "' 0.13 706,926 "' 0.10 632,510 '" 0.12 

Time dcposi1s"' 1,029,172 10.462 1.112 1,005,232 9.669 0.96 1,046.925 9,613 0.92 

Short-tenn borrowings 176,065 "' 0.27 145,199 "' 0.23 133,769 3'2 0.26 

Long·lcnn debt 16,495 "" 4.14 16,495 617 3.74 16.495 "' 3.67 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 2,679,427 13,207 0.49 2,518,813 11,830 0.47 2,444,188 11,960 0.49 

Nonintcrcst·bearing demand deposits 679,950 590.424 531.061 

Olhcr liabilities 44,67J 40,442 33,629 

Total shareholders' c-quity 431,031 415,051 395.940 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity s 3,8JS,08l ' 3,564,730 ' 3,404,818 

Net interest income ' 119,817 5 115.856 ' 118,22! 

Net yield on earning assets 3.50% J,76% 3,98% 

I. For purposes of this table, non~accruing loans have been included in average balances and loan fees, which are 

immaterial, have been included in interest income. 

2. Includes the Company's residential real estate and home equity loan categories. 

3. Included in the above table arc the following amounts (in thousands) for the accretion of the fair value adjustments 

related to the acquisitions ofVirginia Savings, Co1n1nunity and AFB: 

2016 2015 2014 

Residential real es!ate ' 698 s 893 s 884 

Commercial, financial, and agriculture 1,505 4,830 4,404 

Installment loans to individuals 112 275 715 

Tiinc deposits 592 687 785 

Tota! s 2/)07 s 6,685 $ 6,788 
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4. Includes the Company's commercial and industrial and co1nmcrcial real estate loan categories. 
5. Includes the Co1npany's consumer and DDA overdrafts loan categories. 
6. Effective January I, 2012, the carrying value ofthc Company's previously securitizcd loans was reduced to SO. 
7. Co1nputcd on a fully federal tax-equivalent basis assuming a tax rate of approximately 35%. 

NET INTEREST INCOME 
2016 vs. 2015 

The Co1npany's tax equivalent net interest inco1ne increased $4.0 1nil!ion, or 3.4%, fro1n $115.9 million in 2015 to 
$119.8 million in 2016. This increase was due primarily to an increase in average loan balances fro1n organic gro\vth ($127 
million) and fro1n loans associated \Vith the acquisition of three branches in the Lexington, Kentucky market in November 2015 
(approximately $102 million in loans) contributing additional net interest income of$9.0 million in 2016. In addition, higher 
average investment balances ($111.5 mi!lion) increased net interest income by $3.9 1nillion. During 2016, in conjunction with 
its interest rate risk management strategy, the Company elected to grow investment balances and reduce cash balances to enhance 
net interest inco1ne. As part ofthis strategy, the Company purchased tax-exempt municipal securities to improve its earnings 
by lowering its effective income tax rate. As a result of this strategy, the Company's overnight borrowings increased during 
2016 and the Company anticipates growing titnc deposits in 2017 to reduce overnight borrowings. These increases in net interest 
income were partially offset by lower accretion fron1 fair value adjust1nents on recent acquisitions that decreased net interest 
income $3.8 million ($6. 7 1nillion in 2015 coin pared to $2.9 million in 20 I 6) and margin compression, which lowered net interest 
income $3.9 million. The Company's reported !let interest tnargin decreased from 3. 76o/o for the year ended Decc1nber 31, 2015 
to 3.50% for the year ended December 31, 2016. Excluding the favorable impact of the accretion from fair value adjustments 
on recent acquisitions, the net interest 1nargin would have been 3.41 % for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 3.54% for the 
year ended December 31, 2015. This decrease was primarily caused by loan yields (excluding accretion) compressing fron1 
4.05% for the year ended December 3 I, 2015 to 3.96% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and by the yield on investment 
securities decreasing fro1n 3.28% to 3.01 % for the same period. 

Average interest-earning assets increased $341 million from 2015 to 2016, due to increases in com1nercial, financial, 
and agriculture loans ($142 million), investment securities (S 112 million) and residential real estate loans ($90 million). Average 
interest-bearing liabilities increased $161 million from 2015 due to increases in savings deposits ($65 million), interest-bearing 
de1nand deposits ($40 1nillion), short-tcnn borrowings ($31 million), and time deposits ($24 1nillion). 

The following table presents the actual and forecastcd accretion related to the fair value adjustn1ents on net interest 
inco1ne recorded as a result of the Community Bank, Virginia Savings Bank and AFB acquisitions (in thousands). The amounts 
in the table belo\v require manage1ncnt to 1nakc significant assumptions based on estimated future default, prepayment and 
discount rates. Actual perfonnancc could be significantly different fro1n that assumed, which could result in the actual results 
being materially different than those estin1ated belo\v. 

Year Ended 

Actual 
2014 
2015 

2016 

Forecasted 
2017 

2018 

2019 

Loans 

s 6,003 $ 

5,998 

2,315 

1,257 

981 

868 

Tin1e Deposits 

785 s 
687 

592 

16 

Total 

6,788 

6,685 

2,907 

1,273 

981 

868 
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2015 vs. 2014 

The Company's tax equivalent net interest income decreased $2.4 million, or 2.0o/o, from $118.2 million in 2014 to 
$115.9 1nillion in 2015. This decrease is due primarily to a decrease of25 basis points in the yield on interest-earning assets 
from 4.39% in 2014 to 4.14% in 2015. During 2015, the Company continued to originate a significant portion of its commercial 
loans based on WSJ Prime or LIBOR and has elected to maintain fixed rate investment security balances below 15% of total 
assets. The Company believes that these measures \Viii position its balance sheet to benefit from an increasing rate environment. 
The Company's reported net interest margin decreased from 3.98°/a for the year ended December 31, 2014 to 3. 76°/a for the year 
ended December 31, 20 l 5. Excluding the favorable impact of the accretion from fair value adjustments on recent acquisitions, 
the net interest 1nargin would have been 3.54% for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 3.75o/o for the year ended December 
31, 2014. This decrease was primarily caused by loan yields compressing from 4.27% for the year ended December 31, 2014 
to 4.05% for the year ended December 31, 2015. 

Average interest-earning assets increased S 116 million from 2014 to 2015, as increases attributable to residential real 
estate ($90 million), investment securities ($18 million) and deposits with depository institutions ($1 million) were partially 
offset by decreases in installment loans to individuals ($5 million). Average interest-bearing liabilities increased $75 million 
from 2014 due to increases in savings deposits ($74 million), interest-bearing de1nand deposits ($30 1nillion) and short-term 
borrowings ($1 I million), partially offset by a decrease in time deposits ($42 million). 

TABLE FOUR 
RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE 
(/11 thousands) 

2016 vs. 2015 2015 vs. 2014 
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease) 
Due to Change Jn: Due to Change In: 

Volume Rate Not Volume Rate Net 

Interest-earning assets: 

Loan portfolio 

Residential real estate $ 3,539 $ (495) $ 3,044 s 3,614 $ (1,549) $ 2,065 

Co1n1nercial, financial, and agriculture 6,319 (5,684) 635 572 (2,683) (2,111) 

Installment loans to individuals (277) (248) (525) (451) (663) {l,114) 

Previously securitized loans (123) (123) {391) (391) 

Total loans 9,581 (6,550) 3,031 3,735 (5,286) {l,551) 

Securities: 

Taxable 2,822 (1,260) 1,562 518 (1,454) (936) 

Tax-cxcn1pt'" 1,098 (353) 745 181 (189) (8) 

Total securities 3,920 (1,613) 2,307 699 (1,643) (944) 

Total interest-earning assets $ 13,501 $ (8,163) $ 5,338 s 4,434 $ (6,929) $ (2,495) 

Interest-bearing liabilities: 

Interest-bearing demand deposits $ 32 $ 78 $ 110 $ 30 $ (140) $ (110) 

Savings deposits 66 197 263 92 (164) (72) 

Time deposits 230 563 793 (383) 439 56 

Shortfitcrm borrowings 70 75 145 29 (44) (15) 

Long-term debt 66 66 11 11 

Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 398 $ 979 $ 1,377 $ (232) $ 102 $ (130) 

Net Interest Income $ 13,103 $ (9,142) $ 3,961 $ 4,666 $ (7,031) $ (2,365) 

I. Fully federal taxable equivalent using a tax rate ofapproxin1ately 35%. 
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures 

Management ofthc Company uses 1neasures in its analysis of the Company's performance other than those in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principals in the United States of America ("GAAP"). These measures are useful when 
evaluating the underlying performance of the Company's operations. The Company's management believes that these non­
GAAP measures enhance comparability of results \Vi th prior periods and demonstrate the effects of significant gains and charges 
in the current period. The Company's management believes that investors may use these non-GAAP financial measures to 
evaluate the Co1npany's financial performance without the impact of these items that may obscure trends in the Company's 
pcrfom1ance. These disclosures should not be viewed as a substitute for financial measures detennincd in accordance with 
GAAP, nor are they comparable to non-GAAP financial 1neasures that may be presented by other companies. The follo\ving 
table reconciles fully taxable equivalent net interest inco1ne and fully taxable equivalent net interest income excluding accretion 
with net interest income as derived from the Company's financial statements (in thousands): 

TABLE THREE 
NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES 
(In thousands) 

2016 2015 

Net interest income ("GAAP") $ 118,945 $ 115,244 $ 

Taxable equivalent adjus11ncnt 872 612 

Net interest income, fully taxable equivalent $ 119,817 $ 115,856 $ 

Average interest earning assets $ 3,426,158 $ 3,084,722 $ 

Net interest 1nargin 3.SOo/o 3.76% 

Net interest inco1ne ("GAAP") $ 118,945 $ 115,244 s 
Taxable equivalent adjustment 872 612 

Accretion related to fair value adjusllnents (2,907) (6,685) 

Net interest inco1ne, fully taxable equivalent, excluding accretion $ 116,910 $ 109,171 $ 

Average interest earning assets $ 3,426,158 $ 3,084,722 $ 

Net interest n1argin (excluding accretion) 3.41 Ofo 3.54% 

NON-INTEREST INCOME AND NON-INTEREST EXPENSE 
2016 vs. 2015 

Selected ineoine statement fluctuations are summarized in the follo\ving table (dollars in millions): 

Net investment security gains 

Gain on sale of insurance division 

Non-interest income, excluding net investment securities gains 
and gain on sale of insurance division 

Non-interest expense 

$ 

For the year ended 
December 31, 

2016 2015 

3.S $ 

55.3 

96.2 

S Change 

2.1 $ 1.4 

I 1.1 {II.I) 

54.0 1.3 

93.0 3.2 

2014 

117,606 

615 

118,221 

2,968,706 

3.98% 

117,606 

615 

(6,788) 

111,433 

2,968,706 

3.75% 

% Change 

64.9% 

(100.0) 

2.4 

3.5 

During the years ended Dece1nber 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company realized investment gains of$3.5 million and $2.1 
1nillion, respectively, from the call or sale oftrust preferred securities, which represented a partial recovery ofi1npainnent charges 
previously recognized. During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company sold its insurance operations, City Insurance, 
which resulted in the recognition of a pre-tax gain of $11.1 million. 
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Exclusive of these gains, non-interest inco1ne increased S 1.3 1nillion to $55.3 million for the year ended December 31, 
2016 as compared to S54.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. This is primarily due to increases in bankcard revenue 
of $0.6 million, or 3.9o/o, trust revenues ofS0.4 million, or 8.8o/o and service charges of$0.4 million, or 1.5%. 

Non-interest expenses increased $3.2 1nillion from the year ended December 31, 2015 to the year ended December 31, 
2016. During 2015, the Co1npany recognized $0.6 million of acquisition and integration expenses associated with the acquisition 
of three branches in Lexington, Kentucky. Excluding acquisition related expenses, non-interest expenses increased $3.8 million 
from S92.4 1nillion for the year ended Dece1nbcr 31, 2015 to $96.2 1nillion for the year ended December 31, 2016. This increase 
was largely due to an increase in salaries and employee benefits ($2.1 million) due to salary adjustments and increased health 
insurance costs. In addition, non-interest expenses increased $1. 7 million due to the annual operating costs of the three branches 
acquired in November 2015 and from an increase ofS0.5 million in bankcard expenses due to increased transaction volumes. 

2015 vs. 2014 

Selected inco1ne statement fluctuations arc summarized in the following table (dollars in millions): 

Net investment security gains 

Gain on sale of insurance division 

Non-interest inco1ne, excluding net investment securities gains 

Non-interest expense 

$ 

For the year ended 
Dece1nber 31, 

2015 2014 

2.1 s 1.2 

11. ! 

54.0 57.6 

93.0 95.0 

S Change 

$ 0.9 

11. l 

(3.6) 

(2.0) 

% Change 

75.0% 

100.0 

(6.3) 

(2.1) 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company sold its insurance operations, City Insurance, which resulted 
in the recognition of a pre-tax gain ofS 11.1 1nil!ion. Additionally, the Company realized invest1nent gains of$2. l million from 
the call of trust preferred securities which represented a partial recovery of impairment charges previously recognized. During 
the year ended December 31, 2104, the Company realized investment gains of $1.2 million from the sale of certain equity 
positions related to co1n1nunity banks and bank holding companies. 

Exclusive of these gains, non-interest inco1ne excluding net investment securities gains and the gain on sale of the 
insurance division decreased S3.6 million to $54.0 1nillion for the year ended Dccen1bcr 31, 2015 as coin pared to $57 .6 million 
for the year ended Dece1nber 3!,2014. This decrease was primarily attributable to decreases in insurance co1nmission revenues 
ofS6.0 million, due to the sale ofCitylnsurance and service charges ofS0.3 million, or 1.0%. These decreases were partially 
offset by increases of(i) other income of$1.0 million, primarily due to mortgage banking activities, (ii) bankcard revenue of 
S0.8 million, or 5.5%, and (iii) trust revenues ofS0.5 million, or 11.1%. 

During 2015, the Company recognized S0.6 million of acquisition and integration expenses associated with the 
completed acquisition of three branches from AFB. Excluding these expenses, non-interest expenses decreased $2.6 million 
from $95.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 to $92.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. Salaries and 
employee benefits decreased $3.9 million from 2014 largcly as a result of the sale of City Insurance and an overall reduction of 
retail branch staff. Additionally, advertising expenses decreased S0.8 million from 2014. These decreases were partially offset 
by increases in other expenses of$ l .3 1nillion and repossessed asset losses of SO. 7 million. Other expenses increased primarily 
as a result of the \Vrite down ofa partnership invest1nent ofSl.45 million in 2015. 

INCOME TAXES 

The Company recorded income tax expense ofS25.1 million, $28.4 million and $24.3 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. The Company's effective tax rates for 2016, 2015 and 2014 were 32.5%, 34.4% and 31.4%, respectively. A 
reconciliation of the effective tax rate to the statutory rate is included in Note Thirteen of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. During the years ended Dece1nber 31, 2016, 2015 and2014, the Company reduced income tax expense by S0.5 
million, S0.6 million and $1.8 million, respectively due to the recognition of previously unrecognized tax positions resulting 
from the close of the statute of li1nitations for previous tax years. In addition, as a result of differences between the book and 
tax basis of the assets that were sold in conjunction \vith the sale ofCitylnsurance, the Company's income tax expense increased 
by SI.I million. Exclusive of these itcn1s, the Company's tax rate from operations was 33.2%, 33.6% and 33.8% for the years 
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects ofte1nporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The Company's net deferred tax assets 
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decreased from $30.0 million at Dcce1nber 31, 2015 to $28.0 million at December 31, 2016. The components of the Company's 
net deferred tax assets are disclosed in Note Thirteen of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Realization of the most 
significant net deferred tax assets is primarily dependent on future events taking place that will reverse the current deferred tax 
assets. For exa1nplc, realization of the deferred tax asset attributable to other-than-temporary impairment losses on securities, 
\Vhich have already been recognized in the Co1npany's financial statements, would be realized if the impaired securities were 
dcc1ned to be '\vorthlcss" by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") or when the securities were sold and the loss could be 
recognized for tax purposes. The deferred tax asset and/or liability associated with unrealized securities losses is the tax impact 
of the unrealized gains and/or losses on the Company's available-for-sale security portfolio. At December 31, 2016 the Company 
had a deferred tax asset ofSl.3 1nillion and at Dcccinber 31, 2015, the Company had a deferred tax liability ofS0.6 million 
associated \Vi th unrealized securities losses and gains. The impact of the Company's unrealized gains is noted in the Company's 
Consolidated Statc1ncnts of Changes in Shareholders' Equity as an adjust1nent to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 
(Loss). This deferred tax asset would be realized if the unrealized securities losses on the Company's securities were realized 
from either the sales or 1naturities of the related securities. At Dece1nber 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had a deferred tax 
asset of $3.8 1nillion and S6. 7 million, respectively, associated with other-than-temporarily impaired securities. The deferred 
tax asset at December 31, 2016 would be realized if the Company's other-than-temporarily impaired securities were sold, or 
were dec1ned "worthless" in accordance \Vith the IRS tax code. The deferred tax asset associated with the allowance for loan 
losses decreased slightly from $7.4 million at December 31, 2015 to $7.3 nlillion at December 31, 2016. The deferred tax asset 
associated with the allowance for loan losses is expected to be realized as additional loan charge-offs, which have already been 
provided for within the Company's financial state1nents, are recognized for tax purposes. The deferred tax asset associated \Vi th 
the Company's previously sccuritizcd loans is expected to be realized as the Company recognizes income for financial statement 
purposes fro1n these loans in future periods. The deferred tax asset associated with these loans decreased fro1n $4.3 million at 
Decc1nber 31, 2015 to $4.0 1nillion at Dece1nber 31, 2016. The deferred tax asset associated with the Company's intangible 
assets decreased to S 1.3 million at December 3 1, 2016. The Company believes that it is more likely than not that each of the 
deferred tax assets \Vill be realized and that no valuation allo\vance \Vas necessary as of December 31, 2016 or 2015. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Market risk is the risk of loss due to adverse changes in current and future cash flows, fair values, earnings or capital 
due to adverse movements in interest rates and other factors, including foreign exchange rates, underlying credit risk and 
commodity prices. Because the Company has no significant foreign exchange activities and holds no commodities, interest rate 
risk represents the primary risk factor affecting the Company's balance sheet and net interest margin. Significant changes in 
interest rates by the Federal Reserve could result in similar changes in LIBOR interest rates, prime rates, and other benchmark 
interest rates that could matcrial!y affect the cstl1nated fair value of the Company's investment securities portfolio, interest paid 
on the Company's short-term and long-term borrowings, interest earned on the Company's loan portfolio and interest paid on 
its deposit accounts. The Co1npany utilizes derivative instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, to help manage its interest rate 
risk on commercial loans. 

The Company's Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO") has been delegated the responsibility of managing the 
Company's interest-sensitive balance sheet accounts to maximize earnings \Vhile 1nanaging interest rate risk. ALCO, comprised 
of various 1nembers of executive and senior n1anagement, is also responsible for establishing policies to monitor and limit the 
Co1npany's exposure to interest rate risk and to 1nanage the Company's liquidity position. ALCO satisfies its responsibilities 
through quarterly meetings during which product pricing issues, liquidity 1neasures and interest sensitivity positions are 
monitored. 

In order to measure and manage its interest rate risk, the Company uses an asset/liability management simulation 
soft\vare nlodcl to periodically update the interest sensitivity position of the Co1npany's balance sheet. The model is also used 
to perfor1n analyses that 1neasure the ilnpact on net interest income and capital as a result of various changes in the interest rate 
cnvironn1ent. Such analyses quantify the effects of various interest rate scenarios on projected net interest income. 

The Company's policy objective is to avoid negative fluctuations in net inco1ne or the economic value of equity of 
1norc than l 5o/o within a l 2-1nonth period, assuming an immediate parallel increase or decrease of400 basis points. The Company 
measures the long-term risk associated with sustained increases and decreases in rates through analysis of the impact to changes 
in rates on the economic value of equity. 

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the Company's net income to various interest rate scenarios. The 
results of the sensitivity analyses presented below differ from the results used internally by ALCO in that, in the analyses below, 
interest rates are assumed to have an immediate and sustained parallel shock. The Co1npany recognizes that rates arc volatile, 
but rarely 1nove with i1n1nediate and parallel effects. Internally, the Company considers a variety of interest rate scenarios that 
are deemed to be possible \Vhilc considering the level of risk it is willing to assume in "worst~case" scenarios such as shown by 
the following: 
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hnincdiate Basis Point Change in Interest Rates 

December 31, 2016 

December 31, 2015 

+400 
+300 
+200 
+100 

-50 

-100 

+400 

+300 

+200 

+100 

Iinplied Federal Funds Rate Associated Esti1nated Increase (Decrease) in Net 
with Change in Interest Rates Income Over 12 Months 

4.75o/o +8.0% 
3.75 +9.9 
2.75 +9.7 
1.75 +6.2 
0.25 -6.1 

(0.25) -9.5 

4.50% +6.0% 

3.50 +7.5 

2.50 +6.8 

1.50 +3.3 

These estimates arc highly dependent upon assumptions made by manage1nent, including, but not limited to, assumptions 
regarding the manner in \Vhich interest-bearing dcn1and deposit and savings deposit accounts reprice in different interest rate 
scenarios, changes in the composition of deposit balances, pricing behavior of competitors, prepay1nents ofloans and deposits 
under alternative rate environments, and ne\v business volu1ncs and pricing. As a result, there can be no assurance that the 
estimates above will be achieved in the event that interest rates increase during 2017 and beyond. The csti1nates above do not 
necessarily itnply that the Co1npany will experience increases in net income ifmarket interest rates rise. The table above indicates 
how the Co1npany's net inco1ne and the economic value of equity behave relative to an increase or decrease in rates compared 
to what \vould otherwise occur if rates remain stable. 

Based upon the estimates above, the Con1pany believes that its net income is positively correlated with increasing rates 
as compared to the ]eve! of net income the Company 'vould expect if interest rates remain flat or decrease. 

LIQUIDITY 

The Company evaluates the adequacy ofliquidity at both the Parent Co1npany level and at the banking subsidiary level. 
At the Parent Company level, the principal source of cash is dividends from its banking subsidiary, City National. Dividends 
paid by City National to the Parent Co1npany are subject to certain legal and regulatory limitations. Generally, any dividends in 
an1ounts that exceed the earnings retained by City National in the current year plus retained net profits for the preceding two 
years must be approved by regulatory authorities. At December 31, 2016, City National could pay dividends up to $57 .5 million 
without prior regulatory permission. 

On Dccen1ber 19, 2016, the Company announced that it had filed a prospectus supplement to its existing shelf registration 
statetncnt on Form S-3 for the sale of its common stock having an aggregate value of up to $55 million through an "at-the­
market" equity offering progra1n. The Co1npany intends to use the net proceeds from the offering to support loan growth, bolster 
regulatory capital, and provide cash for possible future acquisitions. Pending this use, the proceeds will be invested by the 
Company in various investment securities. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company sold approximately 108,000 
common shares at a weighted average price ofS66.21, net ofbroker fees. Through February 24, 2017, the Company has sold 
approxiinatc!y 548,000 con1mon shares at a weighted average price of$64.82, net of broker fees. These shares include shares 
sold, but not settled \Vi th the purchaser as of February 24, 2017. 

During 20!6, the Parent Company used cash obtained fro1n the dividends received primarily to: (1) pay common 
dividends to shareholders, (2) remit interest payments on the Company's junior subordinated debentures and (3) fund repurchases 
of the Company's common shares. Additional information concerning sources and uses of cash by the Parent Company is 
reflected in Note Twenty of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Over the next 12 months, the Parent Co1npany has an obligation to remit interest payments approximating $0. 7 million 
on the junior subordinated debentures held by City Holding Capital Trust III. Additionally, the Parent Company anticipates 
continuing the payment of dividends, which arc expected to approximate $26.3 million on an annualized basis for 2017 based 
on co1nmon shareholders of record at December 31, 2016 at a dividend rate ofS I .72 for 2017. However, interest payments on 
the debentures can be deferred for up to five years under certain circumstances and dividends to shareholders can, if necessary, 
be suspended. In addition to these anticipated cash needs, the Parent Company has operating expenses and other contractual 

12 



obligations, which are estimated to require Sl.3 million of additional cash over the next 12 months. As of December 31, 2016, 
the Parent Company reported a cash balance of S26.5 million and manage1nent believes that the Parent Company's available 
cash balance, together with cash dividends from City National, will be adequate to satisfy its funding and cash needs over the 
next twelve months. 

Excluding the interest and dividend payments discussed above, the Parent Company has no significant commitments 
or obligations in years after 2017 other than the repayment of its $16.5 million obligation under the debentures held by City 
Holding Capital Trust III. However, this obligation docs not mature until June 2038, or earlier at the option of the Parent Company. 
It is expected that the Parent Co1npany will be able to obtain the necessary cash, either through dividends obtained from City 
National or the issuance of other debt, to fully repay the debentures at their 1naturity. 

City National 1nanagcs its liquidity position in an effort to effectively and economically satisfy the funding needs of 
its customers and to accommodate the scheduled rcpay1ncnt of borrowings. Funds arc available to City National from a number 
of sources, including depository relationships, sales and 1naturitics \Vithin the investinent securities portfolio, and borrowings 
from the Federal Ho1nc Loan Bank ("FHLB") and other financial institutions. As of December 31, 2016, City National's assets 
arc significantly funded by deposits and capital. City National maintains borrowing facilities with the FHLB and other financial 
institutions that can be accessed as necessary to fund operations and to provide contingency funding 1nechanisms. As of 
Dccc1nbcr 31, 2016, City National had the capacity to borro\v an additional SI .6 billion from the FHLB and other financial 
institutions under existing borrowing facilities. City National maintains a contingency funding plan, incorporating these 
borrowing facilities, to address liquidity needs in the event of an institution-specific or systemic financial industry crisis. Also, 
although it has no current intention to do so, City National could liquidate its unpledged securities, if necessary, to provide an 
additional funding source. City National also segregates certain mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities, and other 
invest1ncnt securities in a separate subsidiary so that it can separately monitor the asset quality of these primarily mortgage­
rclated assets, which could be used to raise cash through securitization transactions or obtain additional equity or debt financing 
if necessary. 

The Company manages its asset and liability mix to balance its desire to maxi1nize net interest income against its desire 
to minimize risks associated \vith capitalization, interest rate volatility, and liquidity. With respect to liquidity, the Company has 
chosen a conservative posture and believes that its liquidity position is strong. As illustrated in the Consolidated State1nents of 
Cash Flows, the Co1npany generated $65.3 million of cash fron1 operating activities during 2016, primarily fro1n interest income 
received on loans and investments, net of interest expense paid on deposits and borrowings. 

The Company has obligations to extend credit, but these obligations are pri1narily associated with existing home equity 
loans that have predictable borrowing patterns across the portfolio. The Company has investment security balances with carrying 
values that totaled $539.6 million at Dcccn1ber 31, 2016, and that greatly exceeded the Company's non-deposit sources of 
borrowing, which totaled $264.8 1nillion. 

The Company's net loan to asset ratio is 76.0% as ofDccember31, 2016 and deposit balances fund 81.1% of total 
assets as compared to 67 .5°/o for its peers (Bank Holding Company Peer Group \Vi th assets ranging fro1n $3 billion to SI 0 billion). 
Further, the Company's deposit mix has a very high proportion of transaction and savings accounts that fund 55.0o/o of the 
Company's total assets and the Company uses tin1e deposits over $250,000 to fund 2.6% of total assets compared to its peers, 
\Vhich fund 12.5% oftotal assets with such deposits. 

INVESTMENTS 

The Company's invest1nent portfolio increased $68 million, or 14.5%, from $471 million at December 31, 2015, to 
$540 ntillion at Dccen1ber 31, 2016. During 2016, in conjunction with its interest rate risk management strategy, the Company 
elected to grow investment balances (pri1narily mortgage-backed and municipal securities} and reduce cash balances to enhance 
net interest income. As part of this strategy, the Company purchased tax-exempt municipal securities to improve its earnings 
by lowering its effective income tax rate. Additionally, the Company intends to use the net proceeds fro1n the current at-the­
markct common stock offering to support loan gro\vth, bolster regulatory capital, and provide cash for possible future acquisitions. 
Pending this use, the proceeds have been invested by the Company in various investment securities. 

The investinent portfolio is structured to provide flexibility in managing liquidity needs and interest rate risk, \Vhilc 
providing acceptable rates of return. 

The majority of the Company's investtncnt securities continue to be mortgage-backed securities. The mortgage-backed 
securities in which the Company has invested are predominantly undenvritten to the standards of, and guaranteed by government­
sponsorcd agencies such as Fannie Mac ("FNMA") and Freddie Mac ("FHLMC"). 
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The Company's municipal bond portfolio of$82.4 1nillion as ofDecember 31, 2016 has an average tax equivalent yield 
of 4.64o/o \Vith an average maturity of 12.5 years. The average dollar amount invested in each security is S0.5 million. The 
portfolio has 64% rated "A" or better and the remaining portfolio is unrated, as the issuances represented small issuances of 
revenue bonds. Additional credit support was been purchased by the issuer for 37% of the portfolio, while 63% has no additional 
credit support. Management does underwrite I 00% of the portfolio on an annual basis, using the same guidelines that arc used 
to underwrite its commercial loans. Revenue bonds were 72% of the portfolio, while the remaining 28% were general obligation 
bonds. Geographically, the portfolio supports the Company's footprint, with 71% of the portfolio being from municipalities 
throughout West Virginia, and the remainder from co1nmunities in Ohio, Indiana, Kentucky and various other states. 

TABLE FIVE 
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 

The carrying value of the Company's securities are presented in the following table (in thousands): 

Carrying Values as ofDece1nber 31, 

2016 2015 2014 
Securities available-for-sale: 

Obligations of states and political subdivisions $ 82,368 $ 50,697 $ 42,096 

U.S. Treasuries and U.S. government agencies 3 5 1,827 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

U.S. government agencies 330,814 288,197 187,328 

Private label 942 1,231 1,704 

Trust preferred securities 6,662 5,858 9,036 

Corporate securities 23,574 18,693 7,317 

Total Debt Securities available-for-sale 444,363 364,681 249,308 

Marketable equity securities 4,231 3,273 3,213 

Investment funds 1,489 1,512 1,522 

Total Securities Available-for-Sale 450,083 369,466 254,043 
Securities held-to-maturity: 

Mortgage backed securities 71,169 84,937 86,742 

Trust preferred securities 4,000 4,000 4,044 

Total Securities Held-to-Maturity 75,169 88,937 90,786 
Other investment securities: 

Non-marketable equity securities 14,352 12,915 9,857 

Total Other Investment Securities 14,352 12,915 9,857 

Total Securities $ 539,604 $ 471,318 $ 354,686 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company transferred certain securities from available~for-sale to held­
to-1naturity. The non-cash transfers of securities into the held-to~1naturity categories from available-for-sale were made at fair 
value, which \Vas $83.4 million on the date ofthc transfer. 

Included in non-1narketable equity securities in the table above at December 31, 2016 arc $6.2 million ofFederal Home 
Loan Bank stock and $8.2 1nillion of Federal Reserve Bank stock. At December 31, 2016, there were no securities of any non­
govemn1cntal issuers whose aggregate carrying or cstin1ated fair value exceeded 10% of shareholders' equity. 
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The weighted average yield of the Con1pany's investment portfolio is presented in the following table (dollars in 
thousands): 

Securities available-for-sale: 

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 

U.S. Treasuries and U.S. government agencies 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

U.S. govcmn1cnt agencies 

Private label 

Tntst preferred securities 

Corporate securities 

Tola! Debt Securilies available-for-sale 

Securities held-to-maturity: 

U.S. governinent agencies 

Trust preferred securities 

Total Securities Jleld-to-Maturity 

Total debt securities 

Within 

One Year 

After One But After Five But 

Within Five Years Within Ten Years 
After 

Ten Years 
A1nount Yield Atnount Yield A1nount Yield A1nount Yield 

$ 2,193 3.43% $ 13,688 3.60% $ 13,245 3.34% $ 53,242 3.15% 

3 1.36 

18 2.92 1,809 4.08 39,599 2.34 289,388 2.32 

99 4.16 843 3.07 

6,662 3.12 

2,032 6.25 18,318 5.03 3,224 6.09 
2,211 3.43 17,631 3.96 71,162 3.22 353,359 2.50 

71,169 2.69 

4,000 9.30 

75,169 3.04 

$ 2,211 3.43o/o S 17,631 3.96% $ 71,162 3.22% $428,528 2.59% 

Weighted-average yields on tax-cxc1npt obligations of states and political subdivisions have becncon1puted on a taxable­
equivalent basis using the federal statutory tax rate of 35%. Average yields on invcslinents available-for-sale are computed 
based on amortized cost. Mortgage-backed securities have been allocated to their respective niaturity groupings based on their 
contractual maturity. 

TABLE SIX 
LOAN PORTFOLIO 

The co1nposition of the Co1npany's loan portfolio as of the dates indicated follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Residential real estate $ 1,451,462 $ l,383,133 $ 1,294,576 $ 1,204,450 $ l,031,435 

Home equity 141,965 147,036 145,604 146,090 143,110 

Commercial and industrial 185,667 165,340 140,548 156,777 116,645 

Commercial real estate 1,229,516 1,127,581 1,028,755 1,048,573 814,064 

Consumer 32,545 36,083 39,705 46,402 36,564 

ODA overdrafts 5,071 3,361 2,802 3,905 4,551 

Gross loans $ 3,046,226 $ 2,862,534 $ 2,651,990 s 2,606,197 $ 2,146,369 

Loan balances increased $184 million from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016 (see details below). 

Residential real estate loans increased S68 million from December 31, 2015. Residential real estate loans represent 
loans to consu1ners that are secured by a first lien on residential property. Residential real estate loans provide for the purchase 
or refinance ofa residence and first-lien home equity loans allow consumers to borrow against the equity in their home. These 
loans primarily consist of single family 3 and 5 year adjustable rate mortgages with terms that amortize up to 30 years. City 
National also offers fixed-rate residential real estate loans that arc sold in the secondary market that are not included on the 
Co1npany's balance sheet and City National does not retain the servicing rights to these loans. Residential mortgage loans are 
generally underwritten to comply with Fannie Mac guidelines, while the home equity loans are undenvritten with typically less 
documentation, but \Vith lower loan-to-value ratios and shorter maturities. At Dece1nber 31, 2016, $14 million of the residential 
real estate loans were for properties under construction. 
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1-lomccquity loans decreased $5 million fro in December 31, 2015 to $142 million at December 31, 2016. City National's 
home equity loans represent loans to consumers that are secured by a second (or junior) lien on a residential property. Home 
equity loans allow consumers to borrow against the equity in their ho1nc without paying off an existing first lien. These loans 
consist of home equity lines of credit ("HELOC") and amortized home equity loans that require monthly installment payments. 
Ho1ne equity loans arc underwritten with less documentation, lower loan-to-va!uc ratios and for shorter ter1ns than residential 
real estate loans. The amount of credit extended is directly related to the value of the real estate at the time the loan is made. 

The commercial and industrial ("C&I") loan portfolio consists of loans to corporate borrowers pri1narily in small to 
n1id-size industrial and commercial companies. Collateral securing these loans includes equipment, machinery, inventory, 
receivables and vehicles. C&l loans are considered to contain a higher level of risk than other loan types, although care is taken 
to minimize these risks. Numerous risk factors in1pact this portfolio, including industry specific risks such as economy, new 
technology, labor rates and cyclicality, as well as customer specific factors, such as cash flow, financial structure, operating 
controls and asset quality. C&l loans increased S20 1nillion to $185.7 million at December 31, 2016. 

Commercial real estate loans consist of commercial mortgages, which generally are secured by nonresidential and 
1nulti-fa1nily residential properties, including hotc!/n1otcl and apartment lending. Commercial real estate loans are to many of 
the san1e customers and carry si1nilar industry risks as C&l loans, but have different collateral risk. Com1nercial real estate 
loans increased SI 02 million to S 1.23 billion at December 31, 2016. A significant portion of the increase in commercial loans 
during 2016 were in the Columbus, Ohio and Charlotte, North Carolina markets and were diversified across a broad base of 
industry types, such as multi-family housing, properties leased to the government, nursing homes, grocery and retail stores, and 
other commercial and industrial loans. At Dece1nber 31, 2016, $13 million of the commercial real estate loans were for 
commercial properties under construction. 

The Company categorizes commercial loans by industry according to the North American Industry Classification 
System (NAICS) to tnonitor the portfolio for possible concentrations in one or tnorc industries. As of December 31, 2016, City 
National's loans to borrowers \vi thin the Lessors ofNonresidentia\ Buildings categories exceeded 10% of total loans (13%). No 
other industry classification exceeded I Oo/o of total loans as of Dece1nber 31, 2016. 

Consumer loans 1nay be secured by auto1nobiles, boats, recreational vehicles and other personal property. City National 
1nonitors the risk associated with these types of loans by monitoring such factors as portfolio growth, lending policies and 
econon1ic conditions. Undcnvriting standards arc continually evaluated and modified based upon these factors. Consu1ner loans 
decreased $4 million during 2016. 

The follo\ving table shO\VS the scheduled 1naturity of loans outstanding as of December 31, 2016 (in thousands): 

Residential real estate 

Home equity 

Commercial and industrial 

Commercial real estate 

Consumer 

Total loans 

Loans maturing after one year with interest rates that are: 

Fixed until maturity 

Variable or adjustable 

Total 

Within One 
Year 

$ 148,071 

23,670 

84,823 

302,393 

18,062 

$ 577,019 

s 365,499 

2,103,708 

s 2,469,207 

After One But 
Within Five 

Years 

$ 509,101 

43,835 

93,487 

558,354 

18,789 

$ 1,223,566 

After Five 
Years Total 

$ 794,290 s 1,451,462 

74,460 141,965 

7,357 185,667 

368,769 1,229,516 

765 37,616 

s 1,245,641 s 3,046,226 
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ALLOWANCE AND PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 

Management systematically 1nonitors the loan portfolio and the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses 
("ALLL") on a quarterly basis to provide for probable losses incurred in the portfolio. Management assesses the risk in each 
loan type based on historical delinquency and Joss trends, the general ccono1nic environment of its local 1narkcts, individual 
loan perfonnancc, and other relevant factors. Individual credits in excess of$ I million are selected at least annually for detailed 
loan revic\VS, which are utilized by managen1ent to assess the risk in the portfolio and the appropriateness of the allowance. Due 
to the nature of com1nercial lending, evaluation of the appropriateness of the allowance as it relates to these loan types is often 
based 1norc upon specific credit review, with consideration given to the potential impairment of certain credits and historical 
loss rates, adjusted for general econo1nic conditions and other inherent risk factors. Conversely, due to the homogeneous nature 
of the real estate and installment portfolios, the portions of the a!lowance allocated to those portfolios are primarily based on 
prior Joss history of each portfolio, adjusted for general economic conditions and other inherent risk factors. Risk factors 
considered by the Co1npany in completing this analysis include: (1) uncmployn1ent and economic trends in the Company's 
markets, (2) concentrations of credit, if any, atnong any industries, (3) trends in loan growth, loan 1nix, delinquencies, losses or 
credit impairment, (4) adherence to lending policies and others. Each risk factor is designated as low, 1noderate/incrcasing, or 
high based on the Con1pany's assessment of the risk to loss associated with each factor. Each risk factor is then weighted to 
consider probability of occurrence. 

The allowance not specifically allocated to individual credits is generally detennined by analyzing potential exposure 
and other qualitative factors that could negatively impact the overall credit risk of the loan portfolio. Loans not individually 
evaluated for impainncnt arc grouped by pools with similar risk characteristics and the related historical loss rates are adjusted 
to reflect current inherent risk factors, such as une1nploy1nent, overall economic conditions, concentrations of credit, loan growth, 
classified and i1npaired loan trends, staffing, adherence to lending policies, and loss trends. 

Determination of the a!lowance for loan losses is subjective in nature and requires management to periodically reassess 
the validity of its assurnptions. Differences between actual losses and estimated losses arc assessed such that management can 
timely modify its evaluation model to ensure that adequate provision has been made for risk in the total loan portfolio. 

As a result of the Company's analysis of the appropriateness of the ALLL, the Co1npany recorded a provision for loan 
losses of$4.4 million, $7.0 million and $4.l n1illion for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The 
decrease fron1 2015 to 2016 is primarily due to the provision recorded in 2015 related to a certain commercial borrower engaged 
in the n1ining and energy sectors (per NAICS) which filed for bankruptcy during 2015. 

The provision for loan losses recorded in 2016 reflects the i1npact of several factors, including the growth in the loan 
portfolio and changes in the quality of the portfolio. Additionally, during the fourth quarter of2016, a commercial custo1ner of 
the Con1pany with a hotel and 1notel related credit whose business is located in North Central West Virginia experienced a 
downfall in occupancy rates as a result of a slo\vdown in the oil and gas industry. As a result, the Company increased the 
allo\vancc for loan losses in the fourth quarter in relation to this loan. Beyond this particular loan, the Co1npanyhas very limited 
exposure to the oil and gas industry and does not have any direct loans to any oil and gas operations. Changes in the a1nount 
of the allowance and related provision are based on the Company's detailed systematic methodology and arc directionally 
consistent with changes in the composition and quality of the Company's loan portfolio. The Co1npany believes its methodology 
for determining the adequacy of its ALLL adequately provides for probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio and produces 
a provision and allowance for loan losses that is directionally consistent with changes in asset quality and loss experience. 

The Company had net charge-offs of$3.9 million for the year ended Dece1nber 31, 2016 compared to $7.8 million for 
the year ended Dece1nber 31, 2015. The decrease in net charge-offs can be attributable to the commercial borrower that declared 
bankruptcy in 2015 discussed above. Net charge-offs in 2016 consisted primarily of net charge-offs on residential real estate 
loans of$ l .5 million, commercial real estate loans of $1.2 million and ODA overdraft loans of S0.6 million. 

Based on the Company's analysis of the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses and in consideration of the 
known factors utilized in computing the allowance, management believes that the allowance for loan losses as of Dece1nber 31, 
2016 is adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in the Company's loan portfolio. Future provisions for loan losses will 
be dependent upon trends in loan balances including the co1nposition of the loan portfolio, changes in loan quality and loss 
experience trends, and recoveries of previously charged-off loans, among other factors. 
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TABLE SEVEN 
ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

An analysis of changes in the Company's allowance for loan losses follows (dollars in thousands): 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Balance at beginning of period $ 19,251 $ 20,074 $ 20,575 $ 18,809 $ 19,409 

Charge-offs: 

Co1nmercial and industrial (148) (5,768) (323) (1,040) (226) 

Commercial real estate (1,676) (580) (2,001) (2,187) (4,604) 

Residential real estate (1,734) (1,144) (1,762) (2,181) (1,030) 

Home equity (390) (312) (309) (295) (1,355) 

Consumer (126) (210) (188) (454) (190) 

DDA overdrafts (1,412) (1,414) (1,415) (1,483) (1,522) 

Total charge-offs (5,486) (9,428) (5,998) (7,640) (8,927) 

Recoveries: 

Commercial and industrial 14 74 89 84 32 

Commercial real estate 487 366 I 13 785 289 

Residential real estate 187 199 187 234 22 

Home equity 18 

Consumer 118 186 204 327 135 

DOA overdrafts 764 792 850 I, 128 1,456 

Total recoveries 1,570 1,617 1,443 2,558 1,952 

Net charge-offs (3,916) (7,81 I) (4,555) (5,082) (6,975) 

Provision for loan losses 4,232 6,435 3,771 6,251 6,375 

Provision for acquired Joans 163 553 283 597 

Balance at end of period $ 19,730 $ 19,251 $ 20,074 $ 20,575 $ 18,809 

As a Percent of Average Total Loans: 

Net charge-offs 0.13°/o 0.29% 0.18o/o 0.20% 0.34% 

Provision for loan losses 0.15°/o 0.26% 0.16% 0.27% 0.31% 

As a Percent of Non-Performing Loans: 

Allowance for loan losses 140.10% 110.37% 127.62% 90.25% 96.59% 
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TABLE EIGHT 
NON-ACCRUAL AND PAST-DUE LOANS 

The Company's nonperforming assets and past-due loans were as follows (dollars in thousands): 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
Non-accrual loans $ 13,701 $ 16,948 $ 15,306 $ 22,361 $ 19,194 

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 382 495 423 436 280 

Total non-performing Joans $ 14,083 $ 17,443 $ 15,729 $ 22,797 $ 19,474 

Other real estate owned ("OREO") 4,588 6,519 8,180 8,470 8,162 

Total non-performing assets $ 18,671 $ 23,962 $ 23,909 s 31,267 s 27,636 

As a Percentage of Total Loans and OREO 

Non-performing assets 0.61 O/o 0.84o/o 0.90% 1.20% 1.28% 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Past-due loans $ 8,594 $ 9,164 $ 10,666 $ 19,492 $ 12,969 

As a Percentage ofTotal Loans 

Past-due loans 0.28°/o 0.32% 0.40% 0.75% 0.60% 

The Company's ratio of non-performing assets to total loans and other real estate owned decreased fro1n 0.84% at 
December 31, 2015 to 0.61% at Dece1nber 31, 2016. Excluded from these ratios and balances are purchased credit-impaired 
loans which continue to pcrfonn in accordance with the estimated expectations. Such loans would be considered nonperforming 
loans if any such loan's performance deteriorates below the initial expectations. Total past due loans decreased from $9.2 million, 
or 0.32% of total loans outstanding, at December 31, 2015 to S8.6 1nillion, or 0.28% of total loans outstanding, at December 
31, 2016. 

Interest on loans is accrued and credited to operations based upon the principal amount outstanding. The accrual of 
interest income is genera!ly discontinued when a loan becomes 90 days past due as to principal or interest unless the loan is well 
collateralized and in the process of collection. When interest accruals arc discontinued, interest credited to income in the current 
year that is unpaid and deemed uncol\ectible is charged to operations. Prior-year interest accruals that are unpaid and deemed 
uncollcctiblc are charged to the allowance for loan losses, provided that such amounts were specifically reserved. 

TABLE NINE 
IMPAIRED LOANS 

Infonnation pertaining to the Company's impaired loans is included in the following table (in thousands): 

2016 

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance $ 2,832 $ 
Impaired loans with no valuation allowance 4,749 

Total impaired loans $ 7,581 $ 

Allowance for loan losses allocated to impaired loans $ 665 $ 

2015 

8,482 

8,482 

I1npaircd loan with a valuation al!o\va11ce at the end of2016 was comprised of one commercial borrowing 
relationship that was evaluated during that year and determined that an allowance was necessary, as the present value of expected 
cash flo,vs 'vas less than the outstanding amount of the loan. During 2015, there were no loans that were evaluated during that 
year and determined that an allowance was not necessary, as the estimated fair value of the collateral was greater than the 
outstanding amount ofthc loan. 

If the Company's non-accrual and impaired loans had been current in accordance with their original terms, approximately 
S0.4 nlillion, $0.8 1ni!lion, and $0.5 million of interest income would have been recognized during 2016, 2015 and 2014, 
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respectively. There \Vere no commitments to provide additional funds on non-accrual, i1npaired, or other potential problem 
loans at December 3 l, 2016 and 2015. 

TABLE TEN 
RESTRUCTURED LOANS 

The follo\ving table sets forth the Company's troubled debt rcstructurings ("TDRs") at December 31, 2016 and 2015 
(in thousands): 

Accruing Non-Accruing Total 
December 31, 2016 

Com1nercial and industrial $ 42 $ $ 42 

Commercial real estate 5,525 5,525 

Residential real estate 20,424 391 20,815 

Home equity 3,105 30 3,135 

Consu1ncr 

$ 29,096 $ 421 $ 29,517 

December 31, 2015 

Commercial and industrial $ 58 $ $ 58 
Commercial real estate 1,746 1,746 

Residential real estate 17,796 191 17,987 

Home equity 2,659 34 2,693 

Consumer 

$ 22,259 $ 225 $ 22,484 

Regulatory guidance requires loans to be accounted for as collateral-dependent loans when borrowers have filed Chapter 
7 bankruptcy, the debt has been discharged by the bankruptcy court and the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt. The filing of 
bankruptcy is deemed to be evidence that the borrower is in financial difficulty and the discharge of the debt by the bankruptcy 
court is dee1ned to be a concession granted to the borro\ver. 

The Co1npany's troubled debt restructurings ("TD Rs") related to its borrowers who had filed for Chapter 7 bankruptcy 
protection make up 81 o/o of the Company's total TD Rs as of December 31, 2016. The average age of these TD Rs was 11.6 years; 
the average current balance as a percentage of the original balance was 67.9%; and the average loan-to-value ratio was 65.9% 
as of December 31, 2016. Of the total 482 Chapter 7 related TD Rs, 39 had an esti1nated loss exposure based on the current 
balance and appraised value at December 31, 2016. 
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TABLE ELEVEN 
ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

The allocation ofthe allowance for loan losses and the percent of loans in each category to total loans is shown in the 
table below (dollars in thousands): 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
of Loans ofLoans of Loans of Loans of Loans 
in Each in Each in Each in Each in Each 

Category Category Category Category Category 
to Total to Total to Total to Total to Total 

Amounl Loans Ainount Loans Ainount Loans A1nount Loans Ainount Loans 

Commercial and industrial $ 4,206 6%$ 3,271 6%$ 1,582 5% $ 1,139 6%$ 498 5% 

Co1n1nercial real estate 6,573 40% 6,985 39% 8,845 39% 10,775 40o/o 10,440 38% 

Residential real estate 6,680 48% 6,778 48% 7,208 49% 6,057 46% 5,229 48% 

Ho1ne equity 1,417 501o 1,463 5% 1,495 5% 1,672 6% 1,699 7% 

Consumer 82 1% 97 2% 85 2% 77 2o/o 81 2% 

DDA overdrafts 772 -% 657 -% 859 -% 855 -% 862 -% 

Allo\vanee for Loan 
Losses $19,730 lOOo/o $19,251 100% $20,074 100% $20,575 100% $18,809 100% 

The allowance allocated to the commercial and industrial loan portfolio increased $0.9 million from $3.3 million at 
December 31, 2015 to $4.2 1nillion at December 31, 2016. The increase is primarily attributable to an increase in the amount 
of loans classified as substandard as \veil as loan growth in this portfolio. 

The allo,vance allocated to the co1n1nercial real estate loan portfolio decreased $0.4 1nillion fro1n $7.0 million at 
December 31, 2015 to $6.6 1nillion at Dece1nber 31, 2016. This decrease is primarily attributable to improvements in the 
historical loss rates in the portfolio. 

The allowance allocated to the residential real estate portfolio decreased $0. l million fro1n $6.8 million at December 31, 
2015 to S6. 7 million at December 31, 2016. The decrease is primarily attributable to improvements in the historical Joss rates 
in the portfolio. 

The allo\vanceallocated to the ho1ne equity re1nained flat at $1.41nillion at December 31, 2016. Consumer and overdraft 
loan portfolios at December 31, 2016 did not significantly change from Dece1nber 31, 2015. 

GOODWILL 

The Coinpany evaluates the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets annually as of November 
301

h, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances \Varrant, such as a material adverse change in the business. Goodwill 
is considered to be impaired \Vhen the carrying value ofa reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. Indefinite~lived intangible 
assets arc considered impaired if their carrying value exceeds thcirestiinated fair value. As described in Note One of the Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Co1npany conducts its business activities through one reportable business segment­
co1nmunity banking. Fair values arc cstin1atcd by reviewing the Company's stock price as it compares to book value and the 
Con1pany's reported earnings. In addition, the: impact of future earnings and activities are considered in the Company's 
analysis. The Company had approximately $76 1nillion of goodwill at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and no 
i1npairment was required to be recognized in 2016 or 2015, as the estimated fair value of the Company has continued to exceed 
its book value. 

21 



CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

Scheduled maturities of time certificates of deposit that 1ncct or exceed the FDIC insurance limit ofS250,000 or n1ore 
at December 31, 2016 arc summarized in the table below (in thousands). The Co1npany has ti1ne certificates of deposit of 
$250,000 or 1nore totaling $104.8 million (approximately 10% oftotal ti1ne deposits). 

TABLE TWELVE 
MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT OF $250,000 OR MORE 

Amounts Percentage 

Three months or less $ 9,245 9% 

Over three 1nonths through six months 11,300 11% 
Over six months through twelve months 29,716 28% 

Over twelve months 54,535 52% 

Total $ 104,796 100% 

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy established in 
ASC Topic 820, whereby the fair value of certain assets and liabilities is an exit price, representing the amount that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. ASC Topic 820 
establishes a three~lcvcl hierarchy for disclosure of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value. The hierarchy classification is 
based on whether the inputs in the methodology for determining fair value arc observable or unobservable. Observable inputs 
reflect 1narket~based information obtained fro1n independent sources (Level I or Level 2), \Vhile unobservable inputs reflect 
n1anage1nent 's estimate of n1arket data (Level 3 ). Assets and liabilities that arc actively traded and have quoted prices or observable 
market data require a 1ninimal amount of subjectivity concerning fair value. Management's judgment is necessary to estimate 
fair value when quoted prices or observable market data are not available. 

At Dcce1nber 3 ! , 2016, approxi1nately 12% of total assets, or $466 tnillion, consisted of financial instruments recorded 
at fair value. Of this total, approximately 99% or $463 million of these financial instruments used valuation methodologies 
involving observable 1narket data, collectively Level l and Level 2 measurements, to determine fair value. Approxi1nately lo/o, 
or $3 million, of these financial instrutncnts \Vere valued using unobservable n1arket information or Level 3 measurements. The 
financial instruments valued using unobservable market information were pooled trust preferred investment securities classified 
as available-for-sale. At December 31, 2016, approxhnatcly S 15 million of derivative liabilities were recorded at fair value using 
methodologies involving observable market data. The Company does not believe that any changes in the unobservable inputs 
used to value the financial instruments mentioned above \vould have a material itnpact on the Company's results of operations, 
liquidity, or capital resources. Sec Note Nineteen of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional infonnation 
regarding ASC Topic 820 and its impact on the Company's financial statements. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The Company has various financial obligations that may require future cash pay1nents according to the terms of the 
obligations. Demand, both nonintcrcst- and interest-bearing, and savings deposits are, general!y, payable immediately upon 
demand at the request of the customer. Therefore, the contractual maturity of these obligations is presented in the following 
table as "less than one year." Time deposits, typically certificates of deposit, arc customer deposits that are evidenced by an 
agreement between the Company and the custo1nerthat specify stated maturity dates and early \Vithdra\vals by the custo1ner are 
subject to penalties assessed by the Co1npany. Short~term borrowings and long-term debt represent borrowings ofthc Company 
and have stated maturity dates. Capital and operating leases between the Company and the lessor have stated expiration dates 
and renewal terms. 
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TABLE THIRTEEN 
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The co1nposition of the Company's contn1ctual obligations as ofDece1nber 31, 2016 is presented in the following table 
(in thousands): 

Contractual Maturity in 

Between Between 
Less than One and Three and Greater than 
One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total 

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 672,286 $ $ $ $ 672,286 

Interest-bearing demand deposits"' 696,525 696,525 

Savings deposits1') 823,358 823,358 

Ti1ne deposits"' 495,066 458,428 106,307 431 1,060,232 

Short-tenn borrowingst0 288,743 288,743 

Long-term debt'" 718 1,436 1,436 28,701 32,291 

Real estate leases l,034 l,674 1,222 5,792 9,722 

Total Contractual Obligations s 2,977,730 $ 461,538 s 108,965 $ 34,924 $ 3,583,157 

( 1) Includes interest on both fixed- and variable-rate obligations. The interest associated \Vi th variable-rate obligations is 
based upon interest rates in effect at Dece1nber 31, 2016. The contractual amounts to be paid on variable-rate obligations 
are affected by market interest rates that could materially affect the contractual amounts to be paid. 

The Company's liability for uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2016 was $1.7 million pursuant to ASC Topic 
740. This liability represents an esti1natc of tax positions that the Company has taken in its tax returns that may ultimately not 
be sustained upon cxa1nination by tax authorities. As the ultimate amount and timing of any future cash settle1nents cannot be 
predicted \Vith reasonable reliability, this estimated liability has been excluded from the contractual obligations table. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

As disclosed in Note Sixteen of the Notes to Consolidated Financial State1nents, the Company has also entered into 
agree1nents with its customers to extend credit or to provide conditional commitments to provide pay1nent on drafts presented 
in accordance with the terms of the underlying credit documents (including standby and commercial letters of credit). The 
Company also provides overdraft protection to certain demand deposit custo1ners that represent an unfunded commitment. As 
a result of the Company's off-balance sheet arrangc1ncnts for 2016 and 2015, no material revenue, expenses, or cash flows were 
recognized. In addition, the Company had no other indebtedness or retained interests nor entered into agreements to extend 
credit or provide conditional pay1nents pursuant to standby and commercial letters of credit. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES 

During 2016, Shareholders' Equity increased $23 million, or 5.5o/o, from $419 n1illion at December 31, 2015 to $442 
million at December 31, 2016. This increase \Vas primarily due to net income of$52 million and the issuance of com1non shares 
of $7 million, partially offset by cash dividends declared of $26 million and common stock repurchases for treasury of $10 
million. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company repurchased approximately 231,000 common shares at a 
weighted average price ofS43.34. On Septe1nbcr 24, 2014, the Company announced that the Board of Directors authorized the 
Co1npany to buy back up to 1,000,000 shares of its common shares (approximately 7% of outstanding shares) in open market 
transactions at prices that arc accretivc to the earnings per share of continuing shareholders. No time limit was placed on the 
duration of the share repurchase program. At December 31, 2016, the Company could repurchase approximately 402,000 shares 
under the current plan. 

On December 19, 2016, the Company announced that it had filed a prospectus supplement to its existing shelf registration 
statc1ncnt on Form S-3 for the sale of its common stock having an aggregate value of up to $55 1nillion through an "at-the­
markct" equity offering program. The Company intends to use the net proceeds from the offering to support loan gro,vth, bolster 
regulatory capital, and provide cash for possible future acquisitions. Pending this use, the proceeds will be invested by the 
Company in various invest1nent securities. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company sold approximately I 08,000 
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shares at a \Vcightcd average price of$66.2 l, net ofbrokcrfees. Through February 24, 2017, the Company has sold approximately 
548,000 co1nmon shares at a weighted average price of $64.82, net of broker fees. These shares include shares sold, but not 
settled with the purchaser as of February 24, 2017. 

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve published the final rules that established a new comprehensive capital framework 
for banking organizations, co1nmonly referred to as Basel Ill. These final rules substantially revised the risk-based capital 
requirements applicable to bank holding co1npanies and depository institutions. The final rule became effective January I, 2015 
for sn1al!er, non-complex banking organizations 'vith full imple1nentation by January I, 2019. 

Regulatory guidelines require the Company to nlaintain a 1ninimum common equity tier I ("CET l ") capital ratio of 
5.125% and a total capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of8.625%, with at least one-half of capital consisting of tangible common 
stockholders' equity and a minimum Tier I leverage ratio of6. 625%. Similarly, City National is also required to 1naintain minimum 
capital levels as set forth by various regulatory agencies. Under capita! adequacy guidelines, City National is required to maintain 
1ninimum CET I, total capital, Tier I capital, and leverage ratios of 5.125o/o, 8.625o/o, 6.625%, and 4.0%, respectively. To be 
classified as "well capitalized," City National must maintain CET l, total capital, Tier I capital, and leverage ratios of 6.5%, 
10.0%, 8.0%, and 5.0%, respectively. 

When fully phased in on January 1, 2019, the Basel Ill Capital Rules will require City Holding and City National to 
maintain (i) a minhnun1 ratio ofCET I to risk-weighted assets of at least4.5%, plus a 2.5% "capital conservation buffer" (which 
is added to the 4.5% CET I ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a minimum ratio ofCET 1 to risk-weighted 
assets of at least 7 .0% upon full i1nplementation), (ii) a minimum ratio ofTier I capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0%, 
plus the capital conservation buffer(vthich is added to the 6.0% Tier 1 capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting 
in a 1nini1num Tier 1 capital ratio of8.5% upon full imple1nentation), (iii) a minimum ratio oftotal capita! (that is, Tier I plus 
Tier 2) to risk-\veighted assets of at least 8.0%, plus the capital conservation buffer (which is added to the 8.0% total capital 
ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a minimum total capital ratio of 10.5% upon full implementation) and 
(iv) a minimum leverage ratio of 4.0%, calculated as the ratio of Tier 1 capital to average assets (as compared to a current 
minimu1n leverage ratio of3.0% for banking organizations that either have the highest supervisory rating or have implemented 
the appropriate federal regulatory authority's risk-adjusted measure for inarket risk). 

The implc1nentation of the capital conservation buffer began on January I, 2016 at the 0.625% level and will be phased 
in over a four-year period (increasing by that amount on each subsequent January I, until it reaches 2.5% on January I, 2019). 
The capital conservation buffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of econo1nic stress. Banking institutions with a ratio 
ofCET I capital to risk-weighted assets above the minilnuin but below the conservation buffer (or below the co1nbined capital 
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer, when the latter is applied) \viii face constraints on dividends, equity 
repurchases and compensation based on the amount of the shortfall. The Basel III Capital Rules also provide for a "countercyclical 
capital buffer" that is applicable to only certain covered institutions and docs not have any current applicability to City Holding 
Coinpany or City National Bank. 
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The Co1npany's regulatory capital ratios for both City Holding and City National arc illustrated in the following 
table: 

Minimum Required - Minimum Required - Required to be 
Basel III Phase-In Basel III Fully Phased- Considered \Veil 

Actual Schedule In(*) Capitalized 

Capital Capital Capital Capital 
December 31, 2016 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

CET I Capital 

City Holding Co1npany $371,677 13.3o/o $142,845 5.125% $195,105 7.0°/o s 181,169 6.5% 

City National Bank 310,912 11.2o/o 141,860 5.125% 193,761 7.0% 179,921 6.5% 
Tier I Capital 

City Holding Company 387,677 13.9% 184,653 6.625% 236,913 8.5°/o 222,977 8.0% 

City National Bank 318,872 11.5% 183,381 6.625% 235,281 8.5% 221,441 8.0% 

Total Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 408,406 14.7o/o 240,397 8.625% 292,658 10.5°/o 278,722 10.0% 

City National Bank 338,675 12.2% 238,741 8.625% 290,641 10.5% 276,801 10.0°/o 

Tier I Leverage Ratio 

City Holding Company 387,677 ID.1% 153,864 4.000% 153,864 4.0% 192,330 5.0o/o 

City National Bank 318,872 8.3°/o 153,088 4.00D0/o 153,088 4.0% 191,359 5.0% 

(*) Represents the 1nini1nu1n required capital levels as of January l, 2019 \Vhcn Basel III Capital Rules have been fully phased in. 

Dceeinber 31, 2015: 

CET I Capital 

City Holding Coinpany 

City National Bank 

Tier 1 Capital 

City Holding Company 

City National Bank 

Total Capital 

City Holding Company 

City National Bank 

Tier I Leverage Ratio 

City Holding Company 

City National Bank 

Actual 

s 345,620 

264,812 

361,620 

288,752 

382,180 

308,804 

361,620 

288,752 

Mini1nu1n Required -
Basel III Phase-In 

Schedule 

Minimu1n Required -
Basel III Fully Phascd­

ln (*) 

Required to be 
Considered Well 

Capitalized 

Capital 
Ainount 

13.7°/o S 113,919 

10.5% 113,209 

14.3% $ 151,891 

l l .5o/o 

15.1% 

12.3% 

10.2% 

8.1% 

150,945 

202,522 

201,260 

142,521 

141,874 

Ratio 
Capital 
Amount 

4.5% $ 177,207 

4.5% 176,103 

6.0% $ 215,180 

6.0% 

8.0% 

8.0% 

4.0% 

4.0% 

213,839 

265,810 

264,154 

142,521 

141,874 

Ratio 
Capital 
Amount 

7 .0% s 164,549 

7.0% 163,524 

8.5% $ 202,522 

8.5% 

10.5% 

10.5% 

4.0% 

4.0% 

201,260 

253,152 

251,575 

178,151 

177,343 

Ratio 

6.5% 

6.5% 

8.0% 

8.0% 

10.0% 

10.0% 

5.0% 

5.0% 

As ofDecen1ber 31, 2016, 1nanagement believes that City 1-lolding Company, and its banking subsidiary, City National, 
\Vere "well capitalized." City Holding is subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Reserve, while 
City National is subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the OCC and the FDIC. Regulatory agencies can 
initiate certain mandatory actions if either City Holding or City National fails to meet the mini1num capital requirements, as 
shown above. As of December 31, 2016, management believes that City Holding and City National meet all capital adequacy 
requirements. 
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LEGAL ISSUES 

The Company is engaged in various legal actions that it dee1ns to be in the ordinary course of business. As these legal 
actions are resolved, the Co1npany could realize impacts to its financial performance in the period in which these legal actions 
are determined to be probable and reasonably estimated. There can be no assurance that current actions will have immaterial 
results, or that no n1aterial actions may be presented in the future. 

RECENT ACCOUNTING PROCOUNCEMENTS AND DEVELOPMENTS 

Note One, "Recent Accounting Pronounce1nents," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements discusses recently 
issued new accounting pronouncements and their expected impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. 
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REPORT ON MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The manage1nent of City Holding Company is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements included in this annual report. The consolidated financial statements ofCity Holding Company 
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily include some amounts 
that arc based on the best estimates and judg1nents of 1nanagement. 

The management of City Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control 
over financial reporting that is designed to produce reliable financial state1nents in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. The system of internal control over financial reporting is evaluated for effectiveness by management and 
tested for reliability through a progra1n of internal audits \Vith actions taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are 
identified. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control syste1n, no matter how well designed, misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, including the possibility of the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, 
even an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance \Vith respect to financial statement 
preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, internal control effectiveness 1nay vary over time. 

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2016 based upon the criteria set forth by the Co1nminee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread\vay Commission (COSO) in 
Internal Control - Integrated Fra1nework (2013 Framework). Based on our assessment, management believes that, as of 
Dece1nber 3l,2016, the Company's systc1n of internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. Ernst 
& Young LLP, the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting. This report appears on page 27. 

February 27, 2017 

sl Charles R. Hageboeck 

Charles R. Hagcbocck 

President & Chief Executive Officer 

Isl David L. Bu1ngamer 

David L. Bumgarner 

Chief Financial Officer 
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTING FIRM, ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Audit Comn1ittee of the Board of Directors and the 
Shareholders of City Holding Co1npany and subsidiaries 

We have audited City Holding Company and sLtbsidiarics' internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Con1mittee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Trcad\vay Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). City Holding Company and subsidiaries' management is 
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting included in the acco1npanying Report on Management's Assessment of Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Co1npany's internal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal 
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 1naterial \Veakncss exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company arc being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
ofthc company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance \Vi th the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, City Holding Company and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the consolidated balance sheets of City Holding Co1npany and subsidiaries as of Decc1nber 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, co1nprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended Dece1nber 31, 2016 of City Holding Co1npany and subsidiaries and our report dated February 27, 
2017, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Charleston, West Virginia 

February 27, 2017 

Isl Ernst & Young LLP 
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTING FIRM, ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Audit Committee ofthe Board of Directors and the 
Shareholders of City Holding Company and subsidiaries 

We have audited the acco1npanying consolidated balance sheets of City Holding Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 
2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements ofinco1ne, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of City Holding Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state1nents 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 1natcrial respects, the consolidated financial position 
of City Holding Company and subsidiaries at Dece1nber 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of their operations and 
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Co1npany Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
City Holding Company and subsidiaries' internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Co1nmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated February 27, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Charleston, West Virginia 

February 27, 2017 

Isl Ernst & Young LLP 
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PART I, ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMEN1'S 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(in thousands) 

Assets 

Cash and due from banks 
Interest-bearing deposits in depository institutions 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investment securities available for sale, at fair value 

lnvestn1ent sccurities held-to-maturity, at a1nortized cost (approxilnate fair value at Dece1nbcr 31, 
20 ! 6 and 2015 - $76,445 a~d $90,810, respectively) 
Other securities 

Total Investment Securities 

Gross loans 

Allowance for loan losses 

Net Loans 

Bank o\vncd life insurance 

Pre1niscs and cquip1nent, net 
Accrued interest receivable 

Deferred tax asset, net 
Good\vill and other intangible assets, net 

Other assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Deposits; 

Noninterest-bearing 

Interest-bearing; 

Demand deposits 

Savings deposits 

Ti1nc deposits 
Total Deposits 

Short-tcnn borrowings; 

Federal Honie Loan Bank advances 

Securities sold under agrcc1ncnts to repurchase 
Long-tcnn debt 

Other liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Shareholders' Equity 

Preferred stock, par value S25 per share; 500,000 shares authorized; none issued 

Common stock, par value $2.50 per share: 50,000,000 shares authorized; 18,606,944 shares and 
18,499,282 shares issued at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, less 3,478,511 
and 3,319,067, shares in treasury, respectively 
Capital surplus 

Retained earnings 
Treasury stock 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale 

Underfunded pension liability 
Total Accumulated Olher Comprehensive Loss 

Total Shareholders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

See notes to consolidatedfinancial staten1ents. 

December 31, December 31, 
2016 2015 

$ 62,263 $ 58,829 
25,876 11,284 

88,139 70,113 

450,083 369,466 

75,169 88,937 

14,352 12,915 
539,604 471,318 

3,046,226 2,862,534 

(19,730) (19,251) 
3,026,496 2,843,283 

100,732 97,919 

75,165 77,271 
8,408 7,432 

28,043 29,974 
79,135 79,792 

38,681 36,957 
$ 3,984,403 s 3.714.059 

$ 672,286 s 621,073 

695,891 679,735 
822,057 765,611 

1,041,419 l,017,556 

3,231,653 3,083,975 

64,100 13,000 
184,205 141,869 

16,495 16,495 

45,512 39,448 
3,541,965 3,294,787 

46,518 46,249 

112,873 106,269 

417,017 390,690 
(126,958) (120,104) 

(2,352) 927 
(4,660) (4,7$9) 
(7,012) (3,832) 

442,438 419,272 
$ 3,984,403 s 3 714,059 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(in thousands, except earnings per share data) 

Year Ended December 31 

2016 2015 2014 
Interest Income 

Interest and fees on loans $ 118,138 $ 115,107 $ 116,658 

Interest on invcsttnent securities: 

Taxable 12,392 10,830 11,766 

Tax-exempt 1,622 1,137 1,142 

Total Interest Income 132,152 127,074 129,566 

Interest Expense 

Interest on deposits 12,052 10,886 11,012 

Interest on short-tenn borrowings 472 327 342 

Interest on long-tenn debt 683 617 606 

Total Interest Expense 13,207 11,830 11,960 

Net Interest Income 118,945 115,244 117,606 

Provision for loan losses 4,395 6,988 4,054 

Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 114,550 108,256 113,552 

Non-interest Income 

Gains on sale of investment securities 3,513 2,130 1,156 

Service charges 26,703 26,316 26,583 

Bankcard revenue 16,515 15,894 15,063 

Insurance co1n1nissions 5,978 

Trust and investment management fee income 5,573 5,124 4,614 

Bank O\vncd life insurance 3,326 3,374 3,070 

Gain on sale of insurance division 11,084 

Other income 3,195 3,284 2,258 

Total Non-interest Income 58,825 67,206 58,722 

Non-interest Expense 

Salaries and employee benefits 50,883 47,847 51,749 

Occupancy and equipment 11,095 10,277 9,990 

Depreciation 6,235 6,088 6,087 

FDIC insurance expense 1,622 1,794 1,647 

Advertising 2,606 2,446 3,274 

Bankcard expenses 4,154 3,691 3,750 

Postage, delivery, and statc1ncnt 1nailings 2,080 2,123 2,211 

Office supplies 1,364 1,350 1,595 

Legal and professional fees 2,186 1,962 1,854 

Telecommunications 1,813 1,765 1,876 

Repossessed asset losses, net of expenses 890 1,264 579 

Merger related costs 598 

Other expenses 11,236 11,746 10,429 

Total Non-interest Expense 96,164 92,951 95,041 

Income Before Income Taxes 77,211 82,511 77,233 
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Income tax expense 25,083 28,414 24,271 
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders $ 52,128 $ 54,097 s 52,962 

A veragc shares outstanding, basic 14,900 15,123 15,403 

Effect of dilutive securities 13 48 85 

A veragc shares outstanding, diluted 14,913 15,171 15,488 

Basic earnings per common share $ 3.46 s 3.54 $ 3.40 

Diluted earnings per common share $ 3.45 $ 3.53 $ 3.38 

Dividends declared per common share $ 1.72 $ 1.68 $ 1.60 

See notes to consolidatedfinancial state111ents. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(in thousands) 

Net income available to common shareholders 

Availablejor-Sale Securities 

Unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-sale securities arising during period 

Reclassification adjustment for net gains 

Other comprehensive (loss) income related to available-for-sale securities 

Defined Benejil Pension Plan 

Amortization of actuarial net gains 

Recognition of unrealized losses 

Change in underfunded pension liability 

Other comprehensive (loss) income before income taxes 

Tax effect 

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax 

Comprehensive income, net of tax 

See notes to consolidated financial s/a/e111e11ts. 

$ 

$ 

Year Ended December 31 

2016 2015 2014 

52,128 $ 54,097 $ 52,962 

(1,685) 1,713 6,388 

(3,513) (2,130) (1,156) 

(5,198) (417) 5,232 

847 975 669 

(690) (40) (4,584) 

157 935 (3,915) 

(5,041) 518 l,317 

1,861 (191) (486) 

(3,180) 327 831 

48,948 $ 54,424 $ 53,793 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(dollars in thousands) 

Balances at December 31, 2013 

Net inco1nc available to co1n1non 
shareholders 

Other comprehensive income 

Cash dividends declared (SI .60 per share) 

Stock-based compensation expense, net 

Exercise of20,000 stock options 

Purchase of650,799 treasury shares 

Balances at Decc1nber 31, 2014 

Balances at December 31, 2014 

Net inco1ne available to com1non 
shareholders 

Other comprehensive income 

Cash dividends declared ($ 1.68 per share) 

Stock-based compensation expense, net 

Exercise of 81,500 stock options 

Exercise of 61,796 warrants 

Purchase of 150,385 treasury shares 

Balances atDceember 31, 2015 

Balances at December 31, 2015 

Net inco1nc available to com1non 
shareholders 

Other co1nprchensive income 

Cash dividends declared (S l. 72 per share) 

Stock-based compensation expense, net 

Issuance of I 07,662 shares of co1n1non 
stock 

Exercise of32, 750 stock options 

Purchase of23I,132 treasury shares 

Balances at December 31, 2016 

$ 

s 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

Common 
Stock 

46,249 s 

46,249 s 

Common 
Stock 

46,249 $ 

46,249 s 

Common 
Stock 

46,249 $ 

269 

46,518 $ 

See notes to consolidated financial s1a1e111ents. 

Capital 
Surplus 

107,596 

64 

(290) 

$ 

107,370 s 

Capital 
Surplus 

107,370 s 

266 

(602) 

(765) 

106,269 $ 

Capital 
Surplus 

106,269 $ 

273 

6,595 

(264) 

112,873 $ 

Ret-.ilned 
Earnini:s 

333,970 

52,962 

(24,721) 

362,211 

Retained 
Earnings 

362,211 

54,097 

(25,618) 

$ 

$ 

s 

390,690 $ 

Retained 
Earnings 

390,690 $ 

52,128 

(25,801) 

417,017 $ 

Accumulated Other 
Treasury Comprehensive 

Stock lncon1e (Loss) 

(95,202) $ (4,990) $ 

831 

1,471 

870 

(27,957) 

(120,818) s (4,!59) s 

Accu1nulated Other 
Treasury Comprehensh·e 

Stock Income (Loss) 

(120,818) $ (4,159) $ 

327 

1,527 

3,581 

2,661 

(7,055) 

(120,104) $ (3,832) $ 

Accumulated Other 
Treasury Comprehensive 

Stock Income (Loss) 

Total 
Shareholders' 

Equity 

387,623 

52,962 

831 

(24,721) 

1,535 

580 

(27,957) 

390,853 

Total 
Shareholders' 

Equity 

390,853 

54,097 

327 

{25,618) 

1,793 

2,979 

1,896 

(7,055) 

419,272 

Total 
Shureholders' 

Equity 

(120,104) $ (3,832) $ 419,272 

52,128 

(3,180) (3,180) 

(25,801) 

1,745 2,018 

6,864 

1,419 1,155 

(10,018) (10,018) 

(126,958) $ (7,012) $ 442,438 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(in thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 

2016 2015 2014 

Net income available to common shareholders ' 52,128 s 54,097 s 52,962 

Adjustn1ents to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activitiC5: 

Amortization and accretion 838 (4,589) (4,654) 

Provision for loan losses 4,395 6,988 4,054 

Depreciation of premises and equipment 6,235 6,088 6,087 

Deferred income tax expense 3,817 6,627 4,585 

Net periodic employee benefit cost SIS 836 500 

Realized investment securities gains (3,978) (2,130) (l,156) 

Net investment securities impairment JossC5 465 

Stock-based compensation expense 2,018 1,793 1,535 

Increase in value of bank-owned life insurance (3,071) (3,374) (3,069) 

Proceeds fron1 bank-owned life im;unmcc 258 571 

Originations of loans held for sale (17,981) (17,849) (8,763) 

Proceeds from loans held for sale 16,572 18,668 8,319 

Gain on sale of loans (374) (367) (187) 

Gain on sale ofinsurJncc division (1 l,084) 

Asset \vrite down 444 1,449 

Change in accrued interest receivable (976) (375) 40 

Change in other assets (1,556) (976) (8,262) 

Change in other liabilities 5,581 (8.478) 1,363 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 65,330 47,895 53,354 

Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale 30,850 389 6,714 

Proceeds fronl maturities and calls of securities availablc·for-salc 78,720 55,726 48,983 

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities held-to-mat1nity 13,479 13,191 6,501 

Purchases of securities available-for-sale (196,150) (175.271) (31.295) 

Purchases of securities held-to-maturity (10,392) (10,226) 

Net increase in loans (183,511) (100,130) (43,714) 

Purd1ascs of premises and equipment (5,517) (3,014) (2,323) 

Disposals ofpren1iscs and equipment 836 141 649 

Proceeds from sale of City Insurance 15,250 

Acquisition of American Founders Bank, Inc., including cash acquired ofS56! 20,030 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (261,293) (184,080) (24,711) 

Net increase in nonintercst-bearing deposits 200,984 52,230 52,237 

Net (decrease) increase in interest-bearing deposits (52,714) 18.544 36,203 

Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 93,436 14,780 (2,867) 

Issuance of comn1on stock 6,864 

Purchases of treasury stock (10,018) (7,055) (27,957) 

Proceeds fron1 exercise of stock options 1,155 2,979 580 

Proceeds from exercise of warrants 1,896 

Dividends paid (25,718) (25,304) (24.487) 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 213,989 58,070 33,709 

Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivale111s. 18,026 (78,115) 62,352 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 70,113 148,228 85,876 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period s 88,139 ' 70.113 s 148,228 

See notes to conso/idatedfinancial state111e11ts. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTE ONE - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES 

Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies: The accounting and reporting policies of City Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries (the "Company") conform with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles and require 
1nanagemcnt to make estimates and develop assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and related 
footnotes. Actual results could differ from management's estimates. The following is a sum1nary of the n1ore significant policies. 

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial state1nents include the accounts of City Holding Company 
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the 
consolidated financial state1nents. 

The Company determines whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity by first evaluating \Vhcther the 
entity is a voting interest entity or a variable interest entity in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
Voting interest entities are entities in which the total equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable the entity to finance itself 
independently and provides the equity holders with the obligation to absorb losses, the right to receive residual returns and the 
right to make decisions about the entity's activities. The Company consolidates voting interest entities in which it has all, or at 
least a majority of, the voting interest. As defined in applicable accounting standards, variable interest entities (V!Es) are entities 
that lack one or more of the characteristics ofa voting interest entity. A controlling financial interest in a VIE is present when 
an enterprise has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance 
and an obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE. The enterprise 
with a controlling financial interest, kno\vn as the primary beneficiary, consolidates the VIE. The Company's wholly o\vned 
subsidiary, City Holding Capital Trust III, is a VIE for \Vhich the Company is not the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, the 
accounts of this entity arc not included in the Coinpany's consolidated financial statements. 

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to confonn to the current year presentation. 
Such reclassifications had no impact on shareholders' equity or net incoine for any period. 

Description of Principal Markets and Services: The Company is a registered financial holding company under the 
Bank Holding Con1pany Act headquartered in Charleston, West Virginia, and conducts its principal activities through its wholly­
owned subsidiary, City National Bank of West Virginia ("City National"). City National is a retail and consumer-oriented 
community bank with 85 banking offices in West Virginia, Virginia, Kentucky and southeastern Ohio. City National provides 
credit, deposit, and trust and investment managc1ncnt services to its custo1ners. In addition to its branch network, City National's 
delivery channels include ATMs, mobile banking, debit cards, interactive voice response systems and Internet technology. The 
Coinpany conducts its business activities through one reportable business segment - community banking. 

Cash and Due from Banks: The Company considers cash, due from banks, and interest-bearing deposits in depository 
institutions as cash and cash equivalents. City National is required to maintain an average reserve balance with the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Richmond to compensate for services provided by the Federal Reserve and to meet statutory required reserves 
for demand deposits. 

Securities: Management detennines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. If management 
has the intent and the Company has the ability at the time of purchase to hold debt securities to maturity, they are classified as 
invest1ncnt securities held-to-maturity and are stated at amortized cost, adjusted for a1nortization of premiuins and accretion of 
discounts. Debt securities \vhich the Company may not hold to n1aturity are classified as investment securities available-for­
sale along \Vith the Company's investment in equity securities. Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value, with the 
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in comprehensive income. Securities classified as available-for-sale include 
securities that management intends to use as part of its asset/liability management strategy and that may be sold in response to 
changes in interest rates, resultant prcpayn1cnt risk, and other factors. 

The Company utilizes a third party pricing service provider to value its invcsllnent portfolio. Annually, the Co1npany 
obtains an independent auditor's report fro1n its third party pricing service provider regarding its controls over valuation of 
investment securities. Although an unqualified opinion regarding the design and operating effectiveness of controls \Vas issued, 
the report did contain caveats and disclaimers regarding the pricing inforn1ation, such as the Company should review market 
values for reasonableness. On a quarterly basis, the Company selects a sample of its debt securities and reprices those securities 
with a third party that is independent of the priinary pricing service provider to verify the reasonableness of the fair values. 
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Also, on a quarterly basis, the Company performs a revie\v of investment securities to determine if any unrealized 
losses are other than temporarily i1npaircd. Manage1nent considers the following, among other things, in its detennination of 
the nature of the unrealized losses, (i) the length ofti1ne and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; (ii) the 
financial condition, capital strength, and near-term (12 1nonths) prospects of the issuer, including any specific events which 
may influence the operations of the issuer such as changes in technology that 1nay impair the earnings potential of the investment 
or the discontinuance of a segment of the business that 1nay affect the future earnings potential; (iii) the historical volatility in 
the market value of the investment and/or the liquidity or illiquidity of the investment; (iv) adverse conditions specifically related 
to the security, an industry, or a geographic area; or (v) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer 
for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. The Company continues to actively monitor 
the 1narket value of these invest1nents along with the financial strength of the issuers behind these securities, as \Veil as its entire 
invest1nent portfolio. Based on the market information available, the Company believes that (i) the declines in fair value are 
temporary, driven by fluctuations in the interest rate cnviron1nent and not due to the credit \Vorthiness of the issuers, (ii) the 
Con1pany docs not have the intent to sell any of the securities classified as available for sale, and (iii) it is more likely than not 
that the Company \Viii not have to sell any such securities before recovery of cost. The Company cannot guarantee that such 
securities will recover and if additional information becomes available in the future to suggest that the losses are other than 
temporary, the Company may need to record hnpairn1ent charges in the future. 

The specific identification method is used to determine the cost basis of securities sold. Certain investment securities 
that do not have readily detenninable fair values and for \Vhich the Company docs not exercise significant influence arc carried 
at cost and classified as other invest1nent securities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These cost-method investments are 
revic\vcd for impairment at least annually or sooner if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not 
be recoverable. 

Loans: Loans, excluding previously sccuritizcd loans, which arc discussed separately below, arc reported at the principal 
amount outstanding, net ofuncamcd income. Portfolio Joans include those for \Vhich management has the intent and City has 
the ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until maturity or payoff. The foreseeable future is based upon management's 
judgment of current business strategies and market conditions, the type of loan, asset/liability management, and liquidity. 

Interest inco1ne on loans is accrued and credited to operations based upon the principal amount outstanding, using 
methods that generally result in level rates of return. Loan origination fees, and certain direct costs, arc deferred and amortized 
as an adjustinent to the yield over the term of the loan. The accrual of interest income generally is discontinued \Vhen a loan 
beco1nes 90 days past due as to principal or interest for all loan types. However, any loan 1nay be placed on non-accrual ifthe 
Company receives information that indicates that it is probable a borrower \Vill be unable to meet the contractual terms of their 
respective loan agree1nent. Other indicators considered for placing a loan on non-accrual status include the borrower's 
involve1nent in bankruptcies, foreclosures, repossessions, litigation and any other situation resulting in doubt as to whether full 
collection of contractual principal and interest is attainable. When interest accruals arc discontinued, unpaid interest recognized 
in income in the current year is reversed, and interest accrued in prior years is charged to thcallo\vancc for loan losses. Management 
may elect to continue the accrual of interest when the esti1nated net realizable value of collateral exceeds the principal balance 
and related accrued interest, and the loan is in process of collection. 

Generally for all loan classes, interest income during the period the loan is non-performing is recorded on a cash basis 
after recovery of principal is reasonably assured. Cash payments received on nonperforming loans are typically applied directly 
against the outstanding principal balance until the loan is fully repaid. Generally, Joans are restored to accn1al status when the 
obligation is brought current, has pcrfonncd in accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period oftime, and the 
ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. 

Generally, all loan types arc considered past due when the contractual tcnns of a loan are not met and the borrower is 
30 days or more past due on a payment. Furthermore, residential and home equity loans are generally subject to charge-off 
\Vhen the loan bcco1ncs 120 days past due, depending on the estin1atcd fair value of the collateral less cost to dispose, versus 
the outstanding loan balance. Co1n1ncrcial loans arc generally charged off when the loan becomes 120 days past due and consumer 
loans arc generally charged off when the loan becomes 120 days past due. 

Acquired Loans: In determining the estimated fair value ofthe acquired loans, management considered several factors, 
such as estimated future credit losses, estimated prcpay1nents, remaining lives of the acquired loans, estimated value of the 
underlying collateral and the present value of the cash flows expected to be received. For smaller loans not specifically reviewed, 
managc1ncnt grouped the loans into their respective homogeneous loan pool and applied a loss estimate accordingly. 

Acquired loans arc accounted for using one of the two follo\ving accounting standards: 
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(!) ASC Topic 310-20 is used to value loans that do not have evidence of credit quality deterioration. For these loans, the 
difference between the fair value of the loan and the amortized cost of the loan is amortized or accreted into income 
using the interest 1nethod. 

(2) ASC Topic 310-30 is used to value loans that have evidence of credit quality deterioration. For these loans, the expected 
cash flo\VS that exceed the fair value of the loan represent the accretable yield, which is recognized as interest income 
on a level-yield basis over the expected cash flo\v periods of the loans. The non-accretable difference represents the 
difference between the contractually required principal and interest payn1ents and the cash flows expected to be collected 
based upon management's estimation. Subsequent decreases in the expected cash flows will require the Company to 
evaluate the need for additions to the Company's allowance for loan losses. Subsequent increases in the expected cash 
flows will result in a reversal of the provision for loan losses to the extent of prior charges with a corresponding 
adjustment to the accretable yield, which \Vill result in the recognition of additional interest income over the remaining 
lives ofthc loans. 

Allo,vance for Loan Losses: The al\o\vancc for loan losses is 1naintained at a level that represents management's best 
cstilnatc of probable losses in the loan portfolio. Management's determination of the appropriateness ofthe allowance for loan 
losses is based upon an evaluation of individual credits in the loan portfolio, historical loan loss experience, current economic 
conditions, and other relevant factors. This determination is inherently subjective, as it requires 1naterial estimates including the 
amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on i1npaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change. 
These evaluations are conducted at least quarterly and n1orc frequently if deemed necessary. The allowance for loan losses 
related to loans considered to be i1npaired is generally evaluated based on the discounted cash flows using the impaired loans' 
initial effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans. Loan losses arc charged 
against the allowance and recoveries of a1nounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance. A provision for loan losses 
is charged to operations based on management's periodic evaluation of the appropriateness of the al!owance after considering 
factors noted above, among others. 

In evaluating the appropriateness of its allowance for loan losses, the Co1npany stratifies the loan portfolio into six 
major groupings, including commercial real estate, commercial and industrial, residential real estate, home equity, and others. 
Historical loss experience, as adjusted, is applied to the then outstanding balance of loans in each classification to estimate 
probable losses inherent in each segment of the portfolio. J.Iistorical loss experience is adjusted using a systematic weighted 
probability of potential risk factors that could result in actual losses deviating from prior loss experience. Risk factors considered 
by the Company in co1npleting this analysis include: (I) unemployment and economic trends in the Company's markets, (2) 
concentrations of credit, if any, among any industries, (3) trends in loan growth, loan mix, delinquencies, losses or credit 
impairment, (4) adherence to lending policies and others. Each risk factor is designated as low, moderate/increasing, or high 
based on the Company's assessment of the risk to loss associated with each factor. Each risk factor is then \Veighted to consider 
probability of occurrence. 

Additionally, all co1n1nercial loans within the portfolio arc subject to internal risk grading. Risk grades arc generally 
assigned by the primary lending officer and arc periodically evaluated by the Company's internal loan review process. Based 
on an individual loan's risk grade, estimated loss percentages arc applied to the outstanding balance of the loan to detennine the 
amount of probable loss. 

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
computed primarily by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of leasehold 
improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the lesser of the term of the respective lease or the estimated 
useful life of the respective asset. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, while improvements that extend 
the useful life of premises and equipment are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining life of the asset. 

Other Real Estate Olvned: Other real estate o\vned ("OREO") is comprised principally of commercial and residential 
real estate properties obtained in partial or total satisfaction of loan obligations. OREO acquired in settlement of indebtedness 
is included in Other Assets at the lower of estimated fair value of the asset, less estimated selling costs or the carrying amount 
of the loan. Changes to the value subsequent to transfer are recorded in non-interest expense, along with direct operating 
expenses. Gains or losses not previously recognized from sales of OREO are recognized in non-interest expense on the date of 
the sale. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amount of OREO included in Other Assets was $4.6 million and $6.5 million, 
respectively. 

Goodlvill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of 
tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized. Intangible assets represent purchased assets that also lack 
physical substance, but can be separately distinguished fro1n good\vill because of contractual or other legal rights or because 
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the asset is capable of being sold or exchanged either on its own or in combination \Vith a related contract, asset or 
liability. Intangible assets with dctenninable useful lives, such as core deposits, arc amortized over their estimated useful lives. 

The Co1npany performs an annual review for impairment in the recorded value of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible 
assets. Goodwill is tested for impairment between the annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that more than 
likely reduce the fair value ofa reporting unit below its carrying value. An indefinite-lived intangible asset is tested for impairment 
bet\veen the annual tests ifan event occurs or circumstances change indicating that the asset 1night be impaired. 

Securities Sold Under Agreen1ents to Repurchase: Securities sold under agreements to repurchase arc accounted 
for as collatcralized financing transactions and are recorded at the amounts at which the securities were sold plus accrued 
interest. Securities sold pri1narily consists of U.S. govcmn1ent, federal agency, and municipal securities pledged as collateral 
under these financing arrangements and cannot be repledgcd or sold, unless replaced by the secured party. 

Insurance Commissions: Commission revenue was recognized as of the effective date of the insurance policy or the 
date the customer was billed, whichever was later. The Company also received contingent commissions from insurance 
companies as additional incentive for achieving specified premiutn volume goals and/or the loss experience of the insurance 
placed by the Co1npany. The Company maintained a reserve for co1nmission adjustments based on estimated policy cancellations. 

In January 2015, the Co1npany sold its insurance operations, Citylnsurance, to The Hilb Group, effective January 1, 
2015. As a result of this sale, the Co1npany recognized a one-time, after tax gain of $5.8 million. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company enters into derivative transactions principally to protect against the 
risk of adverse price or interest rate 1novements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on future cash flows. All 
derivative instrun1cnts arc carried at fair value on the balance sheet. As of Decetnber 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has 
derivative instruments not included in hedge relationships. These derivatives consist of interest rate swaps used for interest rate 
managc1ncnt purposes and derivatives executed with com1nercial banking custo1ners to facilitate their interest rate 1nanagement 
strategics. The change in the fair value of these derivative instruments is reflected in the statements ofinco1ne. As ofDecembcr 31, 
2016, the Company also has a derivative instrument that is included in hedge relationships. This derivative consists of an interest 
rate swap used for interest rate manage1ncnt purposes on co1nmcrcial real estate loans. The change in the fair value of these 
derivative instrun1cnts and net swap settlen1cnts arc reflected in the statements as non-interest expense. The Company also has 
an interest rate swap for the purpose of hedging changes in LIBOR related to commercial real estate loans. Hedge ineffectiveness 
is assessed quanerly and any ineffectiveness is recorded as non-interest expense. 

Trust Assets: Assets held in a fiduciary or agency capacity for customers are not included in the accompanying financial 
statcn1cnts since such itc1ns are not assets ofthe Co1npany. 

Income Taxes: The consolidated provision for income taxes is based upon reported income and expense. Deferred 
income taxes arc provided for temporary differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed 
using enacted tax rates. The Company files a consolidated income tax return. The respective subsidiaries generally provide for 
income taxes on a separate return basis and remit amounts determined to be currently payable to the Parent Company. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to examinations and challenges from federal and state taxing authorities 
regarding positions taken in returns. Uncertain tax positions are initially recognized in the consolidated financial statements 
\Vhen it is inore likely than not the position will be sustained upon cxan1ination. These positions arc initially and subsequently 
measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50o/o likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement \Vith the 
taxing authority and assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts by the taxing authority. 

The Co1npany invests in certain limited partnerships that operate qualified low-inco1nc housing tax credit 
developments. These invest1nents are considered variable interest entities for which the Company is not the pri1nary 
beneficiary. The tax credits arc reflected in the Consolidated State1nents of Income as a reduction in income tax expense. The 
unamortized amount of the investments is recorded within Other Assets within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company's 
investments in affordable housing limited partnerships were $0.3 million and $0.5 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. 

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs arc expensed as incurred. 

Stock-Based Compensation: Compensation expense related to stock options and restricted stock awards issued to 
employees is based upon the fair value of the award at the date of grant. The fair value of stock options is estimated utilizing a 
Black Scholes pricing 1nodel, while the fair value of restricted stock awards is based upon the stock price at the date of 
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grant. Co1npensation expense is recognized on a straight line basis over the vesting period for options and the respective period 
for stock awards. 

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Comn1on Share: Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by 
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding, excluding participating securities. Diluted earnings per 
share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding, excluding participating 
securities, increased by the number of shares of common stock which would be issued assuming the exercise of stock options 
and other co1n1non stock equivalents. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, ''Reve1111efro111 Conlracts 
1vi1h Custo1ners (Topic 606)." This standard clarified the principles for recognizing revenue and developed a common revenue 
standard. The core principle of the standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods 
or services to customers in an a1nount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods and services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the follo\ving steps: (i) identifying the contractor 
contracts with a customer, (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) 
allocate the transaction price to the perfonnance obligations in the contract and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation. This ASU will beco1ne effective for the Company on January I, 2018. The Company's 
revenue is comprised of net interest income on financial assets and financial liabilities, which is explicitly excluded from the 
scope of ASU 2014-09, and non-interest income. The Company continues to evaluate the impact of ASU 2014-09 on the 
components of non-interest income, but does not believe it will have a material impact on the Company's financial state1nents. 
The Co1npany anticipates adopting this standard with a cumulative effect adjustment to opening retained earnings (the modified 
retrospective approach), if such adjustment is deemed to be material. 

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, "Consolidation (Topic 810) -A111end111e11ts to the Consolidation 
Analysis." ASU 2015-02 elhninates the deferral of FAS I 67 and makes changes to both the variable interest model and the voting 
1nodcl. This ASU became effective for the Company on January I, 2016. The adoption of ASU 2015-02 did not have a 1natcrial 
i1npact on the Company's financial statements. 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, "Interest - I111p111ation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): ShnplifYing 
the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." ASU 2015-03 requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability 
be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction fron1 the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent \Vith debt 
discounts. This ASU became effective for the Company on January I, 2016. The adoption of ASU 2015-03 has not had a material 
i1npact on the Company's financial statements. 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05, "Intangibles - Good1vill and Olher- Internal-Use Soft1vare (Subtopic 
350-40): C11s10111er S Acco11111ingfor Fees Paid in a Cloud Co111p111ing Arrange1ne111. "ASU 2015-05 provides guidance to clarify 
the customer's accounting for fees paid in a cloud computing arrangement. This ASU beca1ne effective for the Co1npany on 
January l, 2016. The adoption of ASU 2015-05 has not had a 1naterial impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In May 2015, the FASS issued ASU No. 2015-07, "Fair Value Meas11re111ent (Topic 820): Disclosures for Invest111ents 
in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Assel Value per Share (or /Is Equivalent)." ASU 2015-07 rcn1oves the requirement to 
categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share 
practical expedient. The ASU also removes the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investments that are eligible to 
be measured at fair value using the net asset value per share practical expedient. This ASU became effective for the Co1npany 
on January 1, 2016. The adoption of ASU 2015-07 has not had a material impact on the Co1npany's financial statements. 

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16, "Business Co111binatio11s (Topic 805): Si111plifYing the 
Accounting for Measure111e11t-Period Aqj11st111ents." The an1cndn1ents in ASU 2015-16 require that an acquirer recognize 
adjustments to provisional amounts that arc identified during the mcasure1ncnt period in the reporting period in which the 
adjusttncnt a1nounts are determined. The effect on earnings of the adjustments as a result ofthc change to the provisional amounts 
will be calculated as ifthe accounting had been co1npleted at the acquisition date. The amount that would've been recorded in 
the previous reporting periods will be presented separately on the face ofthe income statement or disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. l'his ASU beca1ne effective for the Company on January 1, 2016. The adoption of ASU 2015-16 has not 
had a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, "I11co111e Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of 
Deferred Taxes." This standard requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as non-current on the balance sheet. 
This ASU will become effective for the Company for interim and annual periods on January 1, 2017 and early adoption is 
permitted. The adoption of ASU No. 2015-17 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
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In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-0 ! , "Financial lnstr11111e11ts-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition 
and Meas11re111ent of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. "This standard makes several modifications to Subtopic 825-1 O 
including the elimination of the available-for-sale classification of equity investments, and requires equity invcstinents with 
readily determinable fair values to be 1neasured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net inco1ne. This ASU ,viii 
become effective for the Company for interi1n and annual periods on January I, 2018. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-01 is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842). "This standard requires organizations to 
recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclose key information about leasing requirements for 
leases that were historically classified as operating leases under previous generally accepted accounting principals. This ASU 
\Vill become effective for the Company for interim and annual periods on January I, 2019. Management is currently assessing 
the i1npact of the adoption of ASU No. 2016-02. 

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, "Co111pensarion-Stock Co1npe11sation (Topic 718): l111prove111ents 
to E111plo;'ee Share Based Acco1111ti11g. "This standard makes several modifications to the accounting for share-based payment 
transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on 
the statement of cash flo\vs. This ASU will become effective for the Company for interim and annual periods on January I, 
2017. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-09 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-10, "Revenuefi-0111 Contracts ~vith C11sto111ers (Topic 606): Identifying 
Peifor111a11ce Obligations and Licensing. "This standard \Vas issued to clarify Revenue ji·o111 Contracts 1vith Custo111ers (Topic 
606) related to: (i) identifying performance obligations; and (ii) the licensing implementation guidance. The effective date is 
the same as the effective date ofASU 2014-09, "Reven11efivn1Contracts1vith C11s10111ers (Topic 606), 11as discussed above. ASU 
2016-10 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In June 2016, the FASS issued ASU No. 2016-13, "Financial l11stru111e11ts - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Meas11re111ent 
of Credit Losses on Financial !11str11111ents. "This standard replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP 
\Vi th a 1ncthodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable 
information to inform credit loss estimates. The amendments in this update require a financial asset (or a group of financial 
assets) 1ncasurcd at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. The new current expected 
credit losses model (CECL) will apply to the al!o\vance for loan losses, available-for-sale and held to maturity debt securities, 
purchased financial assets with credit deterioration and certain off-balance sheet credit exposures. This ASU will become 
effective for the Company for interim and annual periods on January I, 2020. Management is currently evaluating the potential 
impact of ASU No. 2016-13 on the Co1npany's financial statements. 

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-I5, "State111en1 of Cash Flo1vs (Topic 230): Classification of Certain 
Cash Receipts and Cash Pay111ents. "This a1nendment addresses existing diversity in practice regarding how certain receipts and 
payments are presented in the statement of cash flows. Issues addressed in this amendment include debt prepayment and 
cxtinguish1nent costs, proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims, proceeds from the settlement of bank-owned life 
insurance policies, and separately identifiable cash flo\vs and application of the predominance principle and their classifications 
in the statcn1cnt of cash flows. This ASU will become effective for the Company for interim and annual periods on January 1, 
2018. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-15 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016- I 6, "lnco111e Taxes (Topic 740): l11tra-E11tity Transfers of Assets Other 
Than lnve11to1y. 11 This a1nendment improves the accounting for the income tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of assets 
other than inventory. Issues addressed in this amendment include the recognition ofinco1ne tax consequences of an intra-entity 
transfer of an asset other than inventory \Vhen the transfer occurs. This ASU will become effective for the Company on January 
I, 2018. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-16 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In Dcce1nber2016, the FASS issuedASU No. 2016~20, "Technical Corrections and l111p1vve111e11ts to Topic 606, Revenue 
fivn1 Contracts 1vith C11sto111ers." This amendment provides clarification for multiple aspects of Update 2014-09, 
"Co1npe11satio11-Stock Co11111ensation (Topic 7 18): l111p1vve111e11ts to E111p!oyee Share Based Accounting" including the scope of 
guarantee fees, impairment testing of contract costs and the accrual of advertising costs. This ASU \Vill become effective for 
the Co1npany on January I, 2018. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-20 is not expected to have a 1naterial impact on the Con1pany's 
financial staten1ents. 

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, "Business Co111binations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition 
o.f a Business. 11 This atnendmcnt clarifies the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities 
\Vith evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. This ASU 
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will beco1nc effective for the Co1npany on January l, 2018. The adoption of ASU No. 2017-0 ! is not expected to have a material 
in1pact on the Con1pany's financial statements. 

Statements ofCash Flows: Cash paid for interest, including interest paid on long-tenn debt and trust preferred securi tics, 
\Vas Si3.l 1nil!ion, Sll.8 million, and $12.l million in 2016, 2015, and 20!4, respectively. During 2016, 2015 and 2014, the 
Company paid $16.3 million, $26.3 million, and $23.0 1nillion, respectively, for income taxes. 

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, the Company transferred certain securities from available-for­
sale to held-to-1naturity. The non-cash transfers of securities into the held-to-1naturity categories from available-for-sale were 
made at fair value on the date of the transfer. The securities had an aggregate fair value of$83.4 million on the date of 
transfer. 

NOTE TWO-ACQUISITION 

On Novc1nber 6, 2015, the Co1npany purchased three branches in Lexington, Kentucky from American Founders Bank, 
Inc. ("AFB"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Financial Holdings, Inc. The Company agreed to pay: (i) a $5.2 million premium 
on the non-time deposits acquired (representing a 5.5o/o premium on average balance for the preceding nventy days), (ii) a SI .2 
million premium on the loans acquired (representing a 1.0% premiu1n on loan balances at the date of acquisition, plus certain 
adjust1ncnts) and (iii) S4.0 million for the one bank O\vned branch. The purchase added approxi1nately $145 million in deposits 
and $119 million in loans. 

Acquired Loans 

The Co1npany did not acquire any purchased credit-impaired loans as a result of the branch acquisition. The following 
table presents information regarding the noncredit-impaired loans acquired (in thousands): 

Outstanding balance 

Less: fair value adjustment 

Fair value of acquired noncredit-impaired loans 

Acquired Deposirs 

$ 

$ 

119,242 

(l,763) 

117,479 

The fair values of non-time deposits approxi1nated their carrying value at the acquisition date. For time deposits, the 
fair values were esti1nated based on discounted cash flo\vs, using interest rates that arc currently being offered compared to the 
contractual interest rates. Based on this analysis, manage1nent recorded a premium on time deposits acquired of$0. l million, 
which is being amortized over 3 years. 
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Core Deposit Intangible 

The Company believes that the customer relationships \Vi th the deposits acq uircd have an intangible value. In connection 
with this branch acquisition, the Company recorded a core deposit intangible asset of $1.4 million. The core deposit intangible 
asset represents the value that the acquiree had \vi th their deposit customers. The fair value was esthnated based on a discounted 
cash flo\v methodology that considered type of deposit, deposit retention and the cost of the deposit base. The core deposit 
intangible is being amortized over 10 years. 

Good1vill 

The Coinpany recorded approximately S6.8 million in goodwill as a result of this acquisition. The goodwill recorded 
in conjunction with the branch acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 

Merger Related Costs 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company incurred $0.6 million of merger-related costs in connection 
with the AFB branch acquisition. 

NOTE THREE- RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 

City National is required to 1naintain an average reserve balance with the Federal Reserve Bank of Rich1nond to 
co1npensate for services provided by the Federal Reserve and to 1neet statutory required reserves for demand deposits. The 
average amount of the reserve balance for the year ended Dcce1nber 31, 2016 was approximately $33.3 million. 
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NOTE FOUR-INVESTMENTS 

The aggregate carrying and approximate market values of securities follow (in thousands). Fair values are based on 
quoted 1narket prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices 
of comparable financial instruments. 

Se,·1witie"· Ul'ai/abfe.jor-safe; 

U.S. Treasuries and U.S. 

govemmeot ageocies 

Obligacions of states and 

political subdivisions 

Mortgage-backed se<:uritics: 

U.S. government agencies 

Private label 

Trust preferred 

securities 

Corpomte securities 

Total Debt Securities 

Marketable equity securities 

Investment lllnds 

Total Securities 

Available-for-Sale 

se,·111'iffo,,· he/d-to·tllaflirily 

U.S. government agencies 

Trust preferred securities 

Total Securities 

Held-to-Maturity 

01her investment securities: 

Non-nmrkelablc equity securities 

Total Other Investment 

Securities 

December 31, 2016 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unreatlzcd Estimated A1nortized 
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Cost 

$ 3 $ -$ -$ 3 $ 5 

83,248 594 1,474 82,368 49,725 

335,867 1,507 6,560 330,814 287,933 

941 1 942 1,222 

6,052 1,164 554 6,662 6,550 

23,925 127 478 23,574 18,793 

450,036 3,393 9,066 444,363 364,228 

2,136 2,095 4,231 2,131 

1,525 36 1,489 1,525 

Dece1nber 3 l, 2015 
Gross 

Unrealized 
Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

$ -$ -$ 5 

979 7 50,697 

2,285 2,021 288,197 

9 1,231 

463 1,155 5,858 

221 321 18,693 

3,957 3,504 364,681 

1,142 3,273 

13 1,512 

$453,697 $ 5,488 $ 9,102 $450,083 $367,884 s 5,099 s 3,517 $369,466 

December 31, 2016 

Gross Gross 
An1ortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated An1orlized 

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Cost 

December 31, 2015 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

$ 71,169 $ 1,346 $ 

4,000 

70 $ 72,445 $ 84,937 $ 1,949 s 76 $ 86,810 

4,000 4,000 4,000 

$ 75,169 $ 1,346 $ 70 $ 76,445 $ 88,937 s 1,949 $ 76 $ 90,810 

$ 14,352 $ $ $ 14,352 s 12,915 s s $ 12,915 

$ 14,352 $ -$ - $ 14,352 s 12,915 s -$ - $ 12,915 

Marketable equity securities consist of investments made by the Company in equity positions of various community 
banks. Included within this portfolio are ownership positions in the following community bank holding companies: First 
National Corporation (FXNC) (4%) and Eagle Financial Services, Inc. (EFSI) (1.5%). Securities with limited marketability, 
such as stock in the Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") or the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB"), are carried at cost and are 
reported as non-n1arkctable equity securities in the table above. 

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no securities of any non-governmental issuer whose aggregate canying 
value or estimated fair value exceeded 10% of shareholders' equity. 
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Certain invest1nent securities ov,rned by the Company 'vere in an unrealized loss position (i.e., amortized cost basis 
exceeded the estimated fair value of the securities) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. The following table shows the gross 
unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's investments aggregated by invcstn1ent category and length of time that 
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position (in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 

Less Than Tlveh·e Months Tlvelvc Months or Greater Total 

Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrcali7.ed Estimated Unrcali7.cd 
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss !•air Value Loss 

Securities available-for-sale: 

Obligations of states and political subdivisions $ 35,108 $ 1,474 $ -$ -$ 35,108 $ 1,474 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

U.S. Government agencies 225,530 6,099 8,527 461 234,057 6,560 

Trust preferred securities 4,971 554 4,971 554 

Corporate securities 14,306 478 14,306 478 

Investment funds t,500 36 1,500 36 

Total $ 276,444 $ 8,087 $ 13,498 $ 1,015 $ 289,942 $ 9,102 

December 31, 2015 

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or Greater Total 

Estilnated Unrealized Esti1natcd Unrcali7.cd Estimated Unrealized 
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Lo~ Fair Value Loss 

Securities available-for-sale: 

Obligations of states and political subdivisions $ 2,406 $ 5 $ 128 $ 2 s 2,534 $ 7 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

U.S. Govem1ncnt agencies 129,612 688 34,044 1,333 163,656 2,021 

Trust preferred securities 4,769 1,155 4,769 1,155 

Corporate securities 10,856 174 2,231 147 13,087 321 

Investment funds 1,488 13 1,488 13 
Total $ 142,874 $ 867 $ 42,660 $ 2,650 s 185,534 $ 3,517 

During the year ended Dece1nbcr 31, 2016 the Company had $0.5 1nillion in credit-related net invcstn1ent impainnent 
losses. During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Co1npany recorded no credit-related net investment impairment 
losses. The charges deemed to be other-than-temporary \Vere related to pooled bank trust preferred securities and were based 
on the Cotnpany's quarterly reviews of its investment securities for indications of losses considered to be other-than-temporary. 
At Dcceinbcr 3 ! , 2016, the cu1nulative amount of credit-related investment impairment losses that have been recognized by 
the Company on investinents that remain in the Company's investment portfolio as of that date was$ I 0.2 million ($8.6 million 
related to the Company's debt securities and S 1.6 million related to the Company's equity securities). 

Declines in the fair value ofheld-to-1naturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost that arc deemed to be 
other-than-temporary would be reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, 
managc1nent considers, among other things (i) the length oftitne and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, 
(ii) the financial condition, capital strength, and near-term (12 months) prospects of the issuer, including any specific events 
\Vhich may influence the operations of the issuer such as changes in technology that may impair the earnings potential ofthe 
investment or the discontinuance of a segment of the business that may affect the future earnings potential; (iii) the historical 
volatility in the market value of the investment and/or the liquidity or i!liquidity of the investment; (iv) adverse conditions 
specifically related to the security, an industry, or a geographic area; or (v) the intent to sell the investment security and if it's 
more likely than not that the Company will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis. In addition, management 
also e1nploys a continuous monitoring process in regards to its 1narketable equity securities, specifically its portfolio of regional 
community bank holdings. Although the regional community bank stocks that are owned by the Company are publicly traded, 
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the trading activity for these stocks is n1inimal, with trading volumes oflcss than 0.3% of each respective co1npany being traded 
on a daily basis. As part of managc1nent's review process for these securities, management reviews the financial condition of 
each respective regional community bank for any indications of financial weakness. 

Manage1nent has the ability and intent to hold the securities classified as held-to-1naturity until they mature, at which 
time the Company expects to receive full value for the securities. Furthermore, as of December 31, 2016, management does 
not intend to sell an impaired security and it is not more than likely that it will be required to sell the security before the recovery 
of its amortized cost basis. The unrealized losses on debt securities are pri1narily the result of interest rate changes, credit 
spread fluctuations on agency-issued mortgage related securities, general financial market uncertainty and unprecedented 
1narket volatility. These conditions \Vill not prohibit the Company from receiving its contractual principal and interest payments 
on its debt securities. The fair value is expected to recover as the securities approach their maturity date or repricing date. As 
of Dece1nber 31, 2016, manage1nent believes the unrealized losses detailed in the table above are temporary and no additional 
impairment loss has been recognized in the Co1npany's consolidated income statement. Should the impairment of any of these 
securities bccon1c other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the investment will be reduced and the resulting loss will be recognized 
in net income in the period the other-than-temporary impainnent is identified, while any noncredit loss will be recognized in 
other comprehensive income. 

The a1nortizcd cost and cstilnatcd fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2016, by contractual maturity, are 
shown in the following table (in thousands). Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of 
the securities may have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties. Mortgage-backed securities have been 
allocated to their respective maturity groupings based on their contractual 1naturity. 

Securities Available-for-Sale 

Due in one year or less 

Due after one year through five years 

Due after five years through ten years 

Due aficr ten years 

Securities Jle/d-to-Maturity 

Due in one year or less 

Due after one year through five years 

Due after five years through ten years 

Due after ten years 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Estimated Fair 
Cost Value 

2,287 $ 2,211 

25,632 17,632 

64,842 71,162 

357,275 353,358 

450,036 $ 444,363 

$ 

75,169 76,445 

75,169 $ 76,445 

Gross gains and gross losses realized by the Company from invest1nent security transactions arc summarized in the 
table bclo\v (in thousands): 

For the year ended December 31, 

2016 2015 2014 

Gross realized gains $ 3,978 $ 2,142 $ 1,256 

Gross realized losses (465) (12) (100) 

Investment security gains (losses) $ 3,513 s 2,130 $ 1,156 

The carrying value of securities pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by 
law approximated $337 million and $291 1nillion at Dece1nber 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
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NOTE FIVE-LOANS 

The following summarizes the Company's 1najor classifications for loans (in thousands): 

December 3 I, December 31, 
2016 2015 

Residential real estate $ 1,451,462 $ 1,383,133 

Home equity 141,965 147,036 

Commercial and industrial 185,667 165,340 

Commercial real estate 1,229,516 1,127,581 

Consumer 32,545 36,083 

DOA overdrafts 5,071 3,361 

Gross loans 3,046,226 2,862,534 

Allowance for loan losses (19,730) (19,251) 

Net loans $ 3,026,496 $ 2,843,283 

Construction loans ofS14.2 1nillion and S13.11nillion are included within residential real estate loans at December 31, 
2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Construction loans of $12.8 million and $12.6 million are included within 
commercial real estate loans at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The Company's com1nercial and 
residential real estate construction loans arc primarily secured by real estate within the Company's principal markets. These 
loans were originated under the Company's loan policy, which is focused on the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, including 
construction loans. Adequate consideration has been given to these loans in establishing the Company's allowance for loan 
losses. 

The following table details the loans acquired in conjunction with the Virginia Savings, Community and AFB 
acquisitions (in thousands). These loans were originally underwritten by the acquiree in accordance \Vith the acquiree's 
under.vriting guidelines. As loans come up for renewal, extension, etc., the loans are underwritten in accordance withe the 
Company's underwriting guidelines and are thus not reflected in the table below. 

December 31, 2016 

Outstanding loan balance 

Credit-ilnpaired loans: 

Carrying value 

Contractual principal and interest 

Dece1nbcr 31, 20 l 5 

Outstanding loan balance 

Credit-i1npaired loans: 

Carrying value 

Contractual principal and interest 

$ 

Virginia 
Savings 

23,714 $ 

1,700 

1,895 

28,914 s 

1,707 

1,965 

Co1nn1unity 

149,488 $ 

8,857 

11,157 

181,545 $ 

12,899 

16,362 

AFB 

85,120 $ 

112,862 $ 

Total 

258,322 

10,557 

13,052 

323,321 

14,606 

18,327 
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Changes in the accrctable yield and the carrying amount of the purchased credit-impaired loans is as follows (in 
thousands): 

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Carrying Carrying 
Accretable Amount Accrctable Amount 

Yield of Loans Yield of Loans 

Balance at the beginning of the period $ 6,640 $ 14,606 $ 10,334 s 17,329 

Accretion (1,061) 1,061 (2,665) 2,665 

Reclassifications to/from accretable from/to non-accretable 
difference, net (145) 1,103 

Pay1nents received, net (4,376) (3,369) 

Disposals (425) (734) (2,132) (2,019) 

Balance at the end of period $ 5,009 $ 10,557 $ 6,640 s 14,606 

Increases in expected cash flow subsequent to the acquisition are recognized first as a reduction of any previous 
impairment, then prospectively through adjustment of the yield on the loans or pools over its re1naining life, \Vhilc decreases in 
expected cash flows are recognized as ilnpairment through a provision for loan loss and an increase in the allowance for purchased 
credit-impaired loans. 

NOTE SIX-ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

Management syste1natically 1nonitors the loan portfolio and the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses on a 
quarterly basis to provide for probable losses inherent in the portfolio. Manage1nent assesses the risk in each loan type based 
on historical trends, the general economic environ1nent of its local markets, individual loan perfonnance and other relevant 
factors. 

Individual credits in excess of $1 million arc selected at least annually for detailed loan reviews, \Vhich arc utilized by 
management to assess the risk in the portfolio and the appropriateness of the allowance. Due to the nature of commercial lending, 
evaluation of the appropriateness of the allowance as it relates to these types of loan types is often based more upon specific 
credit revie\vs, with consideration given to the potential impainnent of certain credits and historical loss rates, adjusted for 
ccono1nic conditions and other inherent risk factors. 

The following summarizes the activity in the allowance for loan loss, by portfolio scgment(in thousands). The allocation 
of a portion of the al\o\vance in one portfolio seg1nent does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other portfolio 
seg1ncnts. The following also presents the balance in the allowance for loan loss disaggregated on the basis ofthc Company's 
i1npairment measurement 1ncthod and the related recorded investment in loans, by portfolio segment (in thousands) .. 

Comincrcial 
and Co1n1ncrcial Residential 

industrial real estate real estate 

December 31, 2016 

Allo1vancefor loan loss 

Beginning balance $ 3,271 $ 6,985 $ 6,778 $ 

Charge-offs (148) (1,676) (1,734) 

Recoveries 14 487 187 

Provision 1,069 614 1,449 

Provision for acquired loans with 
deteriorated credit quality 163 

Ending balance $ 4,206 $ 6,573 $ 6,680 $ 

December 31, 2015 

Al/01va11ce /01· foan loss 

Beginning balance s 1,582 $ 8,845 $ 7,208 $ 

Charge-offs (5,768) (580) (1,144) 

Hoine 
equity 

DOA 
Consumer overdrafts 

1,463 $ 97 $ 657 $ 

(390) (126) (1,412) 

118 764 

344 (7) 763 

1,417 $ 82 $ 772 $ 

1,495 $ 85 $ 859 s 
(312) (210) (1,414) 

Total 

19,251 

(5,486) 

1,570 

4,232 

163 

19,730 

20,074 

(9,428) 
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Recoveries 

Provision 

Provision for acquired loans with 
deteriorated credit quality 

Ending balance 

As of December 31, 2016 

Alloivancefor 10011 loss 

Evaluated for i1npainnent: 

Individually 

Collectively 

Acquired with deteriorated credit 
quality 

Total 

Loans 

Evaluated for impairment: 

Individually 

Collectively 

Acquired \Vith deteriorated credit 
quality 

Total 

As ofDecember 31, 2015 

Alfo1va11ce for loan loss 

Evaluated for impairment: 

Individually 

Collectively 

$ 

$ 

$ 

74 

7,383 

3,271 s 

$ 

4,200 

6 

4,206 $ 

366 

(2,199) 

553 

6,985 $ 

665 $ 

5,788 

120 

6,573 $ 

199 

515 

6,778 $ 

$ 

6,589 

91 

6,680 $ 

280 

1,463 $ 

$ 

1,417 

1,417 $ 

186 

36 

97 s 

$ 

82 

82 $ 

792 

420 

l,617 

6,435 

553 

657 s 19,251 

$ 

772 

665 
18,848 

217 

772 $ 19,730 

$ 1,611 $ 5,970 $ $ $ $ $ 7,581 
183,741 1,216,050 1,448,830 141,965 32,545 5,071 3,028,202 

315 7,496 2,632 10,443 

$ 185,667 $ 1,229,516 $ 1,451,462 $ 141,965 $ 32,545 $ 5,071 $ 3,046,226 

s s $ s s $ $ 

3,267 6,173 6,765 1,463 97 657 18,422 
Acquired 1vith deteriorated credit 

quality 4 812 13 829 

Tora! =$=~3,;,27=1==$==6=,9=8=5=$====6,=7=78==$==1,=46=3==$==9=7==$=="65=7==$==19=,2=5""'1 

Loans 

Evaluated for i1npainnent: 

Individually 

Collectively 

Acquired with deteriorated credit 
quality 

Total 

Credit Quality Indicators 

$ 2,349 $ 6,133 $ $ $ $ $ 8,482 

162,662 1,109,327 1,381,064 147,036 35,997 3,361 2,839,447 

329 12,121 2,069 86 14,605 

$ 165,340 $ 1,127,581 $ 1,383,133 $ 147,036 $ 36,083 $ 3,361 $ 2,862,534 

All non~co1n1ncrcial loans arc evaluated based on payment histoiy. All commercial loans within the portfolio are subject 
to internal risk grading. The Company's internal risk ratings for com1nercial loans arc: Exceptional, Good, Acceptable, Pass/ 
Watch, Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful. Each internal risk rating is defined in the loan policy using the following 
criteria: balance sheet yields, ratios and leverage, cash flow spread and coverage, prior histoiy, capability of management, 
market position/industiy, potential ilnpact of changing economic, legal, rcgulatoiy or environ1nental conditions, purpose 
structure, collateral support, and guarantor support. Risk grades are generally assigned by the primary lending officer and arc 
periodically evaluated by the Company's internal loan review process. Based on an individual loan's risk grade, esti1nated loss 
percentages are applied to the outstanding balance ofthe loan to determine the a1nount of probable loss. 

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant inforn1ation regarding the custo1ner's debt service 
ability, capacity, overall collateral position along with other economic trends, and historical payment performance. The risk 
grades for each credit arc updated when the Company receives current financial information, the loan is reviewed by the 
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Company's internal loan review/credit administration departments, or the loan becomes delinquent or impaired. The risk grades 
arc updated a 1ninimum of annually for loans rated exceptional, good, acceptable, or pass/,vatch. Loans rated special mention, 
substandard or doubtful are revie\vcd at least quarterly. The Company uses the following definitions for its risk ratings: 

Risk Rating 

Pass Ratings: 

(a) Exceptional 

(b) Good 

(c) Acceptable 

(d) Pass/watch 

Special mention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Description 

Loans classified as exceptional are secured with liquid collateral confonning to the internal loan 
policy. Loans rated within this category pose minimal risk of loss to the bank and the risk grade within 
this pool of loans is generally updated on an annual basis. 

Loans classified as good have similar characteristics that include a strong balance sheet, satisfactory 
debt service coverage ratios, strong management and/or guarantors, and little exposure to economic 
cycles. Loans within this category are generally reviewed on an annual basis. Loans in this category 
generally have a low chance ofloss to the bank. 

Loans classified as acceptable have acceptable liquidity levels, adequate debt service coverage ratios, 
experienced management, and have average exposure to economic cycles. Loans within this category 
generally have a low risk of loss to the bank. 

Loans classified as pass/watch have erratic levels of leverage and/or liquidity, cash flo\v is volatile and 
the borrower is subject to moderate economic risk. A borrower in this category poses a low to 
rnoderate risk of loss to the bank. 

Loans classified as special 1nention have a potential weakness( es) that deserves management's close 
attention. The potential weakness could result in deterioration of the loan repayment or the bank's 
credit position at some future date. A loan rated in this category poses a moderate loss risk to the bank. 

Loans classified as substandard reflect a customer 'vi th a well defined \Vcakncss that jeopardizes the 
liquidation of the debt. Loans in this category have the possibility that the bank \viii sustain some loss 
ifthc deficiencies arc not corrected and the bank's collateral value is \Veakened by the financial 
deterioration of the borrower. 

Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with 
the added characteristics that make collection of the full contract amount highly improbable. Loans 
rated in this category arc most likely to cause the bank to have a loss due to a collateral shortfall or a 
negative capital position. 
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The follovving table presents the Company's commercial loans by credit quality indicators, by class (in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 

Pass 

Special mention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Total 

Dece1nbcr 3 I, 2015 

Pass 
Special 1nention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Total 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

Co1n1ncrcial 
and industrial 

176,823 $ 

2,427 

6,417 

185,667 $ 

156,664 s 
4,099 

4,539 

38 

165,340 $ 

Com1nercial 
real estate Total 

1,178,288 $ I,355,111 

16,031 18,458 

35,197 41,614 

1,229,516 $ I,415,183 

1,070,506 $ 1,227,170 

20,942 25,041 

36,133 40,672 

38 

1,127,581 $ 1,292,921 

The following table presents the Company's non-commercial loans by payment performance, by class (in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 

Residential real estate 

Home equity 

Consumer 

DDA overdrafts 

Total 

Dece1nber 31, 20 ! 5 

Residential real estate 

Hoine equity 

Consumer 

DDA overdrafts 

Total 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Perfonning 

1,451,389 s 
141,934 

32,545 

5,071 

1,630,939 $ 

1,379,797 s 
147,013 

36,049 

3,361 

1,566,220 s 

Non-
Pcrfonning Total 

73 $ 1,451,462 

31 141,965 

32,545 

5,071 

104 $ 1,631,043 

3,336 $ 1,383,133 

23 147,036 

34 36,083 

3,361 

3,393 $ 1,569,613 
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Aging Analysis of Accruing and Non-Accruing Loans 

The follo\ving presents an aging analysis of the Company's accruing and non-accruing loans, by class (in thousands). 
The purchased credit-impaired loan column represents the purchased credit-impaired loans that the Company acquired that arc 
contractually past due, but are still perfonning in accordance with the Company's initial expectations. 

Decen1ber 31, 2016 
Accruing 

Over90 
Purchased-

Credit 
Current 30-59 days 60-89 days days Im~aired Non-accrual Total 

Residential real estate ' 1,441,086 s 5,364 $ 637 $ 73 s s 4,302 $ 1,451,462 

Home equity 141,192 423 219 31 JOO 141,965 
Com1ncrcial and industrial 183,615 94 1,958 185,667 

Com1nercial real estate 1,221,344 553 278 7,341 1,229,516 

Consu1ncr 32,506 38 I 32,545 

DOA overdrafts 4,472 595 4 5,071 

Total s 3,024,215 s 7,067 $ 861 $ 382 $ s 13,701 $ 3,046,226 

Dccc1nbcr 31, 2015 
Accruing 

Purchased-

Current 30-59 days 60-89 days Over 90 days 
Credit 

Non-accrual Total Tmoaircd 
Residential real estate s 1,373,604 s 5,261 $ 932 s 418 s s 2,918 s 1,383,133 

Home equity 146,493 318 65 24 136 147,036 

Co111mcrcial and industrial 162,435 141 19 2,745 165,340 

Co1nmercial real estate l,114,953 762 211 506 11,149 1,127,581 

Consu1ncr 35,886 154 9 34 36,083 

DOA overdrafts 3,048 310 3 3,361 

Total s 2,836,419 s 6,946 s 1,220 $ 495 s 506 s 16,948 $ 2,862,534 
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The following presents the Company's impaired loans, by class (in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 Dece1nbcr 31, 2015 
Unpaid Unpaid 

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Principal Related 
Investment Balance Allo,vance Investtncnt Balance Allo\vance 

With 110 related allo11'a11ce recorded: 

Commercial and industrial $ 1,611 $ 3,775 • s 2,349 s 7,547 $ 
Co1nmercial real estate 3,138 4,963 6,133 9,502 
Total $ 4,749 $ 8,738 $ $ 8,482 $ 17,049 $ 

With a11 a!lowa11ce recorded 

Commercial and industrial $ s $ s $ $ 
Co1n1nercial real estate 2,832 2,832 665 

Total $ 2,832 s 2,832 • 665 s $ $ 

The following table presents information related to the average recorded invest1nent and interest income recognized 
on the Company's impaired loans, by class (in thousands): 

With 110 related (ll/011'a11ce recorded: 

Commercial and industrial 
Co1n1ncrcial real estate 
Total 

With an allo1vu11ce recorded 

Commercial and industrial 
Com1nereial real estate 

Total 

$ 

$ 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2016 Dccc1nbcr 31, 2015 

Average Interest Average Interest 
Recorded Income Recorded Income 

Investment Recognized Invcst1ncnt Recognized 

2,099 2,913 

4,039 14 5,606 4 

6,138 $ 14 $ 8,519 $ 4 

1,419 24 1,012 

1,419 $ 24 $ 1,012 s 

I fthe Co1npany's non"accrual and i1npaired loans had been current in accordance with their original terms, approximately 
S0.4 million, S0,8 1nillion and S0.5 million of interest income would have been recognized during the years ended December 31, 
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. There were no co1n1nitments to provide additional funds on non·accrual, impaired or other 
potential problem loans at Dece1nber 3 ! , 2016. 

Loan Modijh:ations 

The Company's policy on loan modifications typically does not allow for modifications that would be considered a 
concession from the Company. Ho\vever, when there is a modification, the Company evaluates each modification to determine 
if the modification constitutes a troubled debt restructuring ("TDR") in accordance with ASU 2011 ·2, whereby a 1nodification 
ofa loan would be considered a TOR when both of the following conditions are met: (I) a borrower is experiencing financial 
difficulty and (2) the modification constitutes a concession. When detennining whether the borrower is experiencing financial 
difficulties, the Company reviews whether the debtor is currently in payment default on any of its debt or whether it is probable 
that the debtor would be in payment default in the foreseeable future without the modification. Other indicators of financial 
difficulty include whether the debtor has declared or is in the process of declaring bankruptcy, the debtor's ability to continue 
as a going concern, or the debtor's projected cash flow to service its debt (including principal and interest) in accordance with 
the contractual tcnns for the foreseeable future, without a modification. 

Regulatory guidance requires loans to be accounted for as collateral"dependent loans when borrowers have filed Chapter 
7 bankruptcy, the debt has been discharged by the bankruptcy court and the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt. The filing of 
bankruptcy is deemed to be evidence that the borrower is in financial difficulty and the discharge of the debt by the bankruptcy 
court is deemed to be a concession granted to the borrower. 
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The following tables set forth the Company's TDRs (in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 

Non- Non-

Accruing Accruing Total Accruing Accruing Total 

Co1n1ncrcial and industrial $ 42 $ $ 42 s SS s s S8 

Commercial real estate 5,525 5,525 1,746 1,746 

Residential real estate 20,424 391 20,815 17,796 191 17,987 

Home equity 3,105 30 3,135 2,659 34 2,693 

Consu1ner 

$ 29,096 $ 421 $ 29,517 s 22,259 $ 225 s 22,484 

New TDRs Nc\vTDRs 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Deccn1bcr 31, 2016 Deceinber 31, 2015 
p,. Post Pco Post 

Modification Modification Modification Modification 

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding 

Number of Recorded Recorded Nu1nber of Recorded Recorded 

Contracts l11vcstment lnvestmc11t Contracts Invest1nent Inves1tnent 

Com1nercial and industrial $ $ $ $ 

Co1n1nercial real estate 2 5,021 4,366 

Residential real estate 37 3,812 3,812 38 2,969 2,969 

Home equity 9 221 221 13 361 361 

Consumer 

48 s 9,054 $ 8,399 SI s 3,330 $ 3,330 
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NOTE SEVEN - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

Asu1nmary of premises and equip1nent and related accun1ulated depreciation is sum1narized as follows (in thousands): 

Esti1nated Useful Life 2016 2015 

Land $ 31,546 $ 31,496 
Buildings and improvements 10 to 30 yrs. 88,698 87,875 

Equipment 3 to 7 yrs. 40,157 39,159 

160,401 158,530 

Less: accumulated depreciation (85,236) (81,259) 

$ 75,165 s 77,271 

NOTE EIGHT - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The Company completed its annual assessment of the carrying value of good\vill during 2016 and concluded that its 
carrying value \Vas not impaired. The follo\ving table presents a roll forward of the Company's goodwill activity (in thousands): 

Beginning balance 

Goodwill reduction in conjunction with sale ofCitylnsurancc 

Goodwill acquired in conjunction with the acquisition of AFB 

Adjust1nents to goodwill acquired in conjunction \vith the acquisition of AFB 

Ending balance 

$ 

$ 

2016 

76,256 $ 

(60) 

76,196 $ 

2015 

71,401 

(3,020) 

7,875 

76,256 

The Company believes that the customer relationships with the deposits acquired have an intangible value. In connection 
with acquisitions, the Company recorded a core deposit intangible, which represented the value that the acquiree had \Vith their 
deposit customers. The fair value was estimated based on a discounted cash flo\v methodology that considered the type of 
deposit, estimated deposit retention, the cost of the deposit base and an alternate cost of funds. The following tables present the 
details ofthc Company's core deposit intangibles (in thousands): 

Gross carrying amount 

Accumulated amortization 

Beginning balance 

Core deposit intangible acquired in conjunction \Vith the acquisition of AFB 

Amortization expense 

Ending balance 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 

9,802 $ 

(6,863) 

2,939 $ 

3,536 $ 

(597) 

2,939 $ 

2015 

9,802 

(6,266) 

3,536 

2,797 

l,415 

(676) 

3,536 
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The core deposit intangible a1nortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was S0.9 million. The core 
deposit intangibles are being amortized over ten years. The estimated amortization expense for core deposit intangible assets 
for each ofthc next five years is as follo\vs (in thousands): 

2017 $ 545 
2018 496 

2019 454 

2020 416 

2021 382 

Thereafter 646 

2,939 

NOTE NINE- SCHEDULED MATURITIES OF TIME DEPOSITS 

Scheduled 1naturities of the Co1npany's time deposits outstanding at December 31, 2016 are summarized as follows 
(in thousands): 

2017 $ 484,946 

2018 265,660 

2019 185,882 

2020 85,766 

2021 18,722 

Over five years 443 

$ 1,041,419 

Scheduled maturities of Company's time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC insurance li1nit of $250,000 arc 
summarized as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 

Within one year $ 50,261 $ 35,160 

Over one through two years 24,140 16,491 

Over two through three years 16,437 19,032 

Over three through four years 13,370 10,907 

Over four through five years 588 4,709 

Over five years 

$ 104,796 $ 86,299 
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NOTE TEN - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

A su1nmary of the Company's short-tenn borrowings are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Balance at end of year: 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Federal 1-Iomc Loan Bank advances 

Avg. outstanding during the year: 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Federal Funds purchased 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Max. outstanding at any month end: 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Weighted-average interest rate: 

During the year: 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Federal Funds purchased 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

End ofthc year: 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

2016 

$ 184,205 $ 
64,100 

$ 157,215 $ 

18,850 

$ 184,205 s 
88,600 

0.22o/o 

0.66% 

0.19o/o 

0.77°/o 

2015 

I4I,869 $ 

13,000 

143,847 $ 

193 

1,159 

166,507 $ 

13,000 

0.22% 

0.64% 

0.53% 

0.20% 

0.5I% 

20I4 

134,931 

133,769 

151,637 

0.26% 

0.26% 

Through City National, the Company has purchased 61,641 shares of Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") stock at par 
value as of December 31, 2016. Such purchases arc required based on City National's maximum borrowing capacity \Vi th the 
FHLB. Additionally, FHLB stock entitles the Company to dividends declared by the FHLB and provides an additional source 
of short-tenn and long-term funding, in the form of collateralized advances. Financing obtained fro1n the FHLB is based, in 
part, on the a1nount of qualifying collateral available, specifically l-4 family residential mortgages, other residential mortgages, 
and commercial real estate and other non-residential 1nortgage Joans. Collateral pledged to the FHLB included approximately 
Sl.9 billion at Dccc1nbcr31, 2016 and $1.7 billion at Dece1nber31, 2015 in investment securities and one-to-four-family 
residential property loans. In addition to the short-term financing discussed above and long-tenn financing (sec Note Eleven) 
City National had an additional S 1.6 billion available from unused portions of lines of credit with the FHLB and other financial 
institutions at both Deccn1bcr 31, 2016 and 2015. 

NOTE ELEVEN - LONG-TERM DEBT 

The components of the Company's long-tcrn1 debt arc sumn1arized below (dollars in thousands): 

2016 2015 

Junior subordinated debentures owed to City Holding Capital Trust III, due 2038, interest at 
a rate of 4.35% and 4.0lo/o, respectively $ 16,495 S 16,495 

~~===~~~~"""'~ 

The Company formed a statutory business tntst, City Holding Capital Trust III ("Capital Trust 111"), under the laws of 
De!a\vare. Capital Trust III was created for the exclusive purpose of (i) issuing trust-preferred capital securities ("Capital 
Securities"), which represent preferred undivided beneficial interests in the assets ofthe trust, (ii) using the proceeds from the 
sale of the Capital Securities to acquire junior subordinated debentures ("Debentures") issued by the Company, and (iii) engaging 
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in only those activities necessary or incidental thereto. The trust is considered a variable interest entity for which the Company 
is not the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, the accounts ofthc trusts are not included in the Company's consolidated financial 
statements. 

Distributions on the Debentures are cumulative and \Vill be payable quarterly at an interest rate of3.50% over the three 
month LIBOR rate, reset quarterly. Interest pay1nents are due in March, June, September and December. The Debentures are 
redeemable prior to maturity at the option of the Company (i) in \Vhole or at any time or in part from time~to~time, or (ii) in whole, 
but not in part, at any _time within 90 days following the occurrence and during the continuation of certain pre~defined events. 

Pay1ncnts of distributions on the Capital Securities and payments on redemption of the Capital Securities arc guaranteed 
by the Company. The Company also entered into an agreement as to expenses and liabilities \vith the trust pursuant to which it 
agreed, on a subordinated basis, to pay any cost, expenses or liabilities of the trust other than those arising under the trust preferred 
securities. The obligations of the Company under the junior subordinated debentures, the related indentures, the trust agreen1ent 
establishing the trust and the guarantees and the agreements as to expenses and liabilities, in the aggregate, constitute a full and 
unconditional guarantee by the Company of the trust's obligations under the trust preferred securities. The Capital Securities 
issued by the statutory business trusts qualify as Tier I capital for the Company under current Federal Reserve Board guidelines. 

NOTE TWELVE - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

As of December31, 2016 and 2015, the Co1npany has derivative financial instruments not included in hedge 
relationships. These derivatives consist ofinterest rate swaps used for interest rate 1nanage1nent purposes and derivatives executed 
\Vith co1n1nercial banking custo1ners to facilitate their interest rate management strategics. For the majority of these instruments 
the Company acts as an intermediary for its customers. Changes in the fair value of the underlying derivative contracts for the 
tnost part offset each other and do not significantly impact the Co1npany's results of operations. 

The Company also has an interest rate swap that serves as a fair value hedge for changes in long term fixed interest 
rates related to co1n1nercial real estate loans. Hedge ineffectiveness is assessed quarterly and any ineffectiveness is recorded as 
non-interest expense. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the hedge ineffectiveness was less than SO.I million. 

The follo\ving table su1n1narizes the notional and fair value of these derivative instruments (in thousands): 

Non-hedging interest rate derivatives: 

Customer countcrpartics: 

Loan interest rate swap - assets 

Loan interest rate swap- liabilities 

Non-hedging interest rate derivatives: 

Financial institution counterparties: 

Loan interest rate swap - assets 

Loan interest rate swap - liabilities 

Derivatives designated as hedges of fair value: 

Financial institution counterparties: 

Loan interest rate S\vap - liabilities 

$ 

December 31, 2016 

Notional 
Amount Fair Value 

234,806 $ 

207,201 

207,201 

241,995 

4,626 

7,352 $ 

8,111 

8,111 

7,360 

12 

December 31, 2015 

Notional 
Amount Fair Value 

372,995 $ 10,811 

380,995 10,872 

5,475 61 
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The follo\ving table summarizes the change in fair value of these derivative instru1nents (in thousands): 

Year Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 2014 
Change in Fair Value Non-Hedging Interest Rate Derivatives: 

Other income - derivative assets 

Other income - derivative liabilities 

Other expense - derivative liabilities 

Change in Fair Value Hedging Interest Rate Derivatives: 

Hedged item - derivative asset 

Other income (expense) - derivative liability with financial institution 
counterparties 

$ 

$ 

3,904 $ 

(3,904) 

(52) 

(36) 

13 

1,030 s 
(1,030) 

(61) 

25 

(12) 

6,811 

(6,811) 

Certain financial instruments, including derivatives, 1nay be eligible for offset in the consolidated balance sheet and/ 
or subject to master netting arrangements. The Company's derivative transactions with financial institution counterparties are 
generally executed under International S\vaps and Derivative Association ("ISDA") 1naster agreements which include "right of 
sctoff" provisions. In such cases there is generally a legally enforceable right to offset recognized amounts and there n1ay be 
an intention to settle such amounts on a net basis. Nonetheless, the Company does not generally offset financial instruments 
for financial reporting purposes. Information about financial instruments that are eligible for offset in the consolidated balance 
sheet as of December 31, 2016 is presented in the following tables (in thousands): 

Description 

Gross 

A1nounts of 

Recognized 

Assets 

(•) 

Non-hedging derivative assets: 

Interest rate S\vap 
agreements -
customer 
counterparties 

Interest rate swap 
agrcc1ncnts -
financial 
instirution 
counterpanics 

$ 7,352 s 

8,111 

Gross Net i\1nounts 

Ainounts of Assets 

Offset in the presented in 

State1nent of the State1nent 

Financial of Financial 

Gross Ainounts 

Not Offset in the State1nent 

of Financial Position 

Netting 

Adjust1ncnt 

'" Applicable 

Master Fair Value 

Netting of Financial 

Total 

of Gross 

A1nounts 

Not Offset in 

the State1nen1 

of Financial 

Position 

Including 

Applicable 

Position Position Arrangcincnts Collateral 

Netting 

Agreement 

and Fair 

Value of 

Collateral 

(b) (C)"'(a)-(b) (d) 

-$ 7,352 $ - s 7,352 $ 7,352 $ 

8,111 

Net A1nount 

(<)-(d) 

8,111 
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Gross Net Amounts 

Atnounts of Liabilities 

Gross Offset in the presented in 

State1nent of the Stateinent 

Financial of Financial 

Gross A1nounts 

Not Offset in the Statc1nent 

ofFinaneial Position 

Netting 

Adjustincnt 

poc 

Applicable 

Master Fair Value 

Netting ofFinaneial 

Total 

of Gross 

A1nounts 

Not Offset in 

the Stateincnt 

of Financial 

Position 

Including 

Applicable 

Netting 

Description 

A1nounts of 

Recognized 

Liabilities Position Position Arrange1nents Collateral 

Agree1ncnt 

and Fair 

Value of 

Collateral 

M 
Non-hedging derivative liabilities: 

Interest rate swap 
agreements -
customer 
counterparties $ 

Interest rate S\vap 
agreements -
financial 
institution 
counterparties $ 

Hedging derivative liabilities: 

Interest rate S\vap 
agreements S 

7,360 $ 

8,111 $ 

12 s 

(b) 

-S 

-S 

-$ 

(c)=(a)-(b) (d) 

7,360 s - $ 29,812 $ 29,812 s 

8,111 $ -$ 8,111 $ 8,111 $ 

12 $ -S 23 $ 23 $ 

Net Ainount 

(c)-(d)* 

* For instances where the fair value of financial collateral meets or exceeds the affiounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position, 
a value of zero is displayed to represent full colla1eralization. 

NOTE THIRTEEN - INCOME TAXES 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects oftcmporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the 
Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities arc as follO\VS (in thousands): 
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2016 2015 
Previously securitizcd loans $ 3,950 s 4,337 
Allowance for loan losses 7,303 7,412 
Deferred compensation payable 4,099 4,058 
Underfunded pension liability 2,739 2,792 
Accrued expenses 1,721 1,789 

Impaired assets 834 797 
Impaired securities losses 3,791 6,719 

Unrealized securities losses 1,338 

Intangible assets 1,312 2,194 

Other 4,716 3,964 

Total Deferred Tax Assets 31,803 34,062 

Unrealized securities gains 585 

Other 3,760 3,503 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 3,760 4,088 
Net Deferred Tax Assets $ 28,043 $ 29,974 

No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was recorded at December 31, 2016 and 2015 as the Company believes 
it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets \Vill be realized because they were supported by recoverable taxes 
paid in prior years. 

Significant components of the provision for income taxes arc as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 20I4 

Current: 

Federal $ 20,100 $ 20,830 $ 20,629 

State 1,166 957 (943) 

Total current tax expense 21,266 21,787 19,686 

Total deferred tax expense 3,817 6,627 4,585 

Income tax expense $ 25,083 $ 28,414 s 24,271 

A reconciliation of the significant differences bet\veen the federal statutory income tax rate and the Company's effective 
incon1e tax rate is as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 2014 

Computed federal taxes at statutory rate $ 27,025 $ 28,879 s 27,031 

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 888 887 (482) 

Tax effects of: 

Tax-cxc1npt interest income (708) (498) (500) 

Bank-owned life insurance (1,164) (1,181) (1,074) 

Other items, net (958) 327 (704) 

Income tax expense $ 25,083 s 28,414 $ 24,271 

The entire amount of the Company's unrecognized tax benefits if recognized, would favorably affect the Company's 
effective tax rate. The Co1npany anticipates that it will release $0.5 1nillion over the next 12 months. A reconciliation of the 
beginning and ending balance ofunrecognized tax benefits is as follo\VS (in thousands): 
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2016 2015 

Beginning balance $ 2,164 $ 2,398 
Additions for current year tax positions 339 299 

Additions for prior year tax positions 377 
Decreases related to lapse of applicable statute of limitation (852) (910) 
Ending balance $ 1,651 s 2,164 

Interest and penalties on income tax uncertainties are included in income tax expense. During 2016, 2015 and 2014, 
the provision related to interest and penalties was SO.I million in each period. The balance of accrued interest and penalties at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $0.3 million and $0.4 million, respectively. 

The Company is currently open to audit under the statute of limitations by the Internal Revenue Service and state taxing 
authorities for the years ended December 31, 2013 through 2015. 

NOTE FOURTEEN - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Pursuant to the terms of the City 1-Iolding Company 2003 Incentive Plan and the City Holding Company 2013 Incentive 
Plan (the "2003 Plan" and "2013 Plan", respectively), the Compensation Co1nmittee of the Board of Directors, or its delegate, 
1nay, fro1n tin1c-to-timc, grant stock options, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), or stock awards to employees, directors and 
individuals who provide service to the Co1npany (collectively, "Plan Participants"). The 2003 Plan expired in April of2013 and 
the 2013 Plan was approved by the shareholders in April 2013. A 1naximu1n of 750,000 shares ofthc Company's common stock 
may be issued under the 2013 plan upon the exercise of stock options, SARs and stock awards, subject to certain limitations. These 
li1nitations 1nay be adjusted in the event of a change in the number of outstanding shares of common stock by reason of a stock 
dividend, stock split or other similar event. Specific terms of options and SARs awarded, including vesting periods, exercise 
prices (stock price at date of grant) and expiration dates arc detennincd at the date of grant and are evidenced by agreements 
between the Company and the awardcc. The exercise price of the option grants equals the market price of the Company's stock 
on the date of grant. A!! incentive stock options and SA Rs will be exercisable up to I 0 years from the date granted and all options 
and SA Rs arc exercisable for the period specified in the individual agreement. As of Dece1nber 31, 2016, 607 ,835 shares were 
still available to be issued under the 2013 Plan. 

Each a\vard fro1n the 2003 Plan and 2013 Plan is evidenced by an award agree1nent that specifics the option price, the 
duration of the option, the number of shares to which the option pertains, and such other provisions as the Compensation Com mi ttce, 
or its delegate, dctcnnines. The option price for each grant is equal to the fair 1narkct value ofa share of the Company's common 
stock on the date of the grant. Options granted expire at such time as the Compensation Committee, or its delegate, determines 
at the date of the grant and in no event does the exercise period exceed a maximum often years. Upon a change-in-control of the 
Co1npany, as defined in the 2003 Plan and 2013 Plan, all outstanding options and awards shall im1nediatcly vest. 

Certain stock options and restricted stock awards have performance-based vesting requirements. These shares 'vill vest 
in three separate annual instalhnents of approximately 33.33% per installment on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the 
grant date, subject further to performance~based vesting requirc1nents. The perfonnance-based vesting requirements arc as follows: 

' 

• 

• 

First Installment- the 1ncan return on average assets of the Company (excluding merger and acquisition expenses and 
other nonrecurring ite1ns as detennined by the Board of Directors of the Company) of the three years immediately prior 
to the vesting date is equal to or exceeds the median return on average assets over the 20 year period immediately 
preceding the vesting date of a!! FDIC insured depository institutions. 

Second lnstalhnent- the n1can retun1 on average assets of the Co1npany (excluding 1nerger and acquisition expenses 
and other nonrecurring ite1ns as dctcnnincd by the Board of Directors of the Company) ofthe·four years i1nmediately 
prior to the vesting date is equal to or exceeds the median return on average assets over the 20 year period immediately 
preceding the vesting date ofal! FDIC insured depository institutions. 

Third Installment-the mean return on average assets of the Co1npany (excluding 1nerger and acquisition expenses and 
other nonrecurring items as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company) of the five years im1nediately prior 
to the vesting date is equal to or exceeds the 1nedian return on average assets over the 20 year period immediately 
preceding the vesting date of all FDIC insured depository institutions. 

62 



Stock OJJ!ions 

A su1nmary of the Company's stock option activity and related infonnation is presented bclo"•: 

2016 2015 2014 
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average 
Exercise Exercise Exercise 

Options Price Options Price Options Price 

Outstanding at January l 95,015 $ 38.38 167,554 s 36.74 173,601 s 35.26 

Granted 24,348 43.73 12.961 46.41 13,953 44.43 

Exercised (32,750) 35.28 (81,500) 36.63 (20,000) 29.19 

Forfeited (4,000) 31.66 

Outstanding at December 31 86,613 $ 41.08 95,015 s 38.38 167,554 s 36.74 

Exercisable at end of year 3,000 $ 29.45 19,750 s 34.54 89,750 s 36.73 

Nonvcsted at beginning of year 75,265 39.38 77,804 36.76 96,769 33.10 

Granted during the year 24,348 43.73 12,961 46.41 13,953 44.43 

Vested during the year (16,000) 35.09 (15,500) 32.09 (32,918) 29.25 

Forfeited during the year 

Nonvcstcd at end of year 83,613 $ 41.47 75,265 $ 39.38 77,804 $ 36.76 

lnfonnation regarding stock option exercises and stock-based co1npensation expense associated \Vith stock options is 
provided in the following table (in millions): 

Proceeds from stock option exercises 

Intrinsic value of stock options exercised 

Stock-based compensation expense associated with stock options 

Income tax benefit recognized related to stock-based compensation 

At period-end: 

Unrecognized stock-based co1npcnsation expense 

Weighted average period in which the above amount is expected to be recognized 

$ 

$ 

$ 

For the year ended December 3 l, 

2016 2015 2014 

1.2 $ 3.0 $ 0.6 

0.6 0.9 0.3 

0.2 $ 0.2 s 0.2 

0.1 0.1 0.1 

2016 

0.4 

2.4 Y'"" 

Shares issued in connection with stock option exercises arc issued fro1n available treasury shares. Ifno treasury shares 
are available, new shares \vould be issued fro1n available authorized shares. During 2016, 2015 and 2014, all shares issued in 
connection with stock option exercises and restricted stock a\vards were issued from available treasury stock. For the stock 
options that have performance-based criteria, 1nanagementhasevaluated those criteria and has determined that, as ofDece1nber 31, 
2016, the criteria \Vere probable ofbeing tnet. 
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Additional information regarding the Co1npany's stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2016, is 
provided in the follo\ving table: 

\Veighted-
No.of Average 

Options Exercise 
Ranges of Exercise Prices Outstanding Price 

$ 25.00 - 29.99 1,250 $ 28.15 

30.00 - 34.99 1,750 30.38 

35.00 - 39.99 32,351 36.51 

40.00 - 44.99 38,301 43.99 

45.00 - 50.00 12,961 46.61 

86,613 

Weighted­
Avcragc 

Ren1aining 
Contractual 

Life 
(Months) 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value 
(in thousands) 

2.2 $ 49 

1.9 65 

5.7 1,006 

8.5 904 

8.2 272 

s 2,296 

No. of 
Options 

Currently 
Exercisable 

Wcightcd­
Average 
Exercise 
Price of 
Options 

Currently 
Exercisable 

1,250 $ 28.15 

l,750 30.38 

3,000 

Weighted­
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 
(Months) 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value of 

Options Currently 
Exercisable 

(in thousands) 

2.2 $ 

1.9 

49 

65 

s 114 

The fair value of the options is estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following 
\Veighted average assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of options granted by the Company: 

2016 2015 2014 

Risk-free interest rate 1.43°/o 1.95% 2.42% 

Expected dividend yield 3.86% 3.50% 3.60o/o 

Volatility factor 30.76°/o 45.40% 48.75o/o 

Expected life of option 7.0 years 7.0 years 8.0 years 

Reslricled Shares 

The Company measures compensation expense with respect to restricted shares in an a1nount equal to the fair value of 
the co1nmon stock covered by each award on the date of grant. The restricted shares awarded become fully vested after various 
periods of continued cmployn1ent from the respective dates of grant. The Company is entitled to an income tax deduction in an 
amount equal to the taxable income reported by the holders of the restricted shares \vhen the restrictions are released and the 
shares arc issued. Co1npcnsation is charged to expense over the respective vesting periods. 

Restricted shares arc generally forfeited if officers and employees terminate prior to the lapsing of restrictions. The 
Co1npany records forfeitures of restricted stock as treasury share repurchases and any compensation cost previously recognized 
is reversed in the period of forfeiture. Recipients of restricted shares do not pay any cash consideration to the Company for the 
shares, have the right to vote all shares subject to such grant and receive all dividends with respect to such shares, whether or not 
the shares have vested. For the restricted shares that have performance-based criteria, management has evaluated those criteria 
and has detennined that, as of December 31, 2016, the criteria were probable of being met. 
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A summary of the Company's restricted shares activity and related information is presented below: 

2016 2015 2014 

Average Average Average 
Market Market Market 

Restricted Price at Restricted Price at Restricted Price at 
Alvards Grant A\vards Grant A\vards Grant 

Outstanding at January 1 172,921 163,431 142,469 

Granted 30,601 $ 46.39 26,840 s 46.45 27,162 s 39.72 

Forfeited/Vested (22,900) (17,350) (6,200) 

Outstanding at December 31 180,622 172,921 163,431 

Information regarding stock-based co1npensation associated \Vith restricted shares is provided in the following table 
(in millions): 

For the year ended December 31, 

2016 2015 2014 

Stock-based compensation expense associated with restricted shares $ 1.4 $ 1.2 s 1.0 

At period-end: 2016 

Unrecognized stock-based cotnpensation expense $ 2.9 

Weighted average period in which the above amount is expected to be recognized 3.1 

40l(k) Plan 

The Co1npany provides retire1nent benefits to its e1np!oyees through the City Holding Co1npany 401 (k) Plan and Trust 
("the 40l(k) Plan"), which is intended to be compliant \Vith Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) section 404(c). 
The Company's total expense associated with the retirement benefit plan approximated S0.8 million in 2016, $0.7 million in 
2015, and S0.8 million in 2014. The total number of shares of the Company's common stock held by the 40I(k) Plan as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 is 238,647 and 291,736, respectively. 
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Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company maintains t\vo defined benefit pension plans ("the Defined Benefit Plans"), which were inherited from 
the Company's acquisition of the plan sponsors (Horizon Bancorp, Inc. and Com1nunity Financial Corporation). The Horizon 
Defined Benefit Plan was frozen in 1999 and 1naintains aDece1nber 31st year-end for purposes of co1nputing its benefit obligations. 
The Community Defined Benefit Plan \Vas frozen in 20 I 2 and 1naintains a December 3 Ist year-end for purposes of computing 
its benefit obligations. 

Primarily as a result of the interest rate environment over the past several years and a revised n1ortality table issued in 
2014, the benefit obligation exceeded the estimated fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015. 
The follo\ving table summarizes activity \Vithin the Co1npany's Defined Benefit Plans (dollars in thousands): 

Change in fair value ofplan assets: 

Fair value at beginning of measurement period 

Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 

Contributions 

Benefits paid 

Fair value at end of measurement period 

Change in benefit obligation; 

Benefit obligation at beginning of measurement period 

Interest cost 

Actuarial (loss) gain 

Assumption changes 

Benefits paid 

Benefit obligation at end of measurement period 

Funded status 

Weighted-average assumptions for benefit obligation: 

Discount rate 

Expected long-term rate of return 

Weighted-average assumptions for net periodic pension cost: 

Discount rate 

Expected long-term rate of return 

$ 

$ 

Pension Benefits 

2016 

17,435 

669 

(987) 

17,117 

(19,700) 

(820) 

(263) 

54 

987 

(19,742) 

(2,625) 

4.0lo/o 

5.83°/o 

4.26% 

5.75% 

$ 

$ 

2015 

14,667 

(231) 

4,399 

(1,400) 

17,435 

(21,390) 

(813) 

334 

769 

1,400 

(19,700) 

(2,265) 

4.26% 

5.75% 

3.93% 

6.92% 

During the year ended December 31, 20 15, the Company 1nade contributions totaling $4.4 million to the Horizon Defined 
Benefit Plan. Based on the funding status of the Horizon Defined Benefit Plan, no contributions were required during the year 
ended December 31, 2016 and no contributions are anticipated being required for the year ending December 31, 2017. Based 
on the funding status of the Community Defined Benefit plan, no contributions \Vere required during the year ended December 
31, 2016 and no contributions are anticipated being required for the year ending December 31, 2017. 
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The following table presents the components ofthc net periodic pension cost ofthe Company's Defined Benefit Plans 
(in thousands): 

Components ofnet periodic benefit: 

Interest cost 

Expected return on plan assets 

Net amortization and deferral 

Net Periodic Pension Cost 

$ 

$ 

2016 

820 $ 

(1,154) 

849 

515 $ 

2015 

813 s 
(937) 

960 

836 $ 

2014 

836 

(1,032) 

696 

500 

Atnounts related to the Company's Defined Benefit Pension Plans recognized as a component of other comprehensive 
inco1ne were as follo\VS (in thousands): 

2016 2015 2014 

Net actuarial gain (loss} $ 157 $ 935 s (3,915) 

Deferred tax (expense) benefit (58) (345) 1,445 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ 99 $ 590 $ (2,470) 

A1nounts recognized as a component of accumulated other con1prchensive loss as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 
were as follows (in thousands): 

Net actuarial loss 

Deferred tax benefit 

Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 

7,399 $ 

(2,739) 

4,660 $ 

7,551 

(2,792) 

4,759 

The following table summarizes the expected benefits to be paid in each ofthc next five years and in the aggregate for 
the five years thereafter (in thousands}: 

Plan Year Ending December 31, 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 through 2026 

Expected 
Benefits to be 

Paid 

$ 1,134 

1,243 

1,094 

1,079 

1,114 

5,697 
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The major categories of assets in the Co1npany's Defined Benefit Plans as of year-end are presented in the following 
table (in thousands). Assets are segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy established by ASC 
Topic 820 utilized to measure fair value (See Note Nineteen). 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

2016 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,101 $ 2,101 $ $ 

Mutual funds/Invcstincnt funds 6,063 5,797 266 

Common stocks 4,284 3,103 1,181 

Mortgage-backed securities 514 514 

U.S. Treasuries 971 971 

Corporate bonds 1,597 1,597 

Alternative investments** 1,587 972 

Total $ 17,117 $ 11,973 $ 4,529 $ 

•• Includes an inves!ment ofS615 lhat has not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy, as pennitted by ASU No. 2015-07. 

2015 

Cash and cash equivalents s 1,441 s 1,441 s s 
Mutual funds/Investment funds 5,617 5,473 144 

Common stocks 5,082 3,880 1,202 

Mortgage-backed securities 288 288 

U.S. Treasuries l ,313 1,313 

Corporate bonds 1,043 1,043 

Alternative investments 2,651 607 1,371 673 

Total $ 17,435 $ 11,401 s 5,361 $ 673 

florizon Defined Benefit Plan (lnvest111e11t Strategy) 

The Horizon Defined Benefit Plan is administered by the West Virginia Bankers Association ("WVBA") and all 
investment policies and strategies arc established by the WVBA Pension Co1n1nittee. The policy established by the Pension 
Con1mittee is to invest assets per target allocations, as detailed in the table below. The assets are reallocated periodically to meet 
these target allocations. The investment policy is reviewed periodically, under the advisement of a certified investment advisor, 
to determine ifthe policy should be revised. 

The overall investment return goal is to achieve a return greater than a blended 1nix of the S&P 500 and the Barclay's 
Capital Aggregate Bond Index, which is tailored to the same asset mix of the retirement plan assets, by 0.5% annualized after 
fees over a rolling five years 1noving average basis. Allowable assets include cash equivalents, fixed income securities, equity 
securities, alternative investments, 1nutual funds, exchange-traded funds, managed separate accounts, investment partnerships 
and co1nmingled funds. Prohibited investments include, but are not limited to, private placements, limited partnerships, venture 
capital investments, direct investment in private real estate properties and residual re1nics. Unless explicitly authorized by the 
Pension Co1n1nittee, the use ofleverage or speculative use of derivatives is prohibited unless as part of an alternative asset program 
or as means for real asset managers to hedge invest1nent risk or replicate investment positions at a lower cost than would otherwise 
be created in a cash market. Managers using derivatives must have syste1ns in place to rigorously analyze and monitor duration, 
liquidity and counter~party credit risk in order to minimize the risk associated \vith the use of derivatives. Prohibited transactions 
include, but are not limited to, short selling and margin transactions. 

In order to achieve a prudent level of portfolio diversification, the securities of any one con1pany are not to exceed more 
than 15% ofthe cost and/or 1narket value ofthe total retirement plan assets, and no more than 25% ofthe total retirement plan 
assets are to be invested in any one industry (other than securities of the U.S. government or agencies thereof). Exchange traded 
index funds are allowable investments and are not subject to these restrictions. 
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The expected long-tern1 rate of return for the plan's assets is based on the expected return of each of the categories, 
\Veightcd based on the median of the target allocation for each class, noted in the table belo\v. The target, allo\vable, and current 
allocation percentages of plan assets arc as follows: 

Equity securities 

Fixed incoine securities 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Alternative investments 

Total 

Co111111u11ity Defined Benefit Plan (!11vest111ent Strategy) 

Target 
Allocation 

2016 

62.5% 

[5.0o/o 

2.5% 

20.0% 

100.0% 

Al!owablc-
Allocation 

Range 

35-88% 

10-40% 

2-20% 

0-25% 

Percentage of Plan Assets 
At December 31 

2016 2015 

48o/o 51% 

25°/o 20% 

15°/o 10% 

12% 19% 

100% 100% 

The Community Defined Benefit Plan is ad1ninistered by the Virginia Bankers Association ("VBA") and all invcstn1ent 
polices are established by the Board of Directors of the VBA Benefits Corporation. The investment goal is to provide asset 
allocation models \Vi th varying degrees of investment return and risk consistent \vi th each bank's funding objectives and participant 
demographics. The Board of Directors shall at least annually revie\v the overall investment program, and each investment 
alternative, to ensure the current invcst1nent mix will achieve the goals ofthe Plan and participating banks. 

The performance goal for the investments of the Plan is to exceed the investment benchmarks over the most recent three 
and five year periods, \Vhile taking less risk than the market. Approved asset classes include equity securities, fixed income 
securities and cash equivalents. 

The Plan's investment portfolio contains a mix of large-cap, mid-cap, small-cap and international equities and 
intermediate and short-term bonds. Allocations to the equity and fixed incotne asset classes n1ay vary within a range of+ or -
5% of the noted target, as detailed in the table bclo\v. The 1ninhnum and maximu1n allocations for each sub-asset class \Vithin 
the equity and fixed classes are equity to 50% and 150%, respectively, of its long-term strategy target allocation. 

The expected long-term rate of return for the plan's assets is based on the expected return of each of the categories, 
\Veighted based on the median of the target allocation for each class, noted in the table below. During 2016, the Plan's investment 
portfolio allocation was changed from 25% equity securities/75% fixed income securities to 40% equity securities/60% fixed 
income securities. The target, allowable, and current al!ocation percentages of plan assets are as follows: 

Equity securities 

Fixed income securities 

Pentegra Dejined Benefit Plan 

Target 
Allocation 20 l 6 

40% 

60% 

100% 

Allowable­
Allocation 

Range 

29%-51% 

42%·81% 

Percentage of Plan Assets 
At Dece1nber 31 

2016 

41o/o 

59o/o 

2015 

25% 

75 °/o 

100o/o 100% 

In addition, the Co1npany and its subsidiary participate in the Pentegra Defined Benefit Plan for Financial Institutions 
("The PentcgraDB Plan"), a tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan. ThcPcntcgra DB Plan's Employer Identification Nun1bcr 
is 13-5645888 and the Plan Nu1nber is 333. The Pentegra DB Plan operates as a multi-employer plan for accounting purposes 
and as a 1nultiple-e1nployer plan under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and the Internal Revenue Code. 
There are no collective bargaining agree1nents in place that require contributions to the Pentegra DB Plan. The Pentcgra DB 
Plan is a single plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 413( c) and, as a result, all of the assets stand behind all of the liabilities. 
Accordingly, under the Pentegra DB Plan, contributions made by a participating en1p!oyer may be used to provide benefits to 
participants of other participating employers. The funded status as of July 1, 2016 (the latest available vatuation report) was 
1O1.26%. It is the policy of the Company to fund the normal cost of the Pentegra DB Plan on an annual basis. Other than for 
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normal plan expenses, no contributions were required for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. The benefits of 
the Pentegra DB Plan \Vere frozen prior to the acquisition of Classic Bancshares in 2005, and it is the intention of the Company 
to fund benefit amounts when assets of the plan arc sufficient. 

E111ploy111ent Contracts 

The Company has entered into employment contracts with certain of its current executive officers. The employment 
contracts provide for, among other things, the payment of termination compensation in the event an executive officer either 
voluntarily or involuntarily terminates his employment \Vi th the Company for other than "Just Cause." The cost of these benefits 
\Vas previously accrued for each executive and is included in Other Liabilities \Vithin the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The 
liability was $2.0 million at both December 31, 2016 and 2015 and is fully vested, and therefore no charge to operations was 
incurred for the years ended December 31, 2016 and Dcce1nbcr 31, 20 l 5. 

Other Post-Retire1nent Benefit Plans 

Certain entities previously acq uircd by the Company had entered into individual deferred compensation and supplemental 
retire1nent agree1nents \Vi th certain current and former directors and officers. The Company has assumed the liabilities associated 
with these agreements, the cost of which is being accrued over the period of active service from the date of the respective 
agreement. The cost of such agreements approximated S0.3 million during 2016 and S0.2 1nillion during 2015, and 2014, 
respectively. The liability for such agrcc1ncnts approximated $6.2 1nillion and $6.5 million at December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015, respectively and is included within Other Liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

To assist in funding the above liabilities, the acquired entities had insured the lives of certain current and former directors 
and officers. The Company is the current O\Vner and beneficiary of insurance policies \Vith a cash surrender value approxi1nating 
$8.2 mi!lion and $8.0 million at December 31, 20 16 and 2015, respectively, \Vhich is included in Other Assets in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

NOTE FIFTEEN - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

City National has granted loans to certain non-executive officers and directors of the Co1npany and its subsidiaries, 
and to their associates totaling Sl3.5 million at December 31, 2016andS14.2 1nillion at December 31, 2015. The loans were 
made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the sa1ne tenns, including interest rates and collateral, as those 
prevailing at the sa1nc time for comparable transactions with third-party lending arrangements. These relationships had unfunded 
commitments ofS23.0 million and SI 7.8 1nillion at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015. During 2016, total principal 
additions \Vere S0.6 million and total principal reductions \Vere S 1.3 million. 

NOTE SIXTEEN - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Co1npany is a party to certain financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business 
to nlcet the financing needs of its custon1crs. The Company has entered into agreements \Vi th its customers to extend credit or 
provide conditional commitment to provide payment on drafts presented in accordance with the tenns of the underlying credit 
docu1nents. The Co1npany also provides overdraft protection to certain detnand deposit customers that represent an unfunded 
co1nmit1nent. Overdraft protection co1n1nitn1ents, which are included with other co1nmit1nents below, arc uncoliateralized and 
are paid at the Coinpany's discretion. Conditional comn1it1nents generally include standby and commercial letters of credit. 
Standby letters of credit represent an obligation of the Co1npany to a designated third party contingent upon the failure of a 
customer of the Company to pcrfonn under the tenns of the underlying contract between the customer and the third party. 
Commercial letters of credit arc issued specifically to facilitate trade or commerce. Under the terms of a commercial letter of 
credit, drafts will be drawn \vhcn the underlying transaction is consum1nated, as intended, between the customer and a third 
party. The funded portion of these financial instruments is reflected in the Company's balance sheet, while the unfunded portion 
ofthcsc co1nn1it1ncnts is not reflected in the balance sheet. 
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The table below presents a sun1mary of the contractual obligations of the Company resulting from significant 
commitments (in thousands): 

Co1n1nit1nents to extend credit: 

Home equity lines 

Com1ncrcial real estate 

Other commitments 

Standby letters of credit 

Commercial letters of credit 

December 31, 
2016 

$ 185,553 

98,883 

203,103 

5,014 

1,859 

December 31, 
2015 

$ 183,017 

84,672 

177,491 

5,086 

2,312 

Loan co1nmit1nents and standby and co1nmercial letters of credit have credit risks essentially the same as that involved 
in extending loans to customers and are subject to the Company's standard credit policies. Collateral is obtained based on 
1nanagemcnt's credit assessment of the custo1ncr. Managcn1ent does not anticipate any material losses as a result of these 
commitments. 

In addition, the Co1npany is engaged in various legal actions that it dce1ns to be in the ordinary course of business. As 
these legal actions arc resolved, the Company could realize positive and/or negative i1npact to its financial performance in the 
period in \Vhich these legal actions are ultilnately decided. There can be no assurance that current actions \Vill have immaterial 
results, either positive or negative, or that no material actions may be presented in the future. 

NOTE SEVENTEEN - PREFERRED STOCK 

The Co1npany's Board of Directors has the authority to issue preferred stock, and to the designation, preferences, 
rights, dividends and al! other attributes of such preferred stock, \Vithout any vote or action by the shareholders. As of 
Dece1nber 31, 2016, no such shares were outstanding, nor were any expected to be issued. 

NOTE EIGHTEEN - REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND CAPITAL RATIOS 

The principal source of inco1nc and cash for City Holding (the "Parent Company") is dividends fro1n City National. 
Dividends paid by City National to the Parent Con1pany are subject to certain legal and regulatory limitations. Generally, any 
dividends in amounts that exceed the earnings retained by City National in the current year plus retained net profits for the 
preceding l\VO years must be approved by regulatory authorities. Approval is also required if dividends declared would cause 
City National's regulatory capital to fall below specified 1ninimum levels. At December31, 2016, City National could pay 
dividends up to $57 .5 million without prior regulatory permission. 

During 2016, the Parent Co1npany used cash obtained from the dividends received primarily to: (1) pay common 
dividends to shareholders, (2) remit interest pay1nents on the Company'sjunior subordinated debentures and (3) fund common 
stock repurchases for treasury. As of Decen1ber 31, 2016, the Parent Co1npany reported a cash balance of approximately S26.5 
mi!lion. Management believes that the Parent Co1npany's available cash balance, together with cash dividends from City 
National, is adequate to satisfy its funding and cash needs in 2017. 

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve published the final rules that established a ne\v co1nprehensive capital framc\vork 
for banking organizations, commonly referred to as Basel III. These final rules substantially revised the risk-based capital 
requirements applicable to bank holding con1panics and depository institutions. The final rule becan1e effective January I, 2015 
for s1naller, non-complex banking organizations \Vith full i1nplementation by January 1, 2019. 

Regulatory guidelines require the Company to maintain a 1ninimum common equity tier I ("CET l ")capital ratio of 
5.125% and a total capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of8.625o/o, with at least one-half of capital consisting of tangible common 
stockholders' equity and a minimum Tier I leverage ratio of6.625%. Similarly, City National is also required to maintain minimum 
capital levels as set forth by various regulatory agencies. Under capital adequacy guidelines, City National is required to maintain 
1ninimun1 CET 1, total capital, Tier I capital, and leverage ratios of5.125%, 8.625%, 6.625%, and 4.0%, respectively. To be 
classified as "well capitalized," City National must maintain CET I, total capital, Tier I capital, and leverage ratios of 6.5%, 
10.0%, 8.0o/o, and 5.0%, respectively. 
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When fully phased in on January 1, 20 19, the Basel Ill Capita! Rules will require City Holding and City National to 
ntaintain (i) a minimum ratio ofCET 1 to risk-weighted assets of at least4.5o/o, plus a 2.5% "capital conservation buffer" (which 
is added to the 4.5% CET 1 ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a 1ninimum ratio ofCET I to risk-weighted 
assets of at least 7 .Oo/o upon full implementation), (ii) a minimun1 ratio ofTier I capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0%, 
plus the capital conservation buffer(which is added tothe6.0% Tier I capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting 
in a minimum Tier 1 capital ratio of8.5o/o upon full implementation), (iii) a minimum ratio of total capital (that is, Tier 1 plus 
Tier 2) to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0%, p!us the capita! conservation buffer (which is added to the 8.0% total capital 
ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively resulting in a minimum total capital ratio of 10.5% upon full implementation) and 
(iv) a minimum leverage ratio of 4.0%, calculated as the ratio of Tier I capital to average assets (as compared to a current 
minimum leverage ratio of3.0% for banking organizations that either have the highest supervisory rating or have implemented 
the appropriate federal regulatory authority's risk-adjusted measure for 1narket risk). 

The hnplementation of the capital conservation buffer began on January I, 20 l 6 at the 0.625% level and \Vill be phased 
in over a four-year period (increasing by that a1nount on each subsequent January 1, until it reaches 2.5% on January I, 2019). 
The Basel Ill Capital Rules also provide for a "countercyclical capital buffer" that is applicable to only certain covered institutions 
and docs not have any current applicability to City Holding Company or City National Bank. 

The aforementioned capital conservation buffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress. Banking 
institutions \Vi th a ratio ofCET 1 capital to risk-weighted assets above the minimun1 but belo\v the conservation buffer (or below 
the combined capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer, when the latter is applied) will face constraints on 
dividends, equity repurchases and compensation based on the amount ofthe shortfall. 

The Company's regulatory capital ratios for both City l·lolding and City National are illustrated in the following tables 
(in thousands): 

Minin1un1 Required - Minimum Required~ Required to be 
Basel Ill Phase-In Basel III Fully Phased- Considered \Veil 

Actual Schedule In(*) Capitalized 

Capital Capital Capital Capital 
December 31, 2016 Amount Rati-o An1ount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

CET I Capital 

City Holding Co1npany $371,677 13.3"/o $142,845 5.125% $195,105 7.0% $181,169 6.5% 

City National Bank 310,912 11.2% 141,860 5.125% 193,761 7.0% 179,921 6.5% 

Tier I Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 387,677 13.9% 184,653 6.625o/o 236,913 8.5"/o 222,977 8.0% 

City National Bank 318,872 11.5% 183,381 6.625o/o 235,281 8.5% 221,441 8.0% 

Total Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 408,406 14.7% 240,397 8.625°/o 292,658 10.5% 278,722 10.0% 

City National Bank 338,675 12.2% 238,741 8.625°/o 290,641 10.5% 276,801 10.0% 

Tier l Leverage Ratio 

City Holding Company 387,677 10.lo/o 153,864 4.000% 153,864 4.0% 192,330 5.0% 

City National Bank 318,872 8.3o/o 153,088 4.000% 153,088 4.0% 191,359 5.0% 

("') Represents the minilnu1n required capital levels as of January I, 2019 when Basel III Capital Rules have been fully phased in. 
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Minimum Required- Minimum Required - Required to be 
Basel III Phase-In Basel III Fully Phased- Considered Well 

Actual Schedule In(*) Capitalized 

Capital Capital Capital Capital 
Decen1ber 31, 2015: Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

CET 1 Capital 

City Holding Co1npany s 345,620 ! 3. 7o/n s 113,919 4.5% s 177,207 7 .Oo/n s 164,549 6.5% 
City National Bank 264,812 l0.5% 113,209 4.5% 176,103 7.0o/n 163,524 6.5% 

Tier 1 Capital 

City Holding Company 361,620 14.3% 151,891 6.0% 215,180 8.5% 202,522 8.0% 

City National Bank 288,752 11.5% 150,945 6.0o/n 213,839 8.5o/n 201,260 8.0o/n 

Total Capital 

City Holding Co1npany 382,180 !5.1% 202,522 8.0o/n 265,810 10.5o/n 253,152 10.0o/n 

City National Bank 308,804 12.3o/o 201,260 8.0% 264,154 10.5% 251,575 10.0% 

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio 

City Holding Company 361,620 10.2% 142,521 4.0o/n 142,521 4.0o/n 178,151 5.0o/n 

City National Bank 288,752 8.1% 141,874 4.0o/n 141,874 4.0% 177,343 5.0% 

(*)Represents the minilnu1n required capital levels as of January 1, 2019 \vhcn Basel HI Capital Rules have been fully phased in. 

As ofDcccmber 31, 2016, management believes that City Holding Company, and its banking subsidiary, City National, 
were "well capitalized." City Holding is subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Reserve, while 
City National is subject to regulatory capital requirements ad1ninistered by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC") 
and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). Regulatory agencies can initiate certain mandatory actions if either 
City Holding or City National fails to 1neet the 1nini1num capital requircn1cnts, as shown above. As of December 31, 2016, 
manage1nent believes that City Holding and City National meet all capital adequacy requirements. 

NOTE NINETEEN -FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Fair value of an asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell that asset or paid to transfer that liability (an 
exit price) in the principal or 1nost advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants on the 1neasure1nent date. ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The 
fair value hierarchy is as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to 
access as of the 1ncasurcmcnt date. 

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices forsi1nilarasscts or liabilities, 
quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that arc observable or can be corroborated by observable market 
data. 

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own assumptions about the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The Company bases fair value of assets and liabilities on quoted market prices, prices for similar assets or liabilities, 
quoted prices in n1arkcts that arc not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market 
data. If such infonnation is not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, 
observable market-based para1neters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments arc recorded at 
fair value. These adjust1nents 1nay include a1nounts to reflect counterparty credit quality and the Company's crcdihvorthiness, 
among other things, as we!\ as unobservable parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time. The 
Company's valuation nlethodologics n1ay produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or 
reflective of future fair values. While management believes the company's valuation methodologies arc appropriate and 
consistent \Vith other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine fair value of certain 
financial instru1nents could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. Furthermore, the reported fair value 
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amounts have not been comprehensively revalued since the presentation dates, and therefore, cstin1ates of fair value after the 
balance sheet date may differ significantly from the a1nount presented herein. A more detailed description of the valuation 
methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such instruments 
pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities 

The Company used the following 1nethods and significant assu1nptions to estimate fair value for financial assets and 
liabilities 1neasured on a recurring basis. 

Securities Available for Sale. Securities available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level I, Level 2, and Level 
3 inputs. The fair value of securities available for sale is detennined by utilizing a market approach by obtaining quoted prices 
on nationally recognized securities exchanges (other than forced or distressed transactions) that occur in sufficient volume or 
1natrix pricing, \Vhich is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively 
on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to other benchmark quoted 
securities. If such 1neasurcments arc unavailable, the security is classified as Level 3. Significant judgment is required to make 
this determination. 

The Company utilizes a third party pricing service provider to value its Level I and Level 2 investment 
securities. Annually, the Company obtains an independent auditor's report from its third party pricing service provider regarding 
its controls over invcsttncnt securities. Al though no control deficiencies \Vere noted, the report did contain caveats and disclaimers 
regarding the pricing infonnation, such as the Company should review fair values for reasonableness. On a quarterly basis, the 
Co1npany selects a sample of its debt securities and reprices those securities 'vith a third party that is independent of the primary 
pricing service provider to verify the reasonableness of the fair values. In addition, the Company selects a sa1nple of securities 
and reviews the underlying support from the primary pricing service provider. 

The Co1npany has determined that its pooled trust preferred securities are priced using Level 3 inputs in accordance 
\Vi th ASC Topic 820 and guidance issued by the SEC. The Company has determined that there arc few observable transactions 
and market quotations available for pooled trust preferred securities and they arc not reliable for purposes of determining fair 
value of trust preferred securities held at December 31, 2016. Due to these circumstances, the Co1npany has elected to utilize 
an income valuation approach produced by a third party pricing source. This third party model utilizes deferral and default 
probabilities for the underlying issuers, estimated prepay1nent rates and assumes no future recoveries of any defaults or 
deferrals. The Company then co1npares the values provided by the third party model with other external sources. At such ti1ne 
as there are observable transactions or quoted prices that are associated with an orderly and active market for pooled trust 
preferred securities, the Company will incorporate such market values in its estimate of fair values for these securities. 

Derivatives. Derivatives are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. The Company utilizes a n1arket approach 
by obtaining dealer quotations to value its customer interest rate swaps. These quotes utilize the overnight indexed swap ("OIS") 
curve as a basis for discounting cash flo,vs. The OIS curve is based on the Federal Funds rate. The Company's derivatives are 
included within its Other Assets and Other Liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Derivative assets are 
typically secured through securities with financial countcrparties or cross collatcralization \Vi th a borrowing custo1ner. Derivative 
liabilities arc typically secured through the Co1npany pledging securities to financial counterpartics or, in the case ofa borrowing 
customer, by the right of setoff. The Company considers such factors such as the likelihood of default by itself and its 
countcrpartics, right of sctoff, and re1naining 1naturities in detennining the appropriate fair value adjustments. All derivative 
countcrparties approved by the Co1npany's Asset and Liability Co1nmittee ("ALCO") are regularly rcvic\ved, and appropriate 
business action is taken to adjust the exposure to certain counterparties, if necessary. Counterparty exposure is evaluated by 
netting positions that are subject to 1nasternetting agreements, as well as considering the amount of marketable collateral securing 
the position. This approach used to estimate in1pacted exposures to countcrparties is also used b)r the Company to estimate its 
own credit risk in derivative liability positions. To date, no material losses have been incurred due to a countcrparty's inability 
to pay any undercollatcralizcd position. There was no significant change in the value of derivative assets and liabilities attributed 
to credit risk during the year ended Dece1nber 3 1, 2016. 

The Company 1nay be required, from time to time, to measure certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 
value on a nonrecurring basis. Financial assets 1neasurcd at fair value on a nonrecurring basis include impaired Joans reported 
at the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated 
using Level 2 inputs based on observable market data for real estate collateral or Level 3 inputs for non-real estate collateral. The 
follo,ving table presents the Company's assets and liabilities 1neasured at fair value (in thousands): 
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Total Gains 
Total Levell Level2 Level 3 (Losses) 

December 31, 2016 
Recurring fair value measurements 

Financial Assets 

U.S. Government agencies $ 3 $ -$ 3 $ 

Obligations of states and political 
subdivisions 82,368 82,368 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

U.S. Govcm1ncnt agencies 330,814 330,814 

Private label 942 942 

Trust preferred securities 6,662 4,127 2,535 

Corporate securities 23,574 23,574 

Marketable equity securities 4,231 4,231 

Investment funds 1,489 1,489 

Derivative assets 15,463 15,463 

Financial Liabilities 

Derivative liabilities 15,483 15,483 

Nonrecurring fair value measurements 

Financial Assets 

Impaired loans $ 6,916 $ -$ -$ 6,916 $ (665) 

No11-Fi11a11cial Assets 

Other real estate owned 4,588 4,588 (665) 

Other assets 625 625 (444) 
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December 31, 2015 

Recurring fair value measurements 

Financial Assets 

U.S. Government agencies 

Obligations of states and political 
subdivisions 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

U.S. Government agencies 

Private label 

Trust preferred securities 

Corporate securities 

Marketable equity securities 

Investment funds 

Derivative assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Derivative liabilities 

Nonrecurring fair value measurements 

Financial Assets 

Impaired loans 

No11-Fi11a11ciaf Assets 

Other real estate owned 

Other assets 

Total 

$ 5 $ 

50,697 

288,197 

1,231 

5,858 

18,693 

3,273 

1,512 

10,811 

10,933 

$ 8,482 $ 

6,518 

Level I Level 2 

-$ 5 s 

50,697 

288,197 

1,231 

3,762 

18,693 

3,273 

1,512 

10,811 

10,933 

-$ -$ 

Level 3 

2,096 

Total Gains 
(Losses) 

8,482 $ 

6,518 (937) 

(1,449) 

1'he table bclo\v presents a rcconcilcment of the Company's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (in thousands): 

Beginning balance 

Impairinent losses on investment securities 

Gains on sale of investment securities 

Included in other co1nprehensive income 

Dispositions 

Transfers into Level 3 

Ending Balance 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 

2016 2015 

2,096 $ 1,871 

(465) 

3,978 

(3,074) 225 

2,535 $ 2,096 

The Company utilizes a third party model to compute the present value of expected cash flows which considers the 
structure and term of each of the five respective pooled trust preferred securities and the financial condition of the underlying 
issuers. Specifically, the third party model details interest rates, principal balances of note classes and underlying issuers, the 
timing and amount of interest and principal payments ofthe underlying issuers, and the allocation ofthc payments to the note 
classes. The current esti1nate of expected cash flows is based on the most recent trustee reports and any other relevant market 
information including announcements of interest payment deferrals or defaults of underlying trust preferred securities. For 
issuing banks that have defaulted, manage1nent generally assumes no recovery. For issuing banks that have deferred its interest 
pay1nents, 1nanagemcnt excludes the collateral balance associated with these banks and assumes no recoveries of such collateral 
balance in the future. The exclusion of such issuing banks in a current deferral position is based on such bank experiencing a 
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certain level of financial difficulty that raises doubt about its ability to satisfy its contractual debt obligation, and accordingly, 
the Company excludes the associated collateral balance from its estimate of expected cash flows. Other assu1nptions used in the 
estimate of expected cash flows include expected future default rates and prepayments. Specifically, the model assumes annual 
prepayments of 1.0% with 100% at maturity and assumes 150 basis points of additional annual defaults from banks that arc 
currently not in default or deferral. In addition, the model assun1es no recoveries except for one trust preferred security which 
assumes that one ofthe banks currently deferring or in default will cure such positions. 

The table below presents a reconcilc1nent of the Co1npany's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), which solely relates to impaired loans that \vcre remeasured 
and reported at fair value through a specific valuation a!lowancc allocation of the allowance for loan losses based upon the fair 
value of the underlying collateral (in thousands). The fair value of impaired loans is cstin1ated using one of several methods, 
including collateral value, liquidation value and discounted cash flows. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair 
value measurement of collateral for collateral-dependent impaired loans pri1narily relate to discounts applied to the customers' 
reported a1nount of collateral. The amount of collateral discount depends upon the marketability of the underlying 
collateral. During December 31, 2016 and 2015, collateral discounts ranged fro1n 20% to 30o/o. During December 31, 2016 
and 2015, the Co1npany had no Level 2 financial assets and liabilities that were measured on a nonrecurring basis. 

Beginning balance 

Loans classified as impaired during the period 

Specific valuation allo\vance allocations 

(Additional) reduction in specific valuation allowance allocations 

Paydowns, payoffs, other activity 

Ending balance 

Non-Financial Assers and Liabilities 

$ 

s 

Year ended December 3 l, 

2016 

8,482 $ 

2,832 

(665) 

2,167 

(3,733) 

6,916 $ 

2015 

6,517 

2,349 

2,349 

252 

(636) 

8,482 

The Company has no non-financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Certain non-financial 
assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis include other real estate owned ("OREO"), which is 1neasured at the lower 
of cost or fair value, and goodwill and other intangible assets, which arc measured at fair value and evaluated at least annually 
for ilnpairmcnt. The table below presents OREO that was remeasured and reported at fair value based on significant unobservable 
inputs (Level 3) (in thousands}: 

Beginning Balance 

OREO remeasured at initial recognition: 

Carrying value of foreclosed assets prior to remeasurement 

Charge-offs recognized in the al\o\vancc for loan losses 

Fair value 

OREO remeasured subsequent to initial recognition: 

Carrying value of foreclosed assets prior to remeasurement 

Fair value 

Write-downs included in other non-interest expense 

Disposals 

Ending Balance 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 

6,518 $ 8,179 

3,151 3,732 

3,151 3,732 

1,228 3,937 

563 3,000 

(665) (937) 

(4,416) (4,456) 

4,588 s 6,518 
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recognized a $0.4 million impairment on a facility that 
fonnerly housed certain bank operations. During the year ended Dece1nber 31, 2015, the Company recognized a S 1.4 million 
loss relating to a partnership investment. Based on the Company's annual assessment for i1npairmcnt in the recorded value of 
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets, no impairn1ent was recorded during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
2015. 

ASC Topic 825 "Financial lnstrun1cnts," as amended, requires disclosure of fair value infonnation about financial 
instru1nents, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. In cases where 
quoted market prices are not available, fair values arc based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those 
techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including discount rate and estimate of future cash flows. In that 
regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could 
not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument. ASC Topic 825 excludes certain financial instru1nents and all 
nonfinancial instruments fro1n its disclosure require1nents. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not 
represent the underlying value of the Company. The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating fair value for 
financial instruments: 

Cash and cash equivalents: Due to their short·tem1 nature, the carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets approximate fair value. 

Securities: The fair value of securities are generally based on quoted market prices or 1natrix pricing, which is a 
mathe1natica! technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the 
specific securities but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to other benchmark quoted securities. 

Other securities: It is not practicable to determine the fair value of the Company's other securities, which consist of 
FRB and FHLB stock, due to restrictions placed on its transferability. 

Net loans: The fair value of the loan portfolio is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flo\VS using the 
current interest rates at \Vhich silnilar loans would be n1adc to borrowers for the sa1ne re1naining 1naturities. Loans were first 
segregated by type such as com1nercial, real estate and consu1ner, and were then further segmented into fixed, adjustable and 
variable rate categories. Expected future cash flows were projected based on contractual cash flows, adjusted for estimated 
prepayments. 

Accrued interest receivable: The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates fair value. 

Deposits: The fair values of demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest·bearing checking, regular savings, and 
other money market demand accounts) are, by definition, equal to their carrying values. The fair values of time deposits were 
csti1nated using discounted cash flO\V analyses. The discount rates used were based on rates currently offered for deposits with 
si1nilar remaining 1naturities. The fair values of the time deposit liabilities do not take into consideration the value of the 
Company's long·term relationships with depositors, which may have significant value. 

Short-term debt: Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Federal Ho1ne Loan Bank advances represent 
borrowings with original maturities of less than 90 days. The carrying amount of borrowings under purchase agreements 
approxi1nate their fair value. 

Long-term debt: The fair value oflong·term borrowings is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on 
the Company's current incre1nental borrowing rates for similar types ofborrowing arrange1nents and market conditions of similar 
debt instrtuncnts. 

Commitments and letters of credit: The fair values of co1n1nitments are estimated based on fees currently charged 
to enter into similar agreements, taking into consideration the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit 
standing. The fair value of letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost 
to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with the countcrparties at the reporting date. The amounts of fees currently 
charged on commillnents and letters of credit arc deemed insignificant, and therefore, the estimated fair values and carrying 
values have not been reflected in the following table. 

The following table represents the esti1nates of fair value of financial instruments (in thousands). This table excludes 
financial instruments for which the carrying amount approximates fair value. For short·tenn financial assets such as cash and 
cash equivalents, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value due to the relatively short time between the origination 
of the instrument and its expected realization. For financial liabilities such as nonintcrcst·bearing demand, interest·bearing 
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demand and savings deposits, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value due to these products having no stated 
1naturity. 

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

December 31, 2016 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 88,139 $ 88,139 $ 88,139 $ $ 

Securities available-for-sale 450,083 450,083 5,720 441,828 2,535 

Securities held-to-maturity 75,169 76,445 76,445 

Other securities 14,352 14,352 14,352 

Net loans 3,026,496 3,014,425 3,014,425 

Accrued interest receivable 8,408 8,408 8,408 

Derivative assets 15,463 15,463 15,463 

Liabilities: 

Deposits 3,231,653 3,232,970 2,190,234 1,042,736 

Short-tenn debt 248,305 248,305 248,305 

Long-tern1 debt 16,495 16,455 16,455 

Derivative liabilities 15,483 15,483 15,483 

December 31, 2015 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 70,113 $ 70,113 $ 70,113 $ $ 

Securities available-for-sale 369,466 369,466 4,785 362,585 2,096 

Securities held-to-maturity 88,937 90,810 90,810 

Other securities 12,915 12,915 12,915 

Net loans 2,843,283 2,843,973 2,843,973 

Accrued interest receivable 7,432 7,432 7,432 

Derivative assets 10,811 10,811 10,811 

Liabilities: 

Deposits 3,083,975 3,085,908 2,066,419 1,019,489 

Short-tenn debt 154,869 154,872 154,872 

Long-term debt 16,495 16,457 16,457 

Derivative liabilities 10,933 10,933 10,933 
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NOTE TWENTY-CITY HOLDING COMPANY (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Condensed Balance Sheets 

The following table presents the condensed balance sheets of City Holding Company, parent company only (in 
thousands): 

Assets 

Cash 

Securities available-for-sale 

Investment in subsidiaries 

Deferred tax assets, net 

Fixed assets 

Other assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Junior subordinated debentures 

Dividends payable 

Accrued interest payable 

Other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Shareholders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December 31 

2016 2015 

26,520 s 46,672 

4,231 3,273 

430,769 388,201 

1,459 1,569 

7 8 

2,584 3,290 

465,570 s 443,013 

16,495 s 16,495 

6,459 6,376 

36 30 

142 840 

23,132 23,741 

442,438 419,272 

465,570 s 443,013 

Junior subordinated debentures represent the Parent Company's amounts owed to City Holding Capital Trust III. 

On Dcccn1bcr 19, 2016, the Company announced that it had filed a prospectus supple1nentto its existing shelf registration 
statement on Form S-3 for the sale of its common stock having an aggregate value of up to SSS million through an "at-thc­
market" equity offering program. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company sold 107,662 common shares at a 
weighted average price of$66.21, net ofbroker fees. 
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Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income 

The following table presents the condensed stateinents of comprehensive income of City Holding Company, parent 
company only (in thousands): 

Year Ended Dece1nber 31 

2016 2015 2014 

Income 

Dividends from subsidiaries $ 8,600 $ 48,950 $ 46,050 

Investment securities gains 1,130 
Other income 320 22 65 

8,920 48,972 47,245 
Expenses 

Interest expense 683 618 605 

Other expenses 1,957 1,170 849 

2,640 1,788 1,454 
Income Before Income Tax Benefit and Equity in Undistributed Net 
Income of Subsidiaries 6,280 47,184 45,791 

lnco1ne tax benefit (1,096) (795) (231) 

Income Before Equity in Undistributed Net Income of Subsidiaries 7,376 47,979 46,022 

Equity in undistributed net inco1ne of subsidiaries 44,752 6,118 6,940 
Net Income $ 52,128 $ 54,097 $ 52,962 

Total Comprehensive Income $ 48,948 $ 54,424 $ 53,793 
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Condensed Statements of Cash FIO\VS 

The follo\ving table presents the condensed state1ncnts of cash flo\VS of City Holding Company, parent company only 
(in thousands): 

Year Ended December 31 

2016 2015 2014 
Operating Activities 

Netineome $ 52,128 $ 54,097 $ 52,962 

Adjust1nents to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 

Realized investment securities gains (1,130) 

An1ortization and accretion (5) 

Stock based compensation 2,018 3 199 

Depreciation 1 

Asset write down 444 

Change in other assets 262 13,338 (16,110) 

Change in other liabilities (2,531) 314 2,146 

Equity in undistributed net income (44,752) (6,118) (6,940) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 7,565 61,635 31,128 

Investing Activities 

Proceeds fron1 sales of available for sale securities 2,334 

Return of capital 2,500 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 4,834 

Financing Activities 

Dividends paid (25,718) (25,304) (24,487) 

Issuance of common stock 6,864 

Purchases oftreasul)' stock (10,018) (7,055) (27,957) 

Exercise of stock options 1,155 2,979 580 

Exercise ofwarrants 1,896 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (27,717) (27,484) (51,864) 

(Decrease) increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (20,152) 34,151 (15,902) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 46,672 12,521 28,423 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 26,520 $ 46,672 $ 12,521 
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NOTE TWENTY-ONE- SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

A summary of selected quarterly financial infonnation is presented below (in thousands, except for per share data): 

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

2016 

Interest income $ 32,289 $ 32,932 $ 33,046 $ 33,884 

Taxable equivalent adjustment 192 195 224 258 

Interest income (FTE) 32,481 33,127 33,270 34,142 

Interest expense 3,169 3,264 3,268 3,504 

Net interest income 29,312 29,863 30,002 30,638 

Provision for loan losses 539 1,122 1,432 1,301 

Investment securities gains 845 2,668 

Non-interest income 13,127 13,736 14,079 14,371 

Non-interest expense 24,140 24,283 25,284 22,456 

Income before income tax expense 17,760 19,039 20,033 21,252 

Income tax expense 5,866 6,303 6,577 6,338 

Taxable equivalent adjust1nent (192) (195) (224) (258) 

Net income available to common shareholders $ 11,702 $ 12,541 $ 13,232 $ 14,656 

Net earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 11,571 $ 12,391 $ 13,075 $ 14,479 

Basic earnings per common share $ 0.78 $ 0.83 $ 0.88 $ 0.97 

Diluted earnings per con1mon share 0.78 0.83 0.88 0.97 

Average common shares outstanding: 

Basic 14,916 14,889 14,899 14,894 

Diluted 14,927 14,902 14,909 14,914 

2015 

Interest income $ 32,364 s 31,720 $ 30,768 $ 32,222 

Taxable equivalent adjustment 142 144 147 179 

Interest income (FTE) 32,506 31,864 30,915 32,401 

Interest expense 2,973 2,937 2,910 3,010 

Net interest income 29,533 28,927 28,005 29,391 

Provision for loan losses 888 2,836 451 2,813 

lnvest1nent securities gains 14 2,116 

Non-interest income 24,007 13,289 13,706 14,074 

Non-interest expense 23,165 23,244 25,377 21,165 

Income before income tax expense 29,501 18,252 15,883 19,487 

Income tax expense 11,367 6,125 5,129 5,793 

Taxable equivalent adjustment (142) (144) (147) (179) 

Net inco1ne available to com1non shareholders $ 17,992 $ 11,983 $ 10,607 $ 13,515 

Net earnings allocated to com1non shareholders $ 17,783 $ 11,849 $ 10,487 $ 13,362 

Basic earnings per common share $ 1.18 $ 0.78 $ 0.69 $ 0.88 
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Diluted earnings per common share 1.17 0.78 0.69 0.88 
Average common shares outstanding: 

Basic 15,067 15,104 15,178 15,158 
Diluted 15,149 15,127 15,198 15,175 

NOTE TWENTY-TWO- EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share 
data): 

Net income available to common shareholders 

Less: earnings allocated to participating securities 

Net earnings allocated to common shareholders 

Distributed earnings allocated to common shares outstanding 

Undistributed earnings allocated to com1non shares outstanding 

Net earnings allocated to common shareholders 

A vcrage shares outstanding, basic 

Effect of dilutive securities 

Average shares outstanding, diluted 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

2016 2015 2014 

52,128 $ 54,097 $ 52,962 

(623) s (613) $ (562) 

51,505 $ 53,484 $ 52,400 

25,710 $ 25,212 $ 23,984 

25,795 28,272 28,416 

51,505 $ 53,484 $ 52,400 

14,900 15,123 15,403 

13 48 85 

14,913 15,171 15,488 

3.46 $ 3.54 $ 3.40 

3.45 $ 3.53 s 3.38 

Options to purchase approximately 2,000 shares and 13,000 shares of common stock were outstanding during the years 
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share 
because the options' exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares and therefore, the effect 
would have been anti-dilutive. During the year ended December 31, 2014, there were no anti-dilutive options outstanding. 
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NOTE TWENTYMTHREE-ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

The activity in accumulated other comprehensive loss is presented in the tables below (in thousands). All amounts are 
sho\vn net oftax, which is calculated using a combined Federal and state income tax rate approximating 37%. 

Balance at Dece1nber 31, 2014 

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 

An1ounts reclassified from other co1nprehcnsive loss 

Balance at December 31, 2015 

$ 

$ 

Accu1nulated Other Coinprchcnsive Loss 

Dcfincd Benefit 

Pension Plans 

Unrealized 

Gains (Losses) on 

Sccuritics 

A vailablc-for-Sale 

(5,349) $ 1,190 

590 1,081 

(1,344) 

590 (263) 

$ 

(4,759) s 927 $ 

Total 

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 

A1nounts reclassified froin other co1nprchensivc loss 

99 (1,063) 
(2,216) 

Balance at December 31, 2016 

Securities available-for-sale: 

99 

$ (4,660) $ 

A1nount reclassified fro1n Other 
Co1nprehensive Loss 

Decc1nber 31, 

2016 2015 2014 

(3,279) 

(2,352) $ 

Affected line item 

in the Statements 

ofineo1nc 

(4,159) 

l,671 
(1,344) 

327 

(3,832) 

(964) 
(2,216) 

(3,180) 

(7,012) 

Net securities gains reclassified into earnings $ (3,513) $ (2,130) $ (I, 156) Gains on sale of invcsuncnt securities 

Related inco1ne tax expense __ cl";J.09c7 ___ c7c8c6 ____ 4_2_7_ Income tax expense 

Net effect on accu1nulated other co1nprchensivc (loss) "'"=="(2",2;1;6")"$"==(clf,3=4=4f,) ;$===(=72;9:) 
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Subsidiaries of Citv Holding Co1npany 

As of Decen1ber 31, 2016, the subsidiaries, each wholly-owned, of City Holding Company included: 

City National Bank of West Virginia 

360 I MacCorkle A venue S.E. 

Charleston, West Virginia 

City Financial Corporation 

3601 MacCorklc A venue, S.E. 

Charleston, West Virginia 

City Mortgage Corporation 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 

City Capital Managetnent Co1npany 

300 Delaware A venue 

Wilmington, Delaware 

City Holding Capital Trust 

25 Gatcwater Road 

Cross Lanes, West Virginia 

National Banking Association 

West Virginia Corporation 

Pennsylvania Corporation 

Delaware Corporation 

Delaware Business Trust 

Insured Depository 

Institution 

Inactive Securities 

Brokerage and Investment 

Advisory Company 

Inactive Mortgage Banking 

Co1npany 

Capital Management 

Company 

Special-purpose Statutory 

Trust 



Exhibit 23 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration State1nents: 

I) Registration Statement (Fonn S-8 No. 333-87667) of City Holding Company pertaining to the 1993 Incentive Plan, 

2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-115282) of City Holding Company pertaining to the 2003 lncentive Plan, 

3) Registration Statement (Fom1 S-8 No. 333-189055) of City Holding Company pertaining to the 2013 Incentive Plan, and 

4) Registration Statement (Fonn S-3 No. 333-213892) ofCity Holding Company; 

of our reports dated February 27, 2017, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of City l-Iolding Co1npany and 
subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of City Holding Con1pany and subsidiaries included 
in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of City Holding Con1pany and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Isl Ernst & Young LLP 

Charleston, West Virginia 
February 27, 2017 



Exhibit31(a) 
CERTIFICATION 

I, Charles R. Hageboeck, certify that 

I. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of City Holding Company; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to 1nake the statements 1nade, in light of the circu1nstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on 1ny knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial inforn1ation included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and 
for, the pcriodS presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I arc responsible for establishing and 1naintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and lSd-lS(c)) and internal control over financial reporting 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(t) and l 5d-15(t)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material infonnation relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is 1nade known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting 
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's 1nost recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 
report) that has 1natcrially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control 
over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit co1nmittcc of the registrant's board of directors (or such 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which arc reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial information; and 

(a) Any fraud, \Vhethcr or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 27, 2017 

Isl Charles R. Hageboeck 

Charles R. Hageboeck 

President and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31(b) 
CERTIFICATION 

I, David L. Bumgarner, certify that: 

I. I have rcvic\VCd this annual report on Forn1 10-K of City Holding Co1npany; 

2. Based on 1ny knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 1naterial 
fact necessary to make the state1nents 1nade, in light of the circu1nstances under which such statements were made, not 
1nisleading \Vith respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on 1ny knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and 
for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I arc responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting 
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
cov.ercd by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 
report) that has n1atcrially affected, or is reasonably likely to 1naterial!y affect, the registrant's internal control 
over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or such 
persons performing the equivalent functions) 

(a) All significant deficiencies and 1naterial weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which arc reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial infonnation; and 

(a) Any fraud, whether or not nlaterial, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 27, 2017 

Isl David L. Bu1ngarner 

David L. Bumgan1er 

Senior Vice President and ChicfFinancial Officer and Principal 
Accounting Officer 



Exhibit 32(a) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of City Holding Company_ (the "Company") for the period 
ending Dece1nber 31, 2016 as filed \Vith the Securities and Exchange Co1nmission on the date hereof(thc "Report"), I, Charles 
R. Hageboeck, Chief Executive Officer of the Co1npany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to§ 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Ox!ey Act of2002, that: 

(1) the Report fully co1nplies \Vith the requirements of Section !3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all 1naterial respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company. 

Date: February 27, 2017 

Isl Charles R. Hagcboeck 

Charles R. Hagcboeck 

President and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 32(b) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report on Form I 0-K of City Holding Co1npany (the "Company") for the period 
ending December 31, 2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, David 
L. Bumgarner, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act of 2002, that: 

(I) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or IS(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
a1nended; and 

(2) the infonnation contained in the Report fairly presents, in ail material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company. 

Date: February 27, 2017 

/s/ David L. Bu1ngarner 

David L. Bumgarner 

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and 
Principal Accounting Officer 



City Holding Company 
Cross Lanes, West Virginia 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2016 
Exhibit 2a 

City Holding Company 
Charleston, West Virginia 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of lncornoration: West Vin: inia 

City National Bank of West Virginia 

~ 
Charleston, West Virginia 
100% 
LEI: 549300KJZ82173UB3121 
State of lncorooration: West Virainia 

City Real Estate Holdings, Inc. 

~ 
Wilmington, Delaware 
100% 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of lncorooration: Delaware 

City Property Services, Jnc. 

~ 
Charleston, West Virginia 
100% 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of Incorporation: West Virainia 

City Capital Markets Corporation 

~ 
Charleston, West Virginia 
100o/a 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of lncorooration: West Vire inia 

City Capital Project, LLC 

- Wilmington, Delaware 
100% managing member 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of lncorooration: Delaware 

City Holding Capital Trust 111 

- Charleston, West Virginia 
100% (Unconsolidated in AFS) 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of lncorooration: West Vin:iinia 

City Capital Management Company 

- Wilmington, Delaware 
100% 
LEI: NO LEI 
State of lncorooration: Delaware 



' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

I 

i 
z 

i i 

I i 

' ' ' ' 

i 

I 
0 

' 

i 
0 

' 

c 
z 

" 0 

~ 

' 

~ 

' ' ' I 
f 

c 
z 

" 0 

~ 



I 

i 
I 
! 

I 

i 

0 

< 
~ 
0 

" 

I i 



' • ' ' • ' • • ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' • ' ' • ' 

i " 

I 
' • 

• 
" 

I I 
' 
I 
' 

i 
' I I I • " z 

• z • I 
z I I 

i 
0 

i • 
0 

i • 
' ! 

! 
' 



" 12/31/2016 FullSorvico 967532 RAINELLE BRANCH 1218 MAIN STREET RAINELLE ~ 25962 GRE!'NBRIER UNITED STATES 14638 38 CITYNATIC 

" ll/31/2016 Full S..rvico 3443587 POTOMAC MARKET PLACE BRANCH 75WESTVIRGINIA WAY AANSON ~ 25438 JEFFERSON UNITED STATES 451401 97 CITYNATIC 

" 12/3112016 Full Servi<• 9074;5 NORTH CHU ROI STREET BR 108 NORTH CHURCH STREET RIPLEY ~ 25271 JAQ(SON UNITED STATES 4162 36 CITT NATI( 

" 12/3112016 Full S.rvlce 3591947 RIPLEY WAL·MART BRANCH 200ACAOEMY DRIVE RIPLEY ~ 25271 JACUON UNITED STATES 465863 99 CITY NATI( 

O< 12/31/2016 limited SeNke 1494923 SOUTH CHURCH STREET BRANCH llOSOUTH CHURCH STREET RIPLEY ~ 25271 JACKSON UNITED STATES Not Required Not Required CITY NATH: 

O< 12/31/2016 Full Servi<• 1878765 FAIRLEA·KROGER BRANCH 10 REO OAKS SHOPPING CENTER RONCEVERT< ~ 24970 GREENBRIER UNITED STATES 212116 56 CITYNATIC 

O< 12/31/2016 full Seoiloe 942520 RUPERT BRANCH 709 NIO!OL.AS ST IUS ROUTE 60) RUPERT ~ "™ GREENBRIER UNITED STATES 212089 53 CIT'iNATIC 

O< 12/31/2016 fullSeoilce 2069757 ST AlBANS BRANCH 5604THSTREET SAINT AlBANS ~ 25177 KANAWHA UNITEOSTATES 2426>3 4 CITYNATIC 

O< 12/31/2016 f"llSeoilce 24&8930 TEAYSVAllEY BRANCH 100 POPIAR fORK ROAD scon DEPOT w 25560 PUTNAM UNITED STATES 242635 10 CITYNATIC 

O< 12/31/2016 f"llSeoiice ,_, fl.ATWOOOSBRANC!l 1995 SUTION l.ANE SUTION ~ 26601 BRAXTON UNITED STATES 212210 28 CITY NATIC 

O< 12/31/2016 f"llSeoiice 15134 SUTION BRANCH 101 SECOND STREET SUTION ~ 26601 BRAXTON UNITEOSTATES 4573 26 CITY NATIC 

O< 12/31/2016 f"llSeoiice 2371&83 WAYNE BRANCH 206CENTRAlAVENUE WAYNE w 25570 WAYNE UNITED STATES 256543 30 CITYNATIC 

O< 12/31(2016 F"llSeoiice 792734 WEST HAMLIN BRANCH GSSSMCCLELl.ANST WEST HAMLIN w 25571 LINCOLN UNITED STATES 242644 78 CITYNATIC 

0< 12/31(2016 F"llSeNico 735236 WINFIELD BRANCH 1 WAlL STREET WINFIELD ~ 25213 PUTNAM UNITED STATES 15833 6 CITYNATIC 



City Holding Company 
Cross Lanes, West Virginia 

As of Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 
Exhibit 3.1 

(1) (a) 

Name and Address 
BlackRock, Inc. 

40 East 52nd Street 
New York, NY 10022 

The Vanguard Group, Inc. 
100 Vanguard Boulevard 

Malvern, PA 19355 

Shareholders 

(1)(b) 

Country of Citizenship or 
Incorporation 

USA 

USA 

(1) (c) 

Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 

Securities 

1,772,925 - 11.72% 
common stock 

1,350,799-8.93% 
common stock 



City Holding Company 
Cross Lanes, West Virginia 

As of Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 
Exhibit 3.2 

(1) (a) 

Name and Address 

Shareholders 

(1) (b) 

Country of Citizenship or 
Incorporation 

(1) (c) 

Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 

Securities 

**No shareholder held greater than 5% during the year, but at year-end less than 5°/o 



City Holding Company 
Shareholders > 5% 

Total Shares Issued per BS 
Shares in Treasury per BS 

BlackRock lnc. 
@12/31/16 
#of shares 
o/o of shares outstanding 

The Vanguard Group. Inc 
@12/31/16 
#of shares 
0/o of shares outstanding 

18,606,944 
3,478,511 

15,128,433 

5% 

756,422 

1,772,925 Per email from Vikki Evans-Faw 
11.72% 

1,350,799 Per email from Vikki Evans-Faw 
8.93% 

Per review of Schedule SC 13G's filed with SEC, these are the onlyshareholders to own 
5% or more during the year 

Calculation W:\2016 data\2016 FR Y-6 Workpapers\2016 5°/o Shareholders Page 1 
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Y6- Exhibit 4 Item 4a 
PRIOR YEAR 

3/3/2017 Sole Votina Other Total o/o of Votin9 Power Sole Voting Other Total % ofVotin9 Power 
John R. Elliot 157,279 9,300 166,579 1.10°/o 157,279 9,300 166,579 1.07% 
Charles W. Fairchilds 7,664 7,664 0.05°/o 1,922 5,742 7,664 0.05% 
William H. File, Jll 22,754 999 23,753 0.16% 22,754 999 23,753 0.15% 
Robert D. Fisher 28,320 28,320 0.19°/o 27,525 27,525 0.15% 
Jay C. Goldman 24,042 24,042 0.16% 23,267 23,267 0.15°/o 
Patrick C. Graney, Ill 2,353 2,353 0.02% 2,353 2,353 0.15o/o 
Charles R. Hageboeck 75,033 7,302 82,335 0.54°/o 79,580 7,317 86,897 0.52% 
David W. Hambrick 41,856 4,057 45,913 0.30°/o 41,749 4,013 45,761 0.30% 
Tracy W. Hylton, ll 43,923 9,886 53,809 0.36°/o 43,136 9,886 53,022 0.34% 
J. Thomas Jones 3,285 3,285 0.02% 3,285 3,285 0.02°/o 
C. Dallas Kayser 20,832 475 21,307 0.14°/o 20,832 471 21,303 0.14°/o 
James L. Rossi 16,108 16,108 0.11% 16,108 16,108 0.10% 
Sharon H. Rowe 10,376 10,376 0.07°/o 10,376 10,376 0.07% 
Craig G. Stilwell 32,929 32,929 0.22°/o 38,429 1,687 40,116 0.25% 
John A. DeRito 23,303 23,303 0.15°/o 23,303 8,000 31,303 0.14% 
David l. Bumgarner 12,719 1,946 14,665 0.10% 12,719 1,946 14,665 0.09% 
Jeffrey D. Legge 6,937 6,894 13,831 0.09% 7,587 6,894 14,481 0.09% 

522,049 48,523 570,572 3.77% 532,204 56,254 588,458 3.44% 

Shares issued --1-8,606,944 

Treasury 3,478,511 
Shares outstanding 15,128,433 

NOTE: Stock information obtained from Vikki Evans-Faw 

Exibit 4 Item 4a W:\2016 data\2016 FR Y-6 Workpapers\2016 Director and Executive Officers - Y6 Pag~ 1 




